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VALLEY RESTART SHELTER
JOB DESCRIPTION

Title: Operations assistant
Statues: Full or Part time
Salary: Salary scale as adopted by Board of Directors

Bene fits; PTO per policy

DEFINITION: Under the direct supervision of the Director of Operations will
be responsible the daily operations of the shelter.

Spec ific duties include, but are not limited to the following:

Maintain a secure, drug-free, safe environment, assuring participant
safety at all times.
Ensure established policies and procedures are followed
Participate in staff ang training meetings
Provide reports, datg and time and activity sheets in a timely
manner
Handles emergency/crisis situations appropriately, notifies response
agencies as needed, completes incident reports and reports ali
problems fo management in a timely manner.
Ensures the continued and efficient operation of the shelter facilities,
including maintenance and repairs.
‘Transportation and delivery as needed
Other duties as assighed

Desirec Qudilifications:

High school diploma or equivalent

California Driver's license is required

Experience working with homeless population or in social services
Be able fo deal effectively with a wide variety of personalities and
sifuations requiring tact, poise and sensitivity.

Ability to pass a drug test.

Experience with electricqal plumbing, and general building repair.
Good vision, hearing and physical stamina. Position may require

s ubstantial walking, ability to carry 25 Ibs and substantial sitting,
reeaching and bending.



VALLEY RESTART SHELTER
JOB DESCRIPTION

Title: Night Security Supervisor/ Night Security
Status: Full or Part time
Salary: Salary scale as adopted by Board of Directors

Benefits: PTO per policy

DEFINITION: Under the direct supervision of the Executive Director and/or
Operation Director, will be responsible for

Specific duties include, but are not fimited to the following:

* Maintain a secure, d
safety at all times.
Ensure established policies and procedures are followed
Parficipate in staff and training meetings
Provide reports, datq and time and activity sheets in a timely
manner

* Ensures completion and maintenance of security and fire watch logs

* Handles emergency/crisis situations appropriately, nofifies response

agencies as needed, completes incident reports and reports qll

problems to management in a timely manner.

Monitors security cameras

Periodic check of the property

Night Security Supervisor responsible for training new security staff,
Other duties as assigned

rug-free, safe environment, assuring participant

Desired Qualifications:

High school diploma or equivalent

¢ Experience working with homeless Population or in social services
* Be able fo deqi effectively with a wide variety of persondlities and
situations requiring tact, poise and sensitivity.
Ability to pass o drug test
Experience in provision of security

Good vision, hearing and physical stamina. Position may require

substantial walking, ability to carry 10 Ibs and substantial sitting,
reaching and bending.

Valley Restart does not discriminale on the basis
origin, ethnicity gender, age, marital st
Valley Restart is an a-wil empiloyer

of race, color, ancesiry, religious creed, national
atus, disability, medical condition or sexual orienfation.
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VALLEY RESTART SHELTER
JOB DESCRIPTION

Title: Director of.Operoﬁons
Status: Full or Part time
Salary: Salary scale as adopted by Board of Directors

Benefits: PTO per poicy

DEFINITION: Under the direct supervision of the Executive Director will be
responsible for supervision of operations staff and oversight of the daily
operations of the shelter.,

Specific duties include, but are not limited to the following:

* Maintain a secure, drug-free, safe environment, assuring participant
safety at all times.
Ensure established policies and procedures are followed
Participate in staff and training meetings

* Provide reports, data and time and activity sheets in g fimely
manner

¢ Handles emergency/crisis situations appropriately, notifies response
agencies as needed, completes incident reports and reports all
problems to management in a timely manner.

* Ensures the continued and efficient operation of the shelter facilities,
including maintenance and repairs.

* Supervision of security and operations staff, including volunteers.

* Transportation and delivery as needed

e Other duties as assigned

Desired Quadlifications:

High school diploma or equivaient

Experience working with homeless population or in social services
Be able to deq effectively with a wide variety of personalities and
situcitions requiring tact, poise and sensitivity.

Ability to pass a drug test.

Experience in physical plant operations, maintenance and repair.
Experience with electricql plumbing, and general building repair.
Good vision, hearing and physical stamina. Position may require
substantial walking, ability to carry 25 lbs and substantial sitting,
reaching and bending.

Vaiiey Restart does not discriminate on the basis of face, color, ancesiry, refigious creed, national

origin, ethnicity gender, age. marital status, disability, medical condition or sexual orientation.
Valley Restart is an at-will employer
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VALLEY RESTART SHELTER

JOB DESCRIPTION
Title: Case Manager/Navigator
Status: Full or Part time
Salary: Salary scale gs adopted by Board of Directors

Benefits: PTO per policy

EFINITION: Under the direct supervision of Case Manager Supervisor/ Senior

D
Case Manager. Provides direct services to participants in Valley Restart
Programs.

Specific duties include, but are not limited to the following:

Maintain a clean, secure, drug-free, safe environment, assuring
participant safety at all times.

Ensure established policies and procedures are followed

Facilitate participant empowerment, self-sufficiency and personal growth
Participate in staff and fraining meetings

Screen and observe participants for substance use. Perform drug and
alcohol testing

Provide direct case management which includes: intake, developing
service plans, coordinating services with partner agencies, maintain
participant records,

Coordinate utilization of mainstream and community resources. Establish
and maintain o working relationship with community resources and acts
as ligison for parficipants as needed.

Provide or assist with tfransportation services (must have valid CDL)
Provide crisis intervention and notification of the appropriate response
agency, complete incident reports

Provide reports, time and activity sheets timely

Other duties as assigned

Desired Quadlifications:

Associates degree

One-year experience working with homeless population or in social
services

Be able to deal effectively with g wide variety of persondilities and
situations requiring tact, poise and sensitivity,

Ability to pass a drug test

Demonstration of good time management and independent thinking
Good vision, hearing and physical stamina. Position may require

substantial walking, ability to carry 10 bs and substantial sitting, reaching
and bending.

Valley Restart does not discriminate on the basis of race, coior, ancestry, religious creed, nafional origin, ethnicity
ender, age, mariial status, disabiiity, medical condifion Or sexual orientfation. Vailey Restart is an at-will employer.
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VALLEY RESTART SHELTER
JOB DESCRIPTION

Title: Resident Staff/ Resident Manager
Status: Part time (24 hrs. o week maximum)
Salary: room & board

Benefits: none

DEFi

NITION: Under the direct supervision of the Director of Operations. |

responsible for general operations tasks as assigned.

Specific duties include, but are not limited to the folliowing:

Maintain a clean, secure, drug-free, safe environment, assuring
participant safety at qll times.
Ensure established policies and procedures are followed

Facilitate participant empowerment, self-sufficiency and personal
growth

Participate in staff and training meetings

Screen and observe participants for substance use. Perform drug
and alcohol testing

Provide crisis intervention and notification of the appropriate
reésponse agency, complete incident reports

Provide participant and visitor supervision during evenings and
weekends.

Provide reports, time and activity sheets fimely

Resident manager is responsible for the supervision, support and
guidance of the resident staff in absence of another Manager on
duty.

Resident staff glso provide service to the agency as part of the
residential agreement

Other duties as assigned

Desired Quailifications:

Valley Restart does not discrimi
age, marital status, disability, medical condition or se

High school diploma

Previous experience working with homeless population or in social
services

Be able to deal effectively with a wide variety of personalities and
situations requiring tact, poise and sensitivity.

Ability to pass a drug test

Good vision, hearing and physical stamina. Position may require

substantial walking, ability to carry 10 Ibs and substantial sitfing,
reaching and bending.

nate on the basis of race, color, ancestry, refigious creed, national origin, ethnicity gender,
xuat orientation. Valley restart is an at-will employer.
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VALLEY RESTART SHELTER
JOB DESCRIPTION

Title: Case Manager Supervisor/Senior Case Manager
Status: Full or Part time
Salary: Salary scale as adopted by Board of Directors

Benefits: PTO per poicy

DEFINITION: Under the direct supervision of the Executive Director and/or
Progrom Manager, will be responsible for oversight of Case Managers

navigators and other partficipant support siaff. May also provide direct services
to participants in Valley Restart Programs.

Specific duties include, but are not limited to the following:

* Madintain a secure, drug-free, safe environment, assuring participant
safety at all imes,

Ensure established policies and procedures are followed

Facilitate participant empowerment, self-sufficiency and personall growth
Participate in staff and training meetings

Mentor, supervise and guide Case Managers, Interns, Navigators and
other participant support staff.

Provide support for executive staff as needed

Provide case management services to participants as heeded

Provide reports, data and time and activity sheefs in a timely manner
Other duties as assighed

Desired Quadlifications:

Bachelor's degree

Two years’ experience working with homeless population or in social
services

* Be able to deq| effectively with a wide variety of persondlities and
situations requiring tact, poise and sensitivity,
Ability to pass a drug test
Demonstration of good time management and independent thinking
Good vision, hearing and physical stamina. Position may require

substantial walking, ability to carry 10 lbs and substantial sitting, reaching
and bending.

Valley Resiart does noi discriminate on the basis of race, color, ancesiry, religious creed, national

origin, ethnicity gender, age, marital status, disability, medicat condition or sexual ordeniation.
Vdlley Restart is an at-wil employer.
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VALLEY RESTART SHELTER
JOB DESCRIPTION

Title: Bookkeeper
Status: Full or Part time/ contract
Saiary: Salary as adopted by Board of Directors

DEFINITION: Contract employee, under the direct supervision of the

Executive Director and/or Grants Administrator, will be responsible for the
accounting system.

Specific duties include, but are not limited to the following:

Ensure established fiscal policies and procedures are followed
Provide support for executive staff as needed

e Record all accounting transactions ufilizing the organizations
chosen accounting system.

* Includes accounts receivable, payable, and all other accounts in
the system in accordance with generqily accepted accounting
principles.

¢ Prepare grant billings in accordance with each specific grant
requirements.

* Maintain paper files/documentation for ali tfransactions

* Prepare financial reports as required by Executive Director and
Board of Directors in g timely manner
Record and frack donations.

Payroll: track payroll transactions such as taxes, and leave time

e Other duties as assighed

Desired Qualifications:

High school diploma

2 years fiscal, clerical or related experience

Good organizational skills

Proficiency with Microsoft programs including excel

Good vision, hearing and physical stamina. Position may require
substantial sitting, reaching and bending.

Valley Restart does not discriminate on the basis or racs, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, ethnicity gender,
age2, marital stajus, disability, medical condition or sexual orientation. Valley Restart is an at-will em ployer.

RE'V. 8.2016
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VALLEY RESTART SHELTER
JOB DESCRIPTION

Title: Grants Administrator
Status: Full Time
Salary: Salary Wage scale adopted by the Board of Directors

Benefits: Paid Time Off (PTO)

DEFINITION: Under the direct supervision of the Executive Director, responsible
for grant applications and administration.

SPECIFIC DUTIES:

Research and apply for grant funds and other funding as appropriate.
Manage and monitor grants after award to ensure contract compliance.
Ensure established policies and procedures are followed.
Oversee and coordinate community involvement in shelter activities

and public relations gs needed.
Participate in fundraising committee meetings and activities.
* Responsible for statistical data gathering and reports, including HMIS
system.

* Insure that monthly reports/billing are completed correctly and in a timely
manner.
Aftend staff meetings, trainings and other assigned meetings.
Submit all reports, time and activity sheets in g timely manner.
Provide support for Executive Director as needed
Assist in policy and procedure revision/development. Ensure manuals,
forms etc. are up to date and comply with grant funding.

Desired Qualifications:

Bachelor's degree

Two years' experience working with homeless population or in social
services

* Be able to deal effectively with a wide variety of personalities and
sifuations req uiring tact, poise and sensitivity.
Ability to pass g drug test
Demonstration of good time management and independent thinking
Good vision, hearing and physical stamina. Position may require

substantial walking, ability to carry 10 Ibs and substantial sitting, reaching
and bending.

Valley Restart does not discriminate on the basis of race. coior, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, ethnicity
gender, age, marital status, disability, medical condition or sexual orientation, Valley restart is an at-wili employer.
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VALLEY RESTART SHELTER

JOB DESCRIPTION
Title: Human Resources Supervisor
Status: Part/full Time
Salary: Salary Wage scale adopted by the Board of Directors

Benefits: Paid Time Off (PTO)

DEFINITION: Under the direct supervision of the Executive Director, responsible
for human resources and VRS policies.

SPECIFIC DUTIES:

* Promotes and implemenis employee compensation, heath and welfare
benefits

* Madainfains Employee and volunteer records

Assures company knowledge and compliance with federal, State and
local labor regulations.

Seeks and evaluates competitive pricing/bids

Maintains and update VRS policies, procedures, methods and guidelines
Maintains in-kind donafions records

Maintains VRS operations and fiscal files.

Parficipate in fundraising committee meetlings and activities.

Insure that monthly reports/billing are completed comectly and in a timely
manner.

Attend staff meetings, frainings and other assigned meetings.

Submit all reports, fime and activity sheets in a fimely manner.

Provide support for Executive Director and Board of Directors as needed

Desired Qudiifications:

* Bachelor's degree

» Be able to dedl effectively with a wide variety of personalities and
- situations requiring tact, poise and sensitivity.

Ability to pass a drug test
¢ Demonstration of good time management and independent thinking

Valley Restart does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, anceshy, religious creed, nafional origin, ethnicity
gender, age, marital status, disability, medical condition or sexual orientation. Valley restart is an at-will employer.
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Current SAM Registration:
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dost Visited

5. Getting Started ' T* Toshiva B Yahoo B3 Welcome to Facebook..

. Google MyPoints Web Search

Toshiba 25 cities personal » Constant Contact: Login

tion Details for Complete Reécord

:Reégist; .am.en.. Details for Hcaow—.uvuonm Wmn,owm .

Entity Name: Valley Restart Shelter Inc

DUNS Xumber: 867500138
CAGE: 8UE35
Addrass:

200 E Menlo
Hemer, CA 923543-1432
UUNITED STATES

Purpose of Registration: All Awards
Registration Stams: Active
Expiration Date: o~fr 2017
Address Update Requirad:  No

Your entity registration is Active. Plaase select Update Entity from
Registration Datails for Compleze Record if vou want i update or

renew ir.
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Current Search Terms: valley* restart* shelter*

Clear Search

Glossary

Modified Date

o airy
1

Search Results

! FILTER RESULTS Your search for "vallev* restart” shelter™" returned the following resulte...
; Entiny
By Record Status Exelusion

Stawus: Activ

Valley Restart Shelter Ine

Active — o o L L searveh tiiters
UNS:" 867 R P o : 6CEas o
DOxS - m..x.mcouww. e : .z..n.whmoﬁm... m.ﬂm.w.uv © 7 View Details Bv Record Swatus
1 Inactive Has Active m&&:&oﬁ“..?‘.o SR ¢ DoDAAC: o
Expiration Date:'o7/ar/2027 " "~ " Delinquent Federal Debt? No By Record Typs
By Record Type Purpose of Registration: All Avvards

o Entitr Registration

Exelusion

Apply Filters

Save PDF Export Results
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To teach... to train... to restart lives...
Valley Restart Sheiter

200 E Menlo, Hemet, CA 92543

P.O. Box {715, Hemet, CA 92546
1QR 1\ T44.7474 EAY (OKI\ QIE.NKLL

RESTART CENTER

200 E. Menlo Ave.
Hemet, CA 92543
www.valleyrestart.info

August 24, 2016
Linda Rogers

Executive Director

Riverside County DPSS

Homeless Programs Unit
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 4060 County Circle Drive

Executive Board Riverside, CA 92504

Pastor Randy Jones
President

John Bunge

Vice President To whom it may concern,

Lisa Quinn

Treasurer Valley Restart Shelter does commit to applying the following resources
Wally Arida as matching funds for an award of Emergency Solutions Funds.
Secretary

Marvin Nottingham, PhD

Membar at Large Private Contributions/donations $4,000
County of Riverside DPSS $45,000
In Kind Volunteer services $1,000
BOARD MEMBERS
Susan Divine
Sincerely,

Winston Greene
(Past President)

Jorge Larrondo, DDS
John Norman .
!

Dan Harris Vu}‘d\é—; &3'74/}’“)
5

Capt. Bill DeLuna Linda BOBEF.
Executive Director
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RIVERSIDE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES
AMENDMENT # 13
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
Valley Restart Shelter

Homeless Shelter
PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES AGREEMENT: HO-01647-13
EFFECTIVE PERIOD: July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017
EFFECTIVE DATE
OF AMENDMENT: July 1, 2016
MAXIMUM REIMBURSABLE
AMQOUNT: $200,000.00

The Agresment beiween the Riverside County Department of Public Social Services,
hereinafter referred to as DPSS, and Valley Restart Shelter, hereinafter referred to as
Contractor, is amended in the following particulars and no others:

1.

DPSS and Contractor agree to renew, extend, and modify the Agreement as stated
herein, inclusive of all previously executed amendments.

On the Recitals Page and every page thereafter, amend all references to the contract
number to read HO-01647-13.

On the Recitals Page under Contract Term, amend dates to read:

“July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017*

On Page 8 Section IV. “FISCAL PROVISIONS" subsection D. “‘RECORDS,
INSPECTIONS, AND AUDITS" add the following language:

“6. Contractors that expend $750,000 or more in a year in Federal funding shall obtain
an audit performed by an independent auditor in accordance with generally accepted
governmental auditing standards covering financial and compliance audits as per the
Single Audit Act of 1984 and the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, as per OMB
Circular A-133. However, records must be available for review and audit by
appropriate officials of Federal, State and County agencies.”

Amend Section V. "GENERAL PROVISIONS" subsection H. “HOLD
HARMLESS/INDEMNIFICATION" to read:

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the County of Riverside, iis
Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments, their respective directors,
officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and
representatives (individually and collectively hereinafter referred to as Indemnitees) from
any liability, action, claim or damage whatsoever, based or asserted upon any services
of CONTRACTOR, its officers, employees, subcontractors, agents or representativas
arising out of or in any way relating to this Agreement, including but not limited to

Pana 1 nf 12
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Contract/Grant History



Name # Address of Agency Year(s) Amount Services
Riversicde County DPSS, 4060 16-17, 15-16, 14-15 $200,000 Emergency Shelter
County Circle Drive, Riverside

CA 92504

Riversicle County DPSS, 4060 13-14 $140,000 Emergency Shelter
County Circle Drive, Riverside

CA 92504

Riversicle County DPSS, 4060 12-13 $24,000 Emergency Shelter
County Circle Drive, Riverside

CA 92504

Riversicle County EDA, POBox | 16-17 $55,000- ESG Emergency Shelter
1180, R iverside, CA 92502

Riversiclle County EDA, POBox | 15-16 $40,000-ESG Emergency Sheilter
1180, R iverside, CA 92502

Riversicle County EDA, PO Box | 14-15 $35,000-E5G Emergency Shelter
1180, R iverside, CA 92502

Riversicle County EDA, PO Box | 13-14 $20,000-ESG Emergency Shelter
1180, R dverside, CA 92502 ~

Riversiclle County EDA, PO Box | 12-13 $25,000-ESG Emergency Shelter
1180, Riverside, CA 92502

Riversidlle County EDA, PO Box | 16-17 $10,000- CDBG Bus Ticket Home
1180, Raverside, CA 92502

Riversidle Countw EDA, PO Box | 15-16 Bus Ticket Home

1180, Riaverside, CA 92502

$10,000-CDBG

Valley Health Sy stems, 1117 E | 7/1/2015 - ongoing $32,900 RRH Case management
Devonshire Ave, Hemet, CA

92543

Valley Health Sy stems, 1117 € | 12/2015 -ongoing $15,600 VRS Shelter Tutoring

Devonshhire Ave, Hemet, CA
92543

Vallley Restart services all contract out of 200 E Menilo Ave. Hemet, CA 92543

Tak G Attachment 6



Valley Restarl Shelter, Inc
: Consalidated Statement
: For the Tweldve Months Ending June 30, 2016

June 2016 May 2016 A 2016 Mar 2016 Feb 2016 Jau 2016 Dev 2015 Nov 2015 Ocl 2015 Sept 2015 Aug 2015 July 2015 YTD  YTD Variance

Revenues
Contrilwtions-General 7.181.00 343742 3.625.00 2,920,00 289000 §  6,790.00 11,92),00 2065675 243500 2,202,00 2,530.00 3,155.00 74.871.09 27,356.09
_ Contributions-Religious Orp, 2.275.00 2,925.00 1,795,00 1,679.00 1.040.00 1.610,00 7.362.00 675.00 187356 1,175.00 1.4032,32 1.240.00 7.704.01
Contributions-Desiwnated ¢.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,00 0,00 0.00 0.0 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 50.00
Contsibulions-Autos 1,085.00 0.00 550.00 800,00 2,100.00 350,00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 42500 4.225.00 3.308.23
VRS Newspaper Reeyeling 55.00 45.00 50.00 0.0 110.00 0.00 95.00 0.00 183.00 40,00 7R.50 7150 703.30 (1.130.033
Fundenisers 0.00 554.00 298595 150.00 805,63 3,550.00 £10.00 1,284.05 9,254,00 2,681,72 1:473.2 650.00 24,302.41 1,623,584
) Girants (3.010.39) 9.732.76 50,864.89 147.26 70,896,385 49.623,78 31,550.00 31.500.00 32.550,00 52.051.30 10,715,76 000 370,032M (79,177.20)
h Miscellancous 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 $0,930.50 0.00 §0,930.50 80,930.50
: tuterest Income 0.00 0.00 1238 15.87 1446 1487 14.78 163 8.1y 1.60 1.2 0.79 09%.77 . 98.77
Write ol pricy oxpense 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 9,00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0,00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tolal Revenues 7,585.6) 46,604,185 $9.912,99 511213 77.966.94 61.948.68 52,722.78 36,443.33 46,304.05 58.450,82  127,301.53 5.542.50  578,160.99 40,6641
Gross Proli 7.585.01 46,694.18 59.912,90 541213 77.966.94 61,948.65 $2,722.78 36,443.33 46,304.05 S8.1S182  127.361.5% 554259 57810099 40,6691

Expenses
Convenlions/Seminars 0.00 0.00 586.20 0.00 £23.89 0.00 115.00 .60 M1.50 742400 o 000 2.308.59 1.850.26
Dues & Subseriplions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 {1.160.00)
CDBG Grant-Riverside 0.00 283.50 $99.90 301.00 978,90 244,50 341.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3.048.50 5.522.6%)
RRH Casc Mgt/Auto & Ofiice L 1.221.06 513.78 873.00 1.270.27 250,24 653.98 752.96 217.10 %177 98,14 716,80 770,38 6,809,02 (34.012.31)
{tRH Admin 0.00 0.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 060 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 269.10 0.00 269,10 (6,084.54h
RRUD Rentad Asst 5.704.80 81133 7.624.65 1395133 16.455.00 7.984.74 5.954.32 5,339.33 5.710.66 4.470.00 1,025.00 1,950.00 20.276.38 (18.:492.621
RRLE 1IMIS .00 0.00 .00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 (4,575.00)
RRIL Casls Match {Not 1K) 0.00 0.00 30,36 0.0 0,00 0.00 .00 0.00 G.00 0.0n 2.317.99 2,615.80 4.904.15 (32,936.12)
Liabitity tnsurance 8004 0.00 80041 800,41 20041 500.-H 55233 S00.41 80041 S00.41 1.000.82 0.00 7,756,02 (3.005.18)
Interest Bxpense 220099 220,42 3,253.43 3,582 2,202.57 2,266,91 227133 227552 227979 2,284.03 2,248.27 220248 2.4.982.26 9,17.7)
Property Tax 0.00 0.00 (3.6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 91408 0.00 0.00 0.00 Ry ARTH (212,71)
Fund Raising Exp 0.00 0.00 87.58 0.00 6.00 1.700.00 500.00 1,27, 1.080.00 43,77 0.00 04,00 4,777.35 193.02
Professional Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.60 0.00 0.60 0.00 (650.83)
Oftice Supplies 20.97 34.00 150.57 30.42 63,14 735 110.29 143.80 69,03 160,74 1502 143.17 1.015.02 (84.38)
Postage 0.00 0,00 0.00 94,00 0.00 49.00 0.00 49.00 $2.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 278,00 131.33
Pubtic Retations 137.00 0.00 ¢.00 542,20 208 0.00 264.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0,00 0.00 $59.27 675.94
Markeling/Advertising 99.85 123.2 0.00 75.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24330 0.00 0.00 4,00 0.00 441.50 150
Accouniing/Amlit 140000 1,400.00 1,400.08 3.025.00 1.400.60 1.400.06 193000 1.875.00 1.400.00 140000 140000 140080 18.050.00 {283,330
, Consulting Serviees 507,50 20.00 0.00 125.00 0,00 175.00 227.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0,00 597.50 2,402.50)
Grant "CID Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 2.00 0.00 0.00 3,078.00 0.00 3.078.00 0.00
Legal Fees ) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 . 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.00 0.40 45.83)
Security 161.50 161.50 161.50 32022 161.50 161.50 161,50 161.50 161,50 164,50 161.50 161.50 1,935.22 154,72
Bldg Repairs/Maint 510,17 355.23 770.04 24401 618.59 168,23 458.30 509,53 4,097.72 11.85 402.00 184,43 7.425,50 1.225,59
Equipmens Rental - Lacndey 192,00 192,00 192.00 192.00 192.00 192.00 (92,00 192,00 192,00 192,00 192,00 192.00 2,112.00 0.00
; Office Equip. - Copier 220,40 198.36 198,30 221) 198.34 198.34 198,34 240.29 233,34 207.84 220,44 157,94 236400 9/.27
; Employce Wages 28.100.59 2743599 26,323.59 2567337 13,870,983 2402034 24,343,98 24.110.09 19,373.04 19,962.00 1601116 1578502 247.019.65 (10.:479.35)
" Payroll Processing 116.00 116.00 114.00 110.00 232,00 15.00 226,00 164.00 108.00 0.00 23,00 94,00 1.331.00 . 133100
H Acerued 1O 1.883.21 1,884,488 1.898.20 1,946.23 162018 1,665.08 1,820.64 1.627.93 2,327.48 1961.18 106294 1,215.92 18.950.06 18.950.06
Workers Comp. 1,824.50 0.00 2,662.71 2,597.86 2,529.35 2,499.57 1.070.81 244781 2,059.75 1.913.06 2,230.01 1,598.80 23,551.33 23.551.33
. Taxcs EDD 181061 208.80 357,50 #53.24 £.071.75 1,586.17 191010 154447 1,310,060 1,245.71 1,480,47 1.209,11 12,508.25 12,508.25
. Taxes 041-940 2,587.44 2,L14.98 2.070.01 2,036,47 1.873,53 1.954.33 2,354.09 1.902.97 [KIER 1.534.30 1.824.00 1,489,23 090455 20.904.55
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Ritelien / Food Supplics 568,29 205,40 446,94 200,00 121.59 2774 319.98 200.00 19.83 260.00 A30.05 25000 200103 110630}
Propram Expense 1,251.63 0.00 55.00 0383 H7.02 207,32 43041 126.70 109,50 2941 23470 29276 2.746.35 522,52
Linens a.00 40524 776.88 n.00 D400 524.67 5105 6.00 .00 0.00 A51.02 220006 1.841.064
Auto Expense 284,80 A8s.00 334.00 200,70 185,50 28161 240.00 253,60 133524 41153 300,38 3400 758,02 175.20
Rental Asgistoncy - FEMA 800,00 1.000.00 900.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,345.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0,00 0.00 3.2:45.00 {5.921.67)
Elgctric 467.80 479.82 564.47 597.54 XA L) §94.54 737.13 439,95 740,82 771,77 707.30 M0.06 747071

Gas 188,05 161.04 153.00 16254 25191 261.97 203,15 125.00 1880 135,23 13792 135.50 {86687 1883.13)
Tekephone 671.06 38,82 34,04 296.76 308.32 44.95 575.79 315,58 20445 W06.87 34,00 35.75 3,135.33 {1.204.67)
Water/I'rash 855.51 79883 825,15 82231 885.29 98335 80009 79238 797.51 86102 6.4 R20. 9,183.07 290.430
Miscellaneons Bxpense 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .60 .00 0.00 (.00 0.00 03.00 0.60 0.00
Prior Year Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0n 0,00 0.0 0.00 o.00 2,00 0.00 0.4} 0,00 0.00 0.00
General Loss Account .00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00 0.0
Bank Service Charges .00 2310 0.00 000 0.00 38.00 0.00 0.00 0.90 0.00 0.60 .00 284,10 15443
Othser Corparale Expense .00 0.00 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0,00 000
Contingency 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 .00 0.00 .00 0.n0 0.60 Q.00 (18.137.80)
Nesw Construction 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 ¢.00 0.00 0.00
Total Expenses 53.068,04 49,775.58 53,739,573 5999379 38.567.17 50,%98.73 52.930,37 44.201.12 48,5543 A0, 3454 39,396,060 3:1.230.69 336,548.01 {102.4426.003
Nel Income (45482.43) 1308140 0.173.40 {54.881.001 10,399.77 § 1104992 (213.50) IA7.79) (3 2.250.38) 18.027.28 128,698,110} 41,572.38 143.000.91
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VALLEY RESTART SHELTER, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Grants Receivable
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Fixéd Assets
Land, building, and equipment (Net)
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accrued payroll and related items
Accrued vacation liability
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Notes payable
Total Long-Term Liabilities
TOT.AL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

See accom panying notes and accountants' report

$

47,303
1,818
49,430
3,963
102,514

318,913
421,427

20,303
12,573
32,876

440,156
440,156
473,032

(51,603)

(51,605)
421,427



VALLEY RESTART SHELTER, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

TOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2015

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets $ 133,489

Adjustment to Beginning Net Assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operations:
Non-cash items :

Depreciation expense 5,702
(Increase) decrease in cash due to:
Accounts receivable (49,430)
Prepaid expenses (176)
Increase {decrease) in cash due to:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (927)
Accrued vacation 2,138
CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 90,796

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES z
CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES -

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on Notes Payable (74,944)
CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (74,944)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 15,852
Beginning cash and cash equivalents 31,451
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 47,303
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA:
Interest paid 3 26,025

See accompanying notes and accountants’ report 4




VALLEY RESTART SHELTER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Valley Restart Shelter, Inc. is a non-profit organization established in 1989. Its purpose is to provide quality
services to persons who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Support of the Organization is
provided mainly by government grants and donations from the local community.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The Organization maintains its books on the accrual basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation
The Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes
of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

Revenue Sources

Revenues are received primarily from government grants and local community donations. The Organization
is on a cost reimbursement basis for the majority of the government grants that are received. Accordingly,
grant revenue is recognized during the period in which reimbursed expenses are incurred.

Revenue Recognition
Contributions received are recorded as increases in unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted net assets, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

All donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents ) o
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Organization considers cash and all highly liquid
investments available for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash.

Valuation of Fixed Assets

The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for land, buildings and equipment with
a unit value in excess of $500. Purchased fixed assets are recorded at cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded
at fair value at date of gift. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, which range from 5 to 20 years.




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. NOTES PAYABLE

The notes payable consists of loans from individuals. The following notes and the related balance as of June
30, 2015 were as follows:

Personal note 1:

Promissory note dated November 2, 2007 in the amount of $484,868. Interest is
6.25%. Principal and interest payments of $3,100 are due monthly. In October
2010 an additional $15,000 was added to the existing loan balance. All of the
agreement terms remained the same The note obtains a due date of November 4,
2014. An extension was given on December 10, 2014 for an additionat two year,

extending the date to November 4, 2016 $ 440,156
Total Debt 440,156
Less current pertion - -
Long-Term Debt $ 440,156
Future Maturities
June 30, Note #1 Total
2016 440,156 440,156
Total 440,156 440,156

(Space intentionally left blank)



NOTES T"O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GOING CONCERN

As_shown in the accompanying financial statements, Valley Restart Shelter, Inc. has incured 2 net income of
$133,489 during the current period, however the agency continues to hold negative cumulative net assets in
the amount of ($51,605). The Agency continues to respond to the economic conditions as follows:

1.

IS

Management has increased it’s fund raising efforts and continues to actively search out more
funding from grantors and other organizational donors.

Board of director’s has become active in addressing public relations and marketing to community
partners including developing a plan to promote organization and encouraging giving. The
agency has also been working with local churches on establishing and promoting monthly $1
donations from parishioners. In addition to this, the agency has also been working on finding and
increasing the number of Desperadoes who are monthly $100 or more donors.

Staff is actively participating by maintaining an ongoing effort to monitor and keep expenses at a
minimum, where possible.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 22, 2015, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued and determined that no subsequent events or transactions were
idexttified that require disclosure in the financial statements.

ae

#* *



Budget Summary

EXHIBIT B

Valley Restart REVISED 9.10.2016

Bidder must include a budget narrative see H-2 that describes each line item.

Budget Instructions: Double click inside of the budget table to activate the Excel Spreadsheet and fill in
proposed budget for all eligible program costs related to the proposed project.

2016-17 FISCAL YEAR PROJECTED BUDGET

PROPOSED BUDGET AMOUNT TO BE DESCRIPTION AND EXPLANATION
ACTIVITY CATEGORY PAID BY ESG TOTAL MONTHLY COST. EXPAND THE
BUDGET LINE ITEMS FTE FUNDS MATCH BUDGET AMOUNT OF INFORMATION IN EACH
TOTAL BUDGET CELL, AS NEEDED. (INCLUDE TOTAL
REQUEST LINE ITEM)

HARDWARE, EQUIPMENT, AND
SOFTWARE COSTS

DIRECT STAFF SALARIES FOR
OPERATING HMIS

TRAINING AND OVERHEAD-
TECHNICAL SUPPORT, LEASING
SPACE, AND UTIUITIES FOR
SPACE USED BY HMIS STAFF

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ENGAGEMENT

DIRECT STAFF SALARIES

CASE MANAGEMENT

EMERGENCY HEALTH SERVICES

EMERGENCY MENTAL




SERVICES

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES TO SPECIAL
POPULATION

- $0.00

$0.00

$0.00

TRANSPORTATION 0 S0 S0 $5,000 Fuel and vehicle maintenance
3 Case management and 2
DIRECT STAFF SALARIES
3.7 »10,000 310,000 »85,800 operations staff @ 11.00 hr
EQUIPMENT/FURNITURE/ Small furniture, laundry equip,
HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES 0 »1,000 »1000 $11.875 cleaning supplies etc.
REPAIR/MAINTENANCE Plumbing and electrical, routine small
SUPPLIES 0 3500 2500 $8,500 repairs and maintenance
idi Is to shelter
FOOD $0 <0 $3,200 Foo.d‘for providing meals to she
participants
UTILITIES $3,411 $3,411 $25,000 Electric, gas, water, sewer and trach
REHABILITATION AND
RENOVATION (MAX $5,000)
139,375
$14,911 $14,911 $

INITIAL RENT

DIRECT STAFF SALARIES

PAYMENTS IN ARREARS

UTILITY ASSISTANCE




INITIAL RENT

UTILITY ASSISTANCE

SERVICES

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
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EXHIBITC

Federal Register/Vol. 76, No. 233/ Monday, December 5, 2011 /Rules and Regulations

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT

24 CFR Parts 91 and 576
[Dockst No, FR-5474-1-01)
RIN 2508-AC29

Homeless Emergency Assistance and
Raplid Transition to Housing:
Emergency Solutions Grants Program
and Consolidated Plan Conforming
Amendments

AGENCY: Office of the Assistant
Secrelary for Community Planning and
Development, HUD,

ACTION: Interim rule,

SUMMARY: The Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing Act of 2009 (HEARTH Act),
enacted into law on May 20, 2009,
consolidates three of the separale
homeless assistance programs
administered by HUD under the
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance
Act into a single gran! program, and
revises the Emergency Shelter Granls
program and renames it as the
Emergency Solwtions Grants (ESG)
program. The BEARTH Act also codifies
into law the Continuum of Care
planning process, a longstanding part of
HUD’s applicalion process lo assist
homeless persons by providing greater
coordinalion in responding to their
needs.

This interim rule revises the
regulations for the Emergency Shelter
Grants program by eslablishing the
regulations for the Emergeney Solulions
Grants program, which replaces the
Emergency Shelter Grants program. The
change in the program’s name, from
Emergency Sheller Grants to Emergency
Solutions Granis, reflects the change in
the program’s focus from addressing the
needs of homeless people in emergency
or transitional shelters 10 assisting
people ta quickly regain stability in
permanent housing afler ex eriencing a
housiny crisis and/or lmmeFessness.
DATES: Effective date: January 4, 2012,

Comment Dug Dote, February 3, 2012,
ADDRESSES: Interested persons are
invited to submil comments regarding
thls rule to the Regulations Division,
Office of General Counsel, 451 7th
Street SW., Room 10276, Department of
Housing and Urban Development,
Washington, DG 20410-0500.
Communications must refer io the above
docket number and title, There are two
methods for submitting public
comments. All submissions must refer
to the above docket number and title.

1, Submission of Comments by Mail.
Comments may be submitted by mail to

the Regulations Division, Office of
General Counsel, Department of
Housing and Urban Development, 451
7th Streel SW., Room 16278,
Washington, DC 20410-0500.

2. Electronic Submission of
Comments. Interested persons may
submit comments elsctronically through
the Federal oRulemaking Portal at
http:/fwww.regulations.gov, HUD
slrongly encourages commenters lo
submit comments electronically.
Electronic submission of comments
allows the commenler maximum time Lo
prepare and submil a commenl, ensures
Limely receipt by HUD, and enables
HUD te make them immediately
available to the public. Comments
submitted eleclronically through the
hitp:/fwww.regulations.gov Web site can
be viewed by other commenters and
inlerested members of the public.
Commenters shonld follow the
instructions provided on that site to
submit comments electronicaily,

Note: To recoive consideration as public
comments, comments must be submitted
through ona of the two metheds spacified
above. Again, all submissions must refer to
the docket number and title of the ryla.

No Facsimile Comments. Facsimile
[FAX) comments are not acceptable.

Public Inspeclion of Public
Comments. All properly submitted
comments and communications
submitted 1o HUD will be available for
public inspection and copying between
8 a.m. and 5 p.m. weekdays al the above
address. Duo to security measures at the
HUD Hcadquarters building, an advance
appoiniment lo review the public
commenls must be scheduled by calling
the Regulations Division at (20Z) 708
3055 (this is nol a loll-Iree number),
Individuals with speech or hearing
impairments may access this number
through TTY by calling the Federal
Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Copies
of all comments submitted are available
for inspection and downloading at
hilp:fwww.regulations gov.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Ann
Marie Oliva, Direclor, Office of Special
Needs Assistunce Programs, Office of
Community Planning and Developmeat,
Department of Housing and Urban
Development, 451 7th Streel SW.,
Washinglon, DG 20410-7000; lelephone
number (202) 7084300 (this is nol a
loll-free number). Hearing- and speech-
impaired persons muy access this
number through TTY by calling the
Federal Relay Service at (800) 8778339

{this is a toll-free number).

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

L Background—HEARTH Act

On May 20, 2009, the Presidenl
signed into law “An Acl to Prevent
Mortgage Foreclosures and Enhance
Mortgage Credil Availability,” which
became Public Law 111~22, This law
implements a variely of measures
directed loward keeping individuals
and families from losing thejr homes.
Division B of this law is the HEARTH
Act, which consclidates and smends -
three separale homeless assistance
programs carried out under title IV of
Lthe McKinney-Vento Homeless
Assistance Act (42 U.8.C. 11371 ¢f seq.)
(McKinney-Vento Act) into a single
grant program that is designed to
improve administrative efficiency and
snhance response coordination and
effectivoness in addressing the needs of
homeless persons. The HEARTH Acl
codifies into law and enhances the
Continuum of Care planning process,
the coordinated response for addressing
the needs of homelessness eslablished
admiaistratively by HUD in 1995, The

~ single Continuum of Care program

established by the HEARTH Act
consolidales the following programs: the
Supporlive Housing program, the
Shelter Plus Care program, and the
Mederato Rehabilitation/Single Room
Occupancy program. The Emergency
Sheller Grants program is renamed the
Emergency Solutions Granis program
antl revisod to broaden existing
emergency sheller and homelessness
prevention activities and lo add short-
and medium-term rental assistance and
services lo rapidly re-house homeless
people. In addilion the new Rural
Housing Stability program replaces the
Rural Homelessness Crant program,

HUD commenced the progess Lo
implement the HEARTH Acl wilh a
proposed rule, which was published on
April 20, 2010, (75 FR 20541) and titled
“‘Defining Homeless.” Thal proposed
rule sought to clarify and elaborale upon
the new McKinney-Venlo Acl
definitions for “homeless” and
“homeless individual with a disability.”
In addition, the proposed rule included
recordkeeping requirements relaled lo
the revised definition of “homeless.”
‘The final rule for the “homeless”
definition and (he related rocordkeeping
requirements appears elsswhere in
today’s Federal Register. Today’s
publication of the final rule for lhe
homeless definition and this interim
rule for the Emergency Solulions Grants
program, which includes corresponding
amendments to the Consolidated Plan,
will be lollowed by separale propesed
rules for the Continuum of Care program
and the Rural Housing Stability program
to implemeni other HEARTH Act
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amendments to the McKinney-Vento
Act. HUD will also soon publish a
‘proposed rule establishing regulations
for Homeless Management Information
Systems (HMIS). The definition of
“homeless” in this interim rule for the
Emergency Solutions Grants program
and the corresponding recordkeeping
requirements are not the subject of
further public comment. Public
comment for this definition and the
corresponding recordkeeping
requirements were addressed in the
Defining Homeless final rule published
elsewhere in today’s Federal Register.

II. This Interim Rule

This interim rule revises the
regulations for the Emergency Shelter
Grants program at 24 CFR part 576 by
establishing the new requirements for
the Emergency Solutions Grants
program and making corresponding
amendments to HUD’s Consolidated
Plan regulations found at 24 CFR part
91. The Emergency Solutions Grants
(ESG) program builds upon the existing
Emergency Shelter Grants program, but
places greater emphasis on helping
people quickly regain stability in
permanent housing after experiencing a
housing crisis and/or homelessness, The
key changes that reflect this new
emphasis are the expansion of the
homelessness prevention component of
the program and the addition of a new
rapid re-housing assistance component,
The homelessness prevention
component includes various housing
relocation and stabilization services and
short- and medium-term rental
assistance to help people avoid
becoming homeless. The rapid re-
housing assistance component includes
similar services and assistance to help
people who are homeless move quickly
into permanent housing and achieve
stability in that housing,

In developing regulations for the ESG
program, HUD is relying substantially
on its experience with its
administration, and that of HUD’s
grantees, of the Homelessness
Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing
Program (HPRP), authorized and funded
by the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Recovery
Act) (Pub. L. 111-5, approved February
17, 2009). The Recovery Act language
that created HPRP was directly drawn
from the proposed HEARTH Act, which
was under consideration by Congress at
the time the Recovery Act was enacted.
HPRP is the first HUD program to fund,
on a large scale ($1.5 billion),
homelessness prevention and rapid re-
housing assistance. HUD is therefore
drawing from its recent program
experience with HPRP, a temporary

program, to establish the regulations for
the ESG program, a permanent program.
Because HPRP activities will continue,
the interim rule is also directed at
ensuring continuity between HPRP and
ESG. This interim rule provides HPRP
program recipients with an opportunity
to comment on the policies '
implemented under HPRP and
continued under the ESG program.

This interim rule also implements
HUD’s longstanding interest in making
its McKinney-Vento Act programs
consistent, where appropriate, with
other HUD programs such as the
Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) program, the HOME Investment
Partnerships (HOME) program, and the
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV)
program. To the extent that similar
requirements in these programs can be
made consistent, communities may be
better able to implement coordinated
plans and projects to prevent and end
homelessness, while decreasing the
administrative burden for recipients and
subrecipients.

This interim rule will become
effective 30 days after today’s date.
Grantees are receiving two allocations of
Fiscal Year (FY) 2011 funds. The first
allocation was made and is subject to
the Emergency Shelter Grants program
regulations. The second allocation will
be made after publication of this
Emergency Solutions Grants program
rule and must exclusively be used for
homelessness prevention assistance,
rapid re-housing assistance, Homeless
Management Information Systems
(HMIS), and administration, in
accordance with this interim rule. Each
recipient may use up to 7.5 percent of
its total FY 2011 amount for
administrative costs as provided under
this interim rule. In addition, if a
recipient wishes to reprogram some or
all of its first allocation funds to carry
out homelessness prevention assistance,
rapid re-housing assistance, or HMIS,
the recipient must amend its
consolidated plan in accordance with
the requirements of the consolidated
plan regulations as amended by this
interim rule.

The following sections of this
overview highlight significant
differences between the interim rule and
the existing regulations for the
Emergency Shelter Grants program. This
overview does not address every
regulatory provision of the interim rule.
However, the reader is requested to
review the entire interim rule, and HUD
welcomes comment on all aspects of the
rule. As previously mentioned, the
definition of “homeless” and the
recordkeeping requirements related to
that definition are included in a final

rule published elsewhere in today’s
Federal Register. Note that the new

- definition of “homeless” and the related

recordkeeping requirements are not
subject to further public comment.
Therefore, the new definition and
related reporting requirements are not
included in this interim rule, so as to
avoid any confusion that HUD is
reopening these provisions for
additional public comment through this
rule.

A. Emergency Solutions Grants Program
Regulations (24 CFR Part 576}

This interim rule amends the
regulations at 24 CFR part 576, which
have governed the Emergency Shelter
Grants program and will govern, as
revised, the Emergency Solutions Grant
(ESG) program.

This interim rule reflects HUD'’s
comprehensive review and revision of
part 576. In addition to making changes
to implement the HEARTH Act
amendments to the'McKinney-Vento
Act, this interim rule includes changes
to reorganize the regulations in part 576
to make the regulations more intuitive
and user-friendly; removes the cross-
references to the McKinney-Vento Act;
provides greater elaboration of existing
requirements where necessary or useful;
updates requirements to reflect changes
to the underlying law, such as the
removal of Indian tribes as eligible
grantees/recipients; builds from HUD’s
experience in developing and
administering both the existing
Emergency Shelter Grants program and
HPRP; aligns the ESG program with the
new Continuum of Care and Rural
Housing Stability programs, to the
extent feasible, in order to facilitate
coordination and foster efficient use of
resources; and align the requirements of
the ESG program with HUD’s other

formula programs and rental assistance

programs, to the extent feasible and
beneficial, in order to increase
efficiency and coordination among the
different programs.

In developing the regulations for the
ESG program and other programs
authorized under title IV of the revised
McKinney-Vento Act, HUD has sought
to provide grantees with the
programmatic framework to: maximize
communitywide planning and strategic
use of resources to prevent and end
homelessness; improve coordination

.and integration with mainstream

services to marshal all available
resources, capitalize on existing
strengths, and increase efficiency;
improve coordination within each
community’s homeless services,
including services funded by other
programs targeted to homeless people;



75956

Federal Register/Vol. 76, No. 233/ Monday, December 5, 2011/Rules and Regulations

build on lessons learned from years of
practice and research, so that more
resources are invested in demonstrated
solutions to end homelessness, such as
rapid re-housing; expand resources and
services available to prevent
homelessness; realign existing programs
and systems to focus on shortening
homelessness; direct funding to the
most critical services to help people
achieve long-term housing stability and
avoid becoming homeless again;
standardize eligibility determinations
and improve the targeting of resources
to help those most in need; improve
data collection and performance
measurement; and allow each
community to tailor its program to the
particular strengths and challenges
within that community.

General Provisions (Subpart A)

The major changes to this subpart
include new definitions required by the
HEARTH Act amendments and
revisions to existing definitions where
needed to conform to the new program
requirements or to improve
administration of the program.

Definitions (Section 576.2)

At Risk of Homelessness. The interim
rule clarifies the definition of “at risk of
homelessness” under section 401(1) of
the McKinney-Vento Act. The definition
includes three categories under which
an individual or family may qualify as
““at risk of homelessness.” For an
individual or family to qualify as “at
risk of homelessness” under the first
category of the definition, the individual
or family must meet two threshold
criteria and must exhibit one or more
specified risk factors. The two threshold
criteria, as provided in the statute, are:
(1) The individual or family has income
below 30 percent of median income for
the geographic area; and (2) the
individual or family has insufficient
resources immediately available to
attain housing stability. Under the
interim rule, the first criterion refers
specifically to annual income and to
median family income for the area, as
determined by HUD. The second
criterion is interpreted as, “the
individual or family does not have
sufficient resources or support
networks, e.g., family, friends, faith-
based or other social networks,
immediately available to prevent them
from moving to an emergency shelter or
another place described in paragraph (1)
of the homeless definition {in § 576.2].”
These clarifications are consistent with
HUD’s practice in administering its
homeless assistance programs and will
help ensure consistent application of
these criteria.

To further ensure consistency of
interpretation, the interim rule also
clarifies several of the risk factors that
pertain to the first category of
individuals and families who qualify as
“at risk of homelessness.” As provided
under the statute, the pertinent risk
factors are as follows: (1) Has moved
frequently because of economic reasons;
(2) is living in the home of another
because of economic hardship; (3) has
been notified that their right to occupy
their current housing or living situation
will be terminated; (4) lives in a hotel
or motel; (5) lives in severely
overcrowded housing; (6) is exiting an
institution; or (7} otherwise lives in
housing that has characteristics
associated with instability and an
increased risk of homelessness.

Under the interim rule, the words
“has moved frequently” in the first risk
factor are interpreted as “2 or more
times during the 60 days immediately
preceding the application for
homelessness prevention assistance.”
This interpretation is consistent with
HUD’s interpretation of similar language
in the “homeless” definition. However,
HUD is still considering whether and
how to clarify “economic reasons” in
the first risk factor and “economic
hardship” in the second risk factor.
HUD believes at times, “economic
reasons” and “‘economic hardship” can
have the same meaning, HUD
specifically requests comments
regarding these terms.

The third risk factor, “has been
notified that their right to occupy their
current housing or living situation will
be terminated,” is clarified by adding
that the notice has to be in writing and
that the termination has to be within 21
days after the date of application for
assistance.

The fourth risk factor, “lives in a hotel
or motel,” is clarified by adding ““and
the cost of the hotel or motel is not paid
for by federal, state, or local government
programs for low-income individuals or
by charitable organizations.” This
change is being made to avoid overlap
with the conditions under which an
individual or family living in a hotel or
motel qualifies as homeless under
paragraph (1)(ii) of the “homeless”
definition (section 103(a)(3) of the
McKinney-Vento Act).

The fifth risk factor, “lives in severely
overcrowded housing,” is interpreted as
“lives in a single-room occupancy or
efficiency apartment unit in which more
than two persons, on average, reside or
another type of housing in which there
reside more than 1.5 persons per room,
as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau.”

The sixth risk factar, “is exiting an
institution,” is interpreted as “‘a

publicly funded institution or system of
care, such as a health-care facility,
mental health facility, foster care or
other youth facility, or correction
program or institution.” This language
is derived from section 406 of the
McKinney-Vento Act to include all
public institutions and systems of care
from which people may be discharged
into homelessness.

The seventh risk factor, “otherwise
lives in housing that has characteristics
associated with instability and an
increased risk of homelessness,”
remains as is, but requires the particular
housing characteristics to be identified
in the recipient’s HUD-approved
consolidated plan. This requirement
strives to balance the need for consistent
application of this risk factor with
sensitivity to the differences in the
conditions of each community’s housing
stock.

The second and third categories under
which individuals and families may
qualify as “at risk of homelessriess” are
based on the last sentence of section
401(1) of the McKinney-Vento Act,
which provides that the term “at risk of
homelessness” includes all families
with children and youth defined as
homeless under other federal statutes.
The term “families with children and
youth defined as homeless under other
federal statutes” is defined under
section 401(7) of the McKinney-Vento
Act. Section 401(7) provides that this
term means “any children or youth that
are defined as ‘homeless’ under any
Federal statute other than this subtitle,
but are not defined as homeless under
section 103, and shall also include the
parent, parents, or guardian of such
children or youth under subtitle B of
title VII this Act (42 U.S.C. 11431 et
seq.).”

%‘or the sake of clarity, the definition
of “‘at risk of homelessness” this interim
rule uses separate categories to describe

_the children and youth defined as

homeless under other federal statutes
and to describe the children and youth
defined as homeless under subtitle B of
title VII of the McKinney-Vento Act and
their parent{s) or guardian(s). In light of
comments received in response to the
proposed rule concerning the definition
of “homeless” HUD has provided
specific citations to the other federal
statutes that are applicable to the first of
these two categories. As for the last
category, the interim rule clarifies that
the parent(s) or guardian(s) of the
children or youth defined as homeless
under subtitle B of title VII of the
McKinney-Vento Act must be living
with those children or youth to qualify
as “‘at risk of homelessness” under that
category.
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Emergency shelter. This interim rule
revises certain definitions currently
found in the existing part 576
regulations. The definition of
“emergency shelter” has been revised to
distinguish this type of shelter from
transitional housing. This distinction is
necessitated by the McKinney-Vento
Act’s explicit distinction between what
activities can or cannot be funded under
the Continuum of Care program and the
Rural Housing Stability program (see
section 423(a)(2) and section
491(b)(1)(E) of the McKinney-Vento
Act). However, under the definition, any
project that received funding in FY 2010
as an emergency shelter may continue to
be funded under the ESG program,
regardless of whether the project meets
the revised definition.

Homeless, The interim rule includes
the definition of “homeless” which is
made final by the Defining Homeless
rule, published elsewhere in today’s
Federal Register. No further public
comment is being solicited or taken on
this definition.

Metropolitan city. This interim rule
revises the definition of “metropolitan
city” to clarify that the definition
includes the District of Columbia, since
the McKinney-Vento Act includes the
District of Columbia in both its
definitions of “state” and “metropolitan
city”, HUD has decided to resolve this
conflict in favor of treating the District
of Columbia under the ESG program as
a metropolitan city, This interpretation
will provide the District of Columbia
with the flexibility afforded to
metropolitan cities and urban counties
for carrying out activities directly, rather
than being compelled to subgrant all
ESG funds. In addition, the definition of
“territory” in 24 CFR 576.3 has been
updated to exclude the Trust Territory
of the Pacific Islands, which is no longer
a U.S., territory.

Private nonprofit organization; unit of
general purpose local government. The
changes to the definitions of “private
nonprofit organization” and “unit of
general local government” are intended
to make clear that governmental
organizations, such as public housing
agencies or state or local housing
finance agencies, are not eligible
subrecipients under the ESG program.
To recognize these entities under either
definition would be inconsistent with
section 411 of the McKinney-Vento Act,
which refers specifically to “private
nonprofit organizations” and “unit of
general purpose local government.”

Recipient and subrecipient. In the
interim rule, the terms ‘“‘recipient” and
“‘subrecipient” replace the existing
terminology for entities that received
grants and subgrants under the ESG

program. Under the McKinney-Vento
Act, “recipient” means ‘“‘any
governmental or private nonprofit entity
approved by the Secretary [of HUD] as
to financial responsibility” (Sec. 42
U.S.C. 11371(6)). The interim rule
clarifies that “recipient” means any
state, territory, metropolitan city, or
urban county, or in the case of
reallocation, any unit of general purpose
local government, approved by HUD to
assume financial responsibility and
which enters into a grant agreement
with HUD to administer Emergency
Solutions Grant (ESG}. Private nonprofit
organizations are excluded from the
definition, because they are not direct
recipients under the program. The
interim rule defines “subrecipient” as
any unit of general purpose local
government or private nonprofit
organization to which a recipient
awards ESG grant funds.

Allocation of Funding (Section 576.3)

Under the interim rule, the existing
set-aside of funding for the territories
has been changed for the Emergency
Solutions Grant program to “up to 0.2
percent, but not less than 0.1 percent”
of the total fiscal year appropriation for
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG). This
change provides HUD with greater
administrative discretion if there are
significant increases in the annual
appropriations for ESG. In addition, the
formula for distributing the set-aside
among the territories has been modified
for this program to incorporate the rate
at which each territory has completed
its expenditures by the previous
expenditure deadline. In all other
respects, the allocation of funding will
remain the same as the current practice.

Eligible Activities (Subpart B)

The major changes to this subpart of
part 576 include the addition of an
annual funding cap on street outreach
and emergency shelter activities;
clarification of the eligible costs for
street outreach and emergency shelter
activities; the expansion of the
homelessness prevention component of
the program and addition of a new rapid
re-housing assistance component, which
both include rental assistance and
housing relocation and stabilization
services; expansion of the range of
eligible administrative costs; and the
addition of a new category of eligible
activities for Homeless Management
Information Systems (HMIS), to the
extent that costs are necessary to meet
the new HMIS participation
requirement under the McKinney-Vento
Act.

General Provisions. In general, the
interim rule allows ESG funds to be

used for five program components
(street outreach, emergency shelter,
homelessness prevention, rapid re-
housing assistance, and HMIS) and
necessary administrative costs.
However, in accordance with the
McKinney-Vento Act, some restrictions
apply to the amounts that can be spent
on street outreach, emergency shelter,
and administrative costs. Funds used for
street outreach and emergency shelter
activities will be limited to the greater
of 60 percent of the recipient’s total
fiscal year grant for ESG or the hold-
harmless amount established by the
section 415(b) of the McKinney-Vento
Act (“the amount expended by [the
recipient] for such activities during
fiscal year most recently completed
before effective date under section 1503
of the [HEARTH Act}”). To reasonably
and practicably implement the statute’s
hold-harmless language, the interim rule
makes the hold-harmless amount the
amount of FY 2010 grant funds
committed for street outreach and
emergency shelter activities in FY 2010,

In accordance with the amendments
to the McKinney-Vento Act, the interim
rule provides that the total funds that
can be spent on administrative activities
are 7.5 percent of the recipient’s ESG
grant. In addition, the interim rule
clarifies that, subject to the cost
principles in Office of Management and
Budget (OMB}) Circulars A-87 (2 CFR
part 225) and A-122 (2 CFR part 230),1
employee compensation and other
overhead costs directly related to
carrying out street outreach, emergency
shelter, homelessness prevention, rapid
re-housing, and HMIS activities are
eligible costs of those activities and not
subject to the spending limit for
administrative costs. This clarification
is in response to questions and concerns
raised by HPRP grantees and
subgrantees and the recent U.S.
Government Accountability Office
(GAO) study, Homelessness:
Information on Administrative Costs for
HUD’s Emergency Shelter Grants
Program (GAO-10-491).2

Street outreach and emergency shelter
components. Consistent with section
415(a)(2) of the McKinney-Vento Act,
the interim rule clarifies that the costs
of essential services related to street
outreach are eligible costs under the
ESG program. The eligible costs for
street outreach activities differ from the
eligible costs for essential services

10OMB Circular A-87 and the regulations at 2 CFR
part 225 pertain to ““Cost Principles for State, Local,
and Indian Tribal Governments.” OMB Circular A—-
122 and the regulations codified at 24 CFR part 230
pertain to “Cost Principles for Non-Profit
Organizations.”

2 See http://www.gao.gov/new.items/d10491.pdf.
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related to emergency shelter, as they are
limited to those necessary to provide
emergency care on the street. To the
extent possible, essential services
related to emergency shelter and street
outreach are the same as the eligible
costs for supportive services under the
Continuum of Care program. This
consistency across these three sets of
services is intended to improve
understanding of the programs’
requirements, facilitate coordination,
and maximize efficiency.

The interim rule revises the eligible
costs for operating emergency shelters
by removing the limit on staff costs,
adding the cost of supplies, and
allowing the cost of a hotel or motel stay
under certain conditions.

The interim rule clarifies the
“maintenance of effort” requirement in
two respects. First, the references to
new service and quantifiable increase in
services are eliminated in favor of
simply prohibiting a unit of general
purpose local government from using
ESG funds to replace funds the local
government provided for street outreach
or emergency shelter services during the
immediately preceding 12-month
period, unless HUD determines that the
unit of general purpose local
government is in a severe financial
deficit. Second, the interim rule
specifies how this determination would
be made.

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid
Re-Housing Components, HUD has
interpreted sections 415(a}(4) and (5) of
the McKinney-Vento Act to authorize
ESG funds to be used for short- and
medium-term rental assistance and
housing relocation and stabilization
services for homelessness prevention
and rapid re-housing of homeless
individuals and families into permanent
housing. Consistent with this
interpretation and to serve HUD’s
programmatic goals, the interim rule
categorizes the eligible activities under
sections 415(a)(4) and (5) of the
McKinney-Vento Act under two
program components—one for
homelessness prevention and one for
rapid re-housing assistance. This
organization is intended to be function/
outcome-focused and helps emphasize
the integral relationship between rental
assistance and housing relocation and
stabilization services in both
homelessness prevention and rapid re-
housing assistance. This organization
also provides for differentiation between
the conditions for providing
homelessness prevention and the
conditions for providing rapid re-
housing assistance. These conditions are
intended to facilitate the strategic and
efficient targeting of resources.

Housing Relocation and Stabilization
Services. The eligible costs and
requirements for providing housing
relocation and stabilization services are
based on HUD'’s experience in
developing and administering HPRP.
For the purpose of determining
compliance with the statutory limit on
street outreach and emergency shelter
activities, housing stability case
management and legal services are
distinguished from the case
management and legal services in the
essential services sections of street
outreach and emergency shelter by
when and for what purpose the case
management and legal services are
provided. Note that “*housing relocation
and stabilization services,”” the name of
which comes from section 415(a)(5) of
the McKinney-Vento Act, are not to be
confused with the relocation assistance
and payments required under the
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisition Policies Act of
1970 (URA) (42 U.S.C. 4601-4655).
Costs arising under the URA are eligible
for federal financial assistance in the
same manner and to the same extent as
other program or project costs (see 42
U.S.C. 4631(a}}, and are separately listed
at § 576.102 of this interim rule.

Short-term and Medium-term Rental
Assistance. Consistent with HPRP, HUD
has interpreted short-term rental
assistance to be up to 3 months of
assistance. Unlike HPRP, HUD has
interpreted medium-term rental
assistance to be up to 24 months. This
change is intended for consistency with
the period for transitional housing in
the Continuum of Care (CoC) program.

The requirements for short- an
medium-term rental assistance require
that a program participant and a
housing owner have a written lease for
the provision of rental assistance. In
addition, the interim rule also requires
a rental assistance agreement between
the recipient or subrecipient and the
housing owner, Similar to HPRP, the
interim rule gives Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG) recipients broad discretion
in determining the type, amount, and
duration of rental assistance a program
participant can receive for homelessness
prevention or rapid re-housing
assistance. But where HPRP allows only
tenant-based rental assistance, the
interim rule allows rental assistance to
be tenant-based or project-based, as
provided under section 415(a)(4) of the
McKinney-Vento Act. However, the
requirements for project-based rental
assistance under this interim rule have
been specially designed to
accommodate both the impermanent
nature of the rental assistance and the
program goal of helping people quickly

re-enter permanent housing and achieve
long-term stability in that housing. For
example, instead of requiring an
individual or family to move from an
assisted unit when the individual or
family’s assistance ends, the interim
rule provides for the assistance to be
suspended, terminated, or transferred to
another unit.

HUD specifically requests comments
on how short- to medium-term project-
based rental assistance can best be
fashioned to avoid forcing each program
participant to move at the end of the
program participant’s term of assistance
and to make project-based rental
assistance a feasible and useful
alternative to tenant-based rental
assistance.

Similar to the rules of other HUD
housing programs, the interim rule
prohibits renta) assistance from being
provided for a housing unit, unless the
total rent for the unit does not exceed
the fair market rent established by HUD,
as provided under 24 CFR 982.503, and
complies with HUD’s standard of rent
reasonableness, as established under 24
CFR 982.507, These rent restrictions are
intended to make sure that program
participants can remain in their housing
after their ESG assistance ends.

HMIS Component. Section 416(f) of
the McKinney-Vento Act requires for
the first time that projects receiving
funding under Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG) program participate in an
HMIS. The interim rule makes certain
HMIS costs eligible to the extent
necessary to enable this participation.
HUD will soon be publishing a
proposed rule on HMIS to establish in
24 CFR part 580, the regulations that
will govern HMIS., In addition to
establishing HMIS regulations in a new
part 580 provisions, the HMIS rule will
propose corresponding amendments to
this interim rule regarding the use of
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds
for HMIS and the incorporation of the
requirements under part 580 that will
applgr to ESG recipients.

Administrative Activities. Under this
interim rule, the eligible costs for
administrative activities have been
expanded to reflect most of the eligible
administrative costs under the CDBG
program. The revisions to the sharing
requirement also clarify that, although
not required, funds for administrative
costs may be shared with private
nonprofit organizations, and a
reasonable amount must be shared with
units of general purpose local
government. This clarification is made
in response to grantee and subgrantee
concerns and questions raised through
the recent GAO report, Homelessness:
Information on Administrative Costs for
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HUD’s Emergency Shelter Grants
Program (GAO-10-491).

Indirect Costs. This interim rule
reflects HUD’s decision to adopt a
consistent policy for indirect costs for
the Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG),
Continuum of Care and Rural Housing
Stability Programs, in response to
further grantee and subgrantee questions
and concerns. The interim rule provides
that Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
funds may be used to pay indirect costs
in accordance with OMB Circulars A-87
(2 CFR part 225) and A-122 (2 CFR part
230), as applicable. Indirect costs may
be allocated to each eligible activity, so
long as the allocation is consistent with
an indirect cost rate proposal developed
in accordance with OMB Circulars A-87
(2 CFR part 225) and A-122 (2 CFR part
230), as applicable. The indirect costs
charged to an activity subject to an
expenditure limit must be added to the
direct costs charged for that activity
when determining the total costs subject
to the expenditure limit.

Award and Use of Grant Amounts
(Subpart C)

The major changes to this subpart
include clarification of the submission
requirements for territories, elaboration
of the matching requirements,
clarification of the obligation
requirements, and the addition of
minimum requirements for making
timely drawdowns and payments to
subrecipients.

Submission Requirements, The
application requirements generally
remain the same as the current
application requirements, except that
territories will be required to submit a
consolidated plan in accordance with
the requirements that apply to local
governments under HUD’s Consolidated
Plan regulations codified in 24 CFR part
91. The interim rule also clarifies that
certain changes in the recipients’
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)

- programs require an amendment to the
consolidated plan in accordance with 24
CFR 91.505,

Matching Requirements, The revisions
to the matching contribution
requirements (and recordkeeping
requirements related to the matching
requirements) integrate the matching
requirements in 24 CFR 85,24 3 and
provide further clarification on how
matching contributions must be
counted. The interim rule also specifies
that program income is to be used as a
match, rather than being treated as an

* HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR part 85 address
administrative requirements for grants and
cooperative agreements to state, local, and federally
recognized Indian tribal governments.

addition to the (ESG) grant, because of
the sizable matching requirement in
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG).
Obligation, expenditure, and payment
requirements. The interim rule clarifies
the obligation of funds requirements
and imposes new expenditure-of-funds
requirements. The interim rule requires
the recipient to draw down its funds
from each year’s allocation not less than
once during each quarter of the
recipient’s program year. This
requirement is based on HUD’s
experience in administering homeless
assistance grants, and is intended to
ensure the timely reimbursements from
HUD to recipients. In addition, the
recipient (and its subrecipients that are
units of general purpose local
government) will be required to make
timely payments to each of its
subrecipients within 30 days after the
date of receiving the subrecipient’s
complete payment request. This
requirement is also based on HUD's
experience in administering homeless
assistance grants and is intended to
ensure timely payment of private

nonprofit organizations, which may not

be able to cover their expenses for as
long a period as state and local
governments. As in the Emergency
Shelter Grants program, all of the
recipient’s grant must be expended for
eligible activity costs within 24 months
after the date HUD signs the grant
agreement with the recipient.

Reallocation (Subpart D)

The interim rule makes substantial
changes to the Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG) reallocation provisions in
order to improve administrative
efficiency. For example, if the amount of
unused or returned funds is not
sufficient to justify the administrative
burden of reallocating those funds,
whether for HUD or ESG recipients, the
interim rule provides for those funds to
be added to the next fiscal year
allocation.

Program Requirements (Subpart E)

The major changes to this subpart
include the addition of new
requirements that facilitate coordination
at the state and local levels as a means
to prevent and reduce homelessness;
elaboration on the requirements
concerning the integration and use of
appropriate assistance and services,
termination of assistance, habitability
standards, and conflicts of interest;
modification of the homeless
participation requirement to reasonably
and practicably implement the statutory
requirement; and clarification of the
applicable requirements under other
federal laws and regulations,

Systems coordination. Consistent
with sections 402(f) and 413(b) of the
McKinney-Vento Act, the interim rule
contains a new requirement for
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
recipients to consult with Continuums
of Care in allocating funds for eligible
activities; developing performance
standards, evaluating outcomes of
(ESG)-assisted projects and developing
funding, policies, and procedures for
the administration and operation of the
HMIS. This requirement will be
discussed in further detail in regard to
the revisions of the consolidated
planning requirements at 24 CFR part 91
(section IL.B of this preamble).

The interim rule requires ESG
recipients and subrecipients to
coordinate and integrate, to the
maximum extent practicable, ESG-
funded activities with other programs
targeted toward homeless people, as
well as mainstream housing, health,
social services, employment, education,
and youth programs for which families
and individuals at risk of homelessness
and homeless individuals and families
may be eligible. These requirements are
consistent with recurring HUD
appropriations language for the
homeless assistance grants and with the
Federal Strategic Plan to Prevent and
End Homelessness (FSP).4

Centralized or coordinated
assessment. This interim rule
introduces a proposed requirement for
ESG recipients and subrecipients to use
a centralized or coordinated system to
initially assess the eligibility and needs
of each individual or family who seeks
homeless assistance or homelessness
prevention assistance. This centralized
or coordinated assessment system
would be developed and implemented
by the Continuum of Care in accordance
with minimum requirements to be
established by HUD. HUD is currently
developing its minimum requirements
for these systems and will present these
requirements for public review and
comment in the upcoming proposed
rule for the Continuum of Care program.
Please note that this interim rule does
not require any ESG recipient or
subrecipient to use a centralized or
coordinated assessment system until the
Continuum of Care program final rule
has been published and until the
Continuum of Care for the area develops
and implements a system that meets the
minimum requirements in that final
rule.

Through the administration of the
Rapid Re-Housing for Families
Demonstration program and the

+See http://www.usich.gov/PDF/
OpeningDoors_2010_FSPPreventEndHomeless.pdf.
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Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-
Housing Program, as well as best
practices identified in communities,
HUD has learned that centralized or
coordinated assessment systems are
important in ensuring the success of
homeless assistance and homeless
prevention programs in communities. In
particular, such assessment systems
help communities systematically assess
the needs of program participants and
effectively match each individual or
family with the most appropriate
resources available to address that
individual or family’s particular needs.

Therefore, HUD intends to require
each Continuum of Care to develop and
implement a centralized or coordinated
assessment system in its geographic
area. Such a system must be designed
locally in response to local needs and
conditions. For example, rural areas will
have significantly different systems than
urban ones, While the common thread
between typical models is the use of a
common assessment tool (such as a
valnerability index), the form, detail,
and use of that tool will vary from one
community to the next. Some examples
of centralized or coordinated assessment
systems include: A central location or
locations within a geographic area
where individuals and families must
present for homeless services; a 211 or
other hotline system that screens and
directly connects callers to appropriate
homeless housing/service providers in
the area; a “no wrong door” approach in
which a homeless family or individual
can present at any homeless service
provider in the geographic area but is
assessed using the same tool and
methodology so that referrals are
consistently completed across the
Continuum of Care; a specialized team
of case workers that provides
assessment services to providers within
the Continuum of Care; or in larger
geographic areas, a regional approach in
which “hubs” are created within
smaller geographic areas.

HUD recognizes that imposing a
requirement for a centralized or
coordinated assessment system may
have certain costs and risks. Among the
risks that HUD wishes specifically to
address are the risks facing individuals
and families fleeing domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, and
stalking. In developing the baseline
requirements for a centralized or
coordinated intake system, HUD is
considering whether victim service
providers should be exempt from

" participating in a local centralized or

coordinated assessment process, or
whether victim service providers should
have the option to participate or not.
HUD is seeking comment specifically

from ESG-funded victim service
providers on this question. HUD also
plans to require each Continuum of Care
to develop a specific policy on how its
particular system will address the needs
of individuals and families who are
fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, but who are seeking
shelter or services from non-victim
service providers. These policies could
include reserving private areas at an
assessment location for evaluations of
individuals or families who are fleeing,
or attempting to flee, domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking; a separate “track” within the
assessment framework that is
specifically designed for domestic
violence victims; or the co-location of
victim service providers with
centralized assessment teams.

HUD invites suggestions for ensuring
that the requirements it imposes
regarding centralized or coordinated
assessment systems will best help
communities use their resources
effectively and best meet the needs of all
families and individuals who need
assistance. Some specific questions
HUD asks commenters to address are:
What barriers to accessing housing/
services might a centralized or
coordinated intake system pose to
victims of domestic violence? How can
those barriers be eliminated? What
specific measures should be
implemented to ensure safety and
confidentiality for individuals and
families who are fleeing or attempting to
flee domestic violence situations? How
should those additional standards be
implemented to ensure that victims of
domestic violence have immediate
access to housing and services without
increasing the burden on those victims?
For communities that already have
centralized or coordinated assessment
systems in place, are victims of
domestic violence and/or domestic
violence service providers integrated
into that system? In either scenario {they
are integrated into an assessment
process or they are not integrated into
it}, how does your community ensure
the safety and confidentiality of this
population, as well as access to
homeless housing and services? What
HUD-sponsored training would be
helpful to assist communities in
completing the initial assessment of
victims of domestic violence in a safe
and confidential manner?

In addition to comments addressing
the needs of victims of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, and stalking, HUD invites
general comments on the use of a
centralized or coordinated assessment

system, particularly from those in
communities that have already
implemented one of these systems who
can share both what has worked well
and how these systems could be
improved. HUD specifically seeks
comment on any additional risks that a
centralized or coordinated assessment
system may create for victims of
domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, or stalking who are
seeking emergency shelter services due
to immediate danger, regardless of
whether they are seeking services
through a victim service provider or
non-victim service provider.

Standards for administering
assistance and minimum assistance
requirements. As discussed later in this
preamble with respect to the revisions
to HUD’s Consolidated Plan regulations
in 24 CFR part 91, this interim rule
requires a number of written standards
to be established by recipients and
subrecipients for administering ESG
assistance, in order to balance the broad
discretion given to recipients in
developing street outreach, emergency
shelter, rapid re-housing, and
homelessness prevention programs to
accommodate the unique needs, .
strengths, and other characteristics of
their communities.

The interim rule also specifies that all
program participants must be assisted as
needed in obtaining services and
financial assistance through other
homeless and public assistance
programs. Furthermore, each program
participant receiving homelessness
prevention or rapid re-housing
assistance must be required to meet
regularly with a case manager (except
where prohibited by Violence Against
Women Act (VAWA) and the Family
Violence Prevention and Services Act
(FVPSA)}, and the assistance provider
must develop an individualized plan to
help that program participant retain
permanent housing after the ESG
assistance ends. These requirements are
intended to help ensure that the ESG-
funded emergency, short-term or
medium-term assistance will be
effective in helping program
participants regain long-term housing
stability and avoid relapses into
homelessness.

Terminating Assistance. If a program
participant who receives ESG assistance
violates program requirements, the
recipient or subrecipient may terminate
the assistance in accordance with a
formal process established by the
recipient or subrecipient that protects
the rights of the individuals affected.
This applies to all forms of ESG
assistance, In this interim rule, HUD
enhances the minimum process
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requirements for the termination of
homelessness prevention or rapid re-
housing assistance, in order to reflect
the process set forth in the Supportive
Housing Program (SHP) regulations.
These enhanced process requirements
are prompted by the longer duration and
higher expectations involved in
homelessness prevention and rapid re-
housing assistance, as compared to the
duration and expectations involved in
street outreach or emergency shelter
activities,

To terminate rental assistance or
housing relocation and stabilization
services to a program participant, the
minimum required formal process must
consist of a written notice to the
program participant containing a clear
statement of the reasons for termination,
a review of the decision, and a prompt
written notice of the final decision to
the program participant. The review of
the decision must give the program
participant the opportunity to present
written or oral objections before a
person other than the person (or a
subordinate of that person) who made or
approved the termination decision. In
addition, the interim rule provides that
the recipient or subrecipient may
resume assistance to a family or
individual whose assistance has been
terminated.

Shelter and Housing Standards. The
revised habitability standards
incorporate lead-based paint
remediation and disclosure
requirements. The revised standards for
emergency shelters require all shelters
to meet minimum habitability standards
adopted from the SHP regulations and
current Emergency Solutions Grant
guidance. Shelters renovated with ESG
funds are also required to meet state or
local government safety and sanitation -
standards, as applicable, include
energy-efficient appliances and
materials. If ESG funds are used to help
a program participant remain in or move
into permanent housing, that housing
must meet habitability standards.

Conflicts of Interest. This interim rule
clarifies the existing personal conflicts-
of-interest provision by incorporating
language from the CDBG program
regulation, In addition, the interim rule
adds a new provision to reduce
organizational conflicts of interest,
based on HUD’s experience in
administering HPRP.

Homeless Participation. The interim
rule revises the current homeless
participation requirement so that if a
recipient is unable to meet the
participation of homeless individuals
requirement in section 416(d) of the
McKinney-Vento Act, the recipient need
not submit and obtain HUD approval of

a formal waiver request, so long as the
recipient develops a plan to consult
with homeless or formerly homeless
individuals in considering and making
policies and decisions regarding any
facilities, services, or other assistance
that receive ESG funding; includes the
plan in its annual action plan to be
submitted under 24 CFR part 91; and
obtains HUD’s approval of its annual
action plan. This revision is intended to
reduce administrative burden to both
recipients and to HUD.

Other Federal Requirements. In
general, the revisions to the section on
“other Federal requirements” clarify the
degree to which certain requirements
are applicable, remove certain
requirements that are redundant or
moved elsewhere in the rule for
improved organizational purposes, and
change certain requirements to

- correspond with changes in the

McKinney-Vento Act or other changes
made by this interim rule. Chief among
these changes is the change to the
environmental review requirements in
accordance with the HEARTH Act’s
repeal of section 443 of the McKinney-
Vento Act. Under this interim rule,
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
activities would be made subject to
environmental review by HUD under
HUD’s environmental regulations in 24
CFR part 50, and HUD’s environmental
regulations in 24 CFR part 58 will no
lon%:ar be applicable to such activities.

The interim rule does not retain the
provision in the current Emergency
Shelter Grants program regulation
specifying that for purposes of this
program, the term “dwelling units”
under 24 CFR part 8 includes “sleeping
accommodations.” The language is
being removed because it did not
provide grantees with direction on how
to apply this provision. Nevertheless,
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 and HUD’s implementing
regulations at 24 CFR part 8 apply to the
Emergency Solutions Grants program,
including accessibility requirements
under Subpart C—Program
Accessibility. A recipient shall operate
each existing program or activity
receiving federal financial assistance so
that the program or activity, when
viewed in its entirety, is readily
accessible to and usable by individuals
with disabilities. Grantees are also
required to provide reasonable
accommodations for persons with
disabilities in order to enable program
participants with a disability to have an
equal opportunity to participate in the
program or activity.

Grantees that undertake alterations to
shelters may be subject to additional
accessibility requirements in accordance

with 24 CFR part 8. In certain instances,
recipients undertaking alterations may
be required to ensure that 5 percent of
the total sleeping areas, such as 5
percent {or at least one) of the sleeping
rooms where a number of sleeping
rooms are provided, and 5 percent {or at
least one) of the total number of
sleeping areas, such as beds, where a
number of beds are provided in a room,
are accessible for persons with mobility
impairments and that an additional 2
percent of the total individual sleeping
areas are accessible for persons with
visual impairments. The Americans
with Disabilities Act may also apply and
require a greater level of accessibility in
certain shelters.

Relocation and Acquisition. The
interim rule updates the relocation and
acquisition requirements and makes
them more consistent with the
requirements in other HUD programs.
Section 576.102 specifies that the cost of
providing relocation assistance and
payments arising out of the Uniform Act
(URA) is an eligible activity, as per
section 211 of the URA (42 U.S.C.
4631(a)). Temporary relocation and
other alternatives to minimize
displacement in other HUD programs
that provide permanent housing are
inapplicable due to the nature of the
ESG program. Emergency shelters
assisted under the ESG program provide
temporary shelter for the homeless.
Existing tenants would not fall within
the program definition of “homeless.”
Section 576.408(b) provides that
temporary relocation is not an available
alternative to permanently displacing a
tenant who moves as a direct result of
acquisition, demolition, or
rehabilitation for a project assisted with
ESG funds. Additionally, §576.408(b)
provides that an agency cannot avoid
treating such tenant as a displaced
person by offering the tenant a unit in
the same building/complex upon project
completion. Finally, § 576.408(d) of the
interim rule clearly states that the URA
applies to an acquisition undertaken in
connection with an ESG-assisted project
irrespective of the source of funding for
the acquisition.

Grant Administration (Subpart F)

The changes to this subpart
substantially revise the Emergency
Solutions Grant (ESG) recordkeeping
and reporting requirements and the
enforcement provisions. The changes to
the recordkeeping requirements include
the addition of specific documentation
requirements to demonstrate
compliance with ESG regulations, as
well as new requirements regarding
record retention periods,
confidentiality, and rights of access to
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records. The reporting requirements and
the enforcement provisions are each
expanded and further clarified.

Recordkeeping and reporting
requirements. Grant recipients under
the ESG program have always been
required to show compliance with the
program’s regulations through
appropriate records. However, the
existing regulations for the Emergency
Shelter Grants program are not specific
about the records to be maintained. The
interim rule elaborates upon the
recordkeeping requirements to provide
sufficient notice and clarify the
documentation that HUD requires for
assessing compliance with the new
requirements of the program. The
recordkeeping requirements for
documenting homeless status were
published in the proposed rule for the
homeless definition.’ Recordkeeping
requirements with similar levels of
specificity will apply to documentation
of “at risk of homelessness” and
“‘annual income.” Further requirements
are modeled after the recordkeeping
requirements for the HOME Investment
Partnerships program (24 CFR 92.508)
and other HUD regulations.

Included along with these changes are
new or expanded requirements
regarding confidentiality, rights of
access to records, record retention
periods, and reporting requirements.
Most significantly, to protect the safety
and privacy of all program participants,
the interim rule broadens program’s
confidentiality requirements. The
McKinney-Vento Act only requires
procedures to ensure the confidentiality
of records pertaining to any individual
provided family violence prevention or
treatment services under the ESG
program. The intérim rule requires
written procedures to ensure the
security and confidentiality of all
records containing personally
identifying information of any
individual or family who applies for
and/or receives Emergency Solutions
Grant {(ESG) assistance.

Enforcement. The interim rule revises
the sanctions section under the existing
regulations for the Emergency Shelter
Grants program, including the heading
of the section on sanctions, to
strengthen the enforcement procedures
and the array of remedial actions and
sanctions for recipients and
subrecipients of Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG) funds. These revisions draw
from the requirements at 24 CFR 85.43
and other HUD program regulations.

5 See the April 20, 2010, edition of the Federal
Register at 75 FR 20544.

B. Consolidated Submissions for
Community Planning and Development
Programs (24 CFR Part 91)

In addition to revising regulations for
the Emergency Shelter Grants program
at 24 CFR part 576 to establish the
regulations for Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG), this interim rule revises
selected sections of the consolidated
planning regulations at 24 CFR part 91,
in order to reflect both the HEARTH Act
amendments to the McKinney-Vento
Act and significant developments in
HUD’s homelessness policies and
program administration over the last 15
years. In developing and implementing
the Continuum of Care concept through
the annual notices of funding
availability (NOFAs) for its competitive
programs, HUD sought to establish and
standardize complementary planning
requirements between the homeless
components of the Consolidated Plan
and the annual submission of the
Continuum of Care Plan. The structure
of the annual Continuum of Care Plan
(CoC) plan and the plan’s sections on
community participation, needs
assessment, inventory of housing and
services, strategies, annual application,
and performance were developed to
harmonize with the Consolidated Plan’s
homelessness components. Many
communities closely aligned the
Consolidated Plan and the Continuum
of Care Plan (CoC) Plan covering their
jurisdiction.

The HEARTH Act amendments to the
McKinney-Vento Act contain provisions
requiring coordination, collaboration,
and consultation between Continuums
of Care and ESG state and local
government recipients. The McKinney-
Vento Act requires “collaborative
applicants” under the Continuum of
Care program to participate in the .
Consolidated Plan for the geographic
areas they serve and analyze patterns of
use and evaluate outcomes for ESG
projects in those areas. ESG recipients
in turn must consult with these
collaborative applicants on the
allocation of ESG funds and participate
in HMIS, which the collaborative
applicants are required to establish.

In describing these and related
requirements for cross-program
coordination, this interim rule uses the

_term “Continuum of Care” instead of

“collaborative applicant.” The interim
rule defines “‘Continuum of Care” as the
group composed of representatives of
relevant organizations, which generally
includes nonprofit homeless providers;
victim service providers; faith-based
organizations; governments; businesses;
advocates; public housing agencies;
school districts; social service providers;

mental health agencies; hospitals;
universities; affordable housing
developers; law enforcement;
organizations that serve homeless and
formerly homeless veterans, and
homeless and formerly homeless
persons that are organized to plan for
and provide, as necessary, a system of
outreach, engagement, and assessment;
emergency shelter; rapid re-housing;
transitional housing; permanent
housing; and prevention strategies to
address the various needs of homeless
persons and persons at risk of
homelessness for a specific geographic
area.

The use of “Continuum of Care”
instead of “collaborative applicant” is
intended to maintain consistency with
the terminology HUD has established
and grantees have become familiar with
in the Continuum of Care planning
process for the Supportive Housing
program, the Shelter Plus Care program,
and the Moderate Rehabilitation/Single
Room Occupancy program. The term
“collaborative applicant,” as used in the
McKinney-Vento Act, covers two
distinct entities under the existing
Continuum of Care planning process:
One entity whose function is planning
and facilitating collaboration and
another entity whose function is
applying for and managing the homeless
assistance grant. Because HUD has
always called the planning entity the
Continuum of Care, HUD is continuing
that practice in this interim rule.

The interim rule strengthens and
standardizes the homelessness elements
affecting all jurisdictions required to
submit a Consolidated Plan. The
changes to the Consolidated Plan
sections on homelessness have been
guided by the larger purposes of the
HEARTH Act and the principles and
priorities put forth in the Federal
Strategic Plan to Prevent and End
Homelessness (FSP). The changes to the
Consolidated Plan will foster closer
coordination between not only
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) and
Continuum of Care (CoC) programs, but
other mainstream housing and services
programs that can provide greater
resources to homeless persons and
people at imminent risk of
homelessness.

Definitions. The Consolidated Plan
regulations are modified to add and
revise this section to conform to
definitions used in this interim rule for
24 CFR part 576 and the proposed rule
that will soon be published for the
Continuum of Care program. A
definition of rapid re-housing assistance
is added to bring coverage of general
homeless assistance models in 24 CFR
part 91 up-to-date, Other definitions are
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eliminated because they will no longer
be used in part 91 after the changes in
the regulations to the McKinney-Vento
Act programs.

HUD specifically invites comments
regarding the definition of chronically
homeless. The McKinney-Vento Act
defines “‘chronically homeless” as an
individual or family who: (i) Is
homeless and lives or resides in a place
not meant for human habitation, a safe
haven, or in an emergency shelter; (i)
has been homeless and living or
residing in a place not meant for human
habitation, a safe haven, or in an
emergency shelter continuously for at
least 1 year or on at least 4 separate
occasions in the last 3 years; and (iii)
has an adult head of household (or a
minor head of household if no adult is
present in the household) with a
diagnosable substance use disorder,
serious mental illness, developmental
disability (as defined in section 102 of
the Developmental Disabilities
Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of
2000 (42 U.S.C. 15002)), post traumatic
stress disorder, cognitive impairments
resulting from a brain injury, or chronic
physical illness or disability, including
the co-occurrence of 2 or more of those
conditions. Additionally, the statutory
definition includes as chronically
homeless a person who currently lives
or resides in an institutional care
facility, including a jail, substance abuse
or mental health treatment facility,
hospital or other similar facility, and
has resided there for fewer than 90 days
if such person met the other criteria for
homeless prior to entering that facility.
(See 42 U.S.C. 11360(2))

The regulatory definition of
“‘chronically homeless” does not
elaborate significantly on the statutory-
definition. However, HUD has
determined that when an individual or
family has not been continuously
homeless for at least one year but has
been homeless on at least four separate
occasions in the last 3 years, each
separate occasion must be at least 15
days in duration to ensure consistency
for counting and eligibility purposes.
HUD has determined that the 15-day
minimum is an appropriate measure to
distinguish the chronically homeless
from the homeless population in
general, so as to recognize chronically
homeless people who have spent a
significant amount of time as homeless.

The regulatory definition also clarifies
that a family will qualify as chronically
homeless if the head of household has
met all of the requirements in
paragraphs (i) through (iii) of the
statutory definition, given that a
family’s composition may fluctuate

during the course of the head of
household’s homeless experience.

Consultation: Local Governments/
States. The interim rule revises the
consultation requirements in 24 CFR
part 91 to implement the McKinney-
Vento Act’s new requirement that ESG
recipients consult with Continuums of
Care when allocating their ESG funds to
carry out eligible activities. In response
to the concerns of prospective grantees
under the Continuum of Care program,
the interim rule includes several
requirements to make it easier for
Continuums of Care to meet their
requirements under the McKinney-
Vento Act, including participating in
the Consolidated Plan for their
jurisdiction and designing a
collaborative process for evaluating the
outcomes of ESG projects. Similar
changes to facilitate the participation of
Continuums of Care (CoCs) in the
Gonsolidated Planning process are also
made to the sections on citizen
participation at 24 CFR 91.105 and
91.115. .

The consultation sections were also
revised to conform to the FSP’s
emphasis not only on chronically
homeless people, but on families with
children, veterans and their families,
and unaccompanied youth, and the
FSP’s emphasis on strengthening
collaboration with programs and entities
beyond the programs targeted to
homeless people. The consultation
sections refer specifically to “publicly
funded institutions and systems of care
that may discharge people into
homelessness (such as health-care
facilities, mental health facilities, foster
care and other youth facilities, and
corrections programs and institutions).”
This is done to be consistent with the
emphasis on discharge planning in
section 406 of the McKinney-Vento Act.
For this same reason, HUD also refers to
these publicly funded institutions and
systems of care in each section of the
interim rule that specifically addresses
the prevention of homelessness.

Housing Needs Assessment; Local
Governments/States. The interim rule
adds a new category of persons for
whom states and local jurisdictions are
required to assess housing assistance
needs: Formerly homeless families and
individuals who are receiving rapid re-
housing assistance and are nearing the
termination of that assistance. The
addition of this category is intended to
help focus communities on helping
these families stay housed after their
rapid re-housing assistance ends.

Homeless Needs Assessment; Local
Government/States. The changes under
the interim rule increase HUD’s
flexibility in establishing and modifying

standards for collecting data on
homeless populations and
subpopulations and performance
measures. The changes also provide
additional definition to the description
of the characteristics and needs of
persons who are currently housed but
threatened with homelessness. These’
changes permit HUD to more closely
harmonize data included in each
jurisdiction’s Consolidated Plan with
data that the Continuum(s) of Care for
that jurisdiction will be required to
collect and submit under the
Continuum of Care program. The
collection of consistent homeless needs
data in these two planning processes
will permit local and national
assessment of progress in meeting the
goals set forth in the FSP.

Housing Market Analysis; Facilities,
Housing, and Services for Homeless
Persons; Local Governments/States. The
interim rule allows HUD to establish
and modify descriptions of the facilities,
housing, and services forhomeless
persons to increase consistency between
the Consolidated Plan and the
Continuum of Care Plan. The interim
rule adds mainstream services to the
inventory of services meeting the needs
of homeless persons, consistent with the
overall emphasis on using and
collaborating with mainstream
assistance programs to prevent and end
homelessness. Similar to changes made
to other sections, the special focus
accorded to chronically homeless
people is broadened to include families
with children, veterans and their
families, and unaccompanied youth, in
order to reflect the priorities in the FSP.

Strategic Plan; Homelessness
Strategies; Local Government/States.
The interim rule refocuses the general
homelessness-related strategies on the
ultimate goals of reducing and ending
homelessness and aligns them with
Continuum of Care planning strategies
and performance measures, such as
shortening the period of time that
persons experience homelessness and
helping persons who were recently
homeless avoid becoming homeless
again. The changes under the interim

‘rule also emphasize the priorities of the

FSP. The strategic framework set out in
this section is carried through in
conforming changes to the Action Plan
and performance reporting sections of
the Consolidated Plan.

Action Plan; Local Government/
States. The changes to the Action Plan
sections for local governments and
States require the ESG recipient to
consult with applicable Continuums of
Care when allocating funds in the
area(s) served by the Continuum(s) of
Care and the ESG recipient and when
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developing the performance standards
for the assisted activities. These changes
reflect the McKinney-Vento Act
requirements that ESG recipients
consult with Continuums of Care on
their allocation of ESG funds and that
Continuums of Care in turn analyze
patterns of use of ESG funds and help
evaluate outcomes for ESG-funded
projects. These changes are also
consistent with the statutory scheme of
the HEARTH Act, which generally
requires increased collaboration
between Continuums of Care and ESG
recipients.

The changes under the interim rule
for the ESG portion of the action plan
require each local government seeking
an ESG grant to specify the standards
under which homelessness prevention
and rapid re-housing assistance will be
administered and describe the
centralized or coordinated assessments
system(s) that will be used. By helping
to ensure that the program is
administered fairly and methodically,
these requirements provide balance to
the broad discretion that ESG recipients
are given in the design of their ESG
programs. Including these standards in
the action plan allows the program
design to be strengthened as the plan is
developed and refined through the
consultation and citizen participation
stages in the planning process. The
requirements for states differ slightly
from those that apply to local
governments, in order to accommodate
for the restrictions on states’ use of ESG
funds and the variety of areas and
Continuums of Care their programs
encompass. Under the state programs,
the written standards for providing ESG
assistance may vary by subrecipient,
Continuum of Care, or the geographic
area over which services are
coordinated.

Certifications. The changes to the ESG
certifications clarify the certifications
and bring them into closer conformance
with the corresponding requirements
under part 576 and the McKinney-Vento
Act,

IIT. Justification for Interim
Rulemaking

In accordance with its regulations on
rulemaking at 24 CFR part 10, HUD
generally publishes its rules for advance
public comment. Notice and public
procedures may be omitted, however, if
HUD determines that, in a particular
case or class of cases, notice and public
procedure are “impracticable,
unnecessary, or contrary to the public
interest.” (See 24 CFR 10.1.)

. Inthis case, HUD has determined that
it would be contrary to the public
interest to delay promulgation of the

regulations for the Emergency Solutions
Grants program because Congress has
provided funding for this new program
in the Department of Defense and Full-
Year Continuing Appropriations Act,
2011 (Pub. L. 112-10, approved April
15, 2011} (FY 2011 Appropriations Act).
The FY 2011 Appropriations Act
appropriates, in section 2241 of the
statute, $1,905,000,000 for homeless
assistance grants, of which at least
$225,000,000 shall be for the Emergency
Solutions Grant program. While many
federal programs, including HUD
programs, received a reduction in
funding in the FY 2011 Appropriations
Act, Congress increased funding for
HUD’s homeless assistance grants, and
for the first time, authorized funding for
a program, (the Emergency Solutions
Grants program). HUD interprets this
increase in funding as recognition by
Congress of the significant needs that
remain to help America’s homeless
population and the expectation of
Congress that HUD will move
expediently to expend this funding to
assist and serve the homeless through
its programs. HUD interprets the
substantial funding, a minimum of
$225,000,000, for the Emergency
Solutions Grant program, as recognition
by Congress that this program, which is
an expansion of the predecessor
Emergency Shelter Grants program, and
includes features that were part of the
Recovery Act’s HPRP, is one that can
have an immediate impact in helping
the homeless.

Given what HUD sees as a
congressional charge to move
expediently, HUD is issuing this rule
providing for regulations for the
Emergency Solutions Grants program as
an interim rule. Interim regulations in
place will allow HUD to move forward
in making FY 2011 funds available to
grantees. As has been discussed in this
preamble, the foundation for the
regulations for the Emergency Solutions
Grants program are those of its
predecessor program, the Emergency
Shelters Grant program, regulations
with which HUD grantees are well
familiar. HUD grantees are also familiar
with the requirements of the HPRP and,
as the preamble has highlighted, this
interim rule adopts many of the features
and requirements of HPRP.

Although for the reasons stated above,
HUD is issuing this rule to take
immediate effect, HUD welcomes all
comments on this -interim rule and all
comments will be taken into .
consideration in the development of the
final rule.

IV. Findings and Certifications

Regulatory Planning and Review

OMB reviewed this rule under
Executive Order 12866, Regulatory
Planning and Review. This rule was
determined to be a “‘significant
regulatory action,” as defined in section
3(f) of the order (although not an
economically significant regulatory
action under the order). As discussed
earlier in this preamble, this interim
rule establishes the regulations for the
Emergency Solutions Grants program,
which is the successor program to the
Emergency Shelter Grants program. In
establishing the regulations for the
Emergency Solutions Grants program,
the interim rule uses as its base the
regulations for the Emergency Shelter
Grants program and makes such changes
as necessary to reflect the changes and
focus of the Emergency Solutions Grants
program. While emergency shelter
remains an important component of the
Emergency Solutions Grants program,
the new Emergency Solutions Grants
program places a greater focus on
homelessness prevention for persons at
risk of homelessness and rapid re-
housing assistance for homeless
persons. Accordingly, the rule does not
alter the fundamental goal of the
program, which is to assist those who
are homeless and in danger of becoming
homeless. Therefore, the administrative
changes made by this rule do not result
in an economic effect equal to $100
million, which would be approximately
half of the program’s funding ($225
million). HUD believes that the
administrative changes made by the
interim rule would also have no
discernible impact upon the economy.

The slight shift in emphasis from
emergency shelter in the Emergency
Shelter Grants program to homelessness -
prevention and rapid rehousing
assistance in the Emergency Solutions
Grants program does not represent a
significant regulatory change. Rapid
rehousing is already familiar to HUD’s
homeless grantee providers from
funding received under the HPRP, a
temporary program funded through the
American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act of 2009, and their experience with
this program which continues to today.
Because HPRP activities will continue
through September 30, 2012, the interim
rule is directed to ensuring continuity
between HPRP and Emergency
Solutions Grant (ESG) program.

The docket file is available for public
inspection in the Regulations Division,
Office of the General Counsel, 451 7th
Street SW., Room 10276, Washington,
DC 20410--0500. Due to security
measures at the HUD Headquarters
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building, please schedule an
appointment to review the docket file by
calling the Regulations Division at (202)
708-3055 (this is not a toll-free

number). Individuals with speech or
hearing impairments may access this
number via TTY by calling the Federal
Relay Service at (800) 877-8339.

Environmental Impact

A Finding of No Significant Impact
(FONSI) with respect to the
environment has been made in
accordance with HUD regulations at 24
CFR part 50, which implement section
102(2)(C) of the National Environmental
Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C.
4332(2)(C)). The Finding of No
Significant Impact is available for public
inspection between the hours of 8 a.m.
and 5 p.m. weekdays in the Regulations
Division, Office of General Counsel,
Department of Housing and Urban
Development, 451 7th Street SW., Room
10276, Washington, DC 20410-0500.
Due to security measures at the HUD
Headquarters building, please schedule
an appointment to review the FONSI by
calling the Regulations Division at (202)
708-3055 (this is not a toll-free
number). Individuals with speech or
hearing impairments may access this
number via TTY by calling the Federal
Information Relay Service at (800) 877~
8339.

Unfunded Mandates Reform Act

The Unfunded Mandates Reform Act
of 1995 (2 U.S.C. 1531-1538) (UMRA)
establishes requirements for federal
agencies to assess the effects of their
regulatory actions on state, local, and
tribal governments and on the private

sector. This interim rule does not
impose a federal mandate on any state,
local, or tribal government, or on the
private sector, within the meaning of
UMRA.

Regulatory Flexibility Act

The Regulatory Flexibility Act (5
U.S.C. 601 ef seq.) generally requires an
agency to conduct a regulatory
flexibility analysis of any rule subject to
notice and comment rulemaking
requirements, unless the agency certifies
that the rule will not have a significant
economic impact on a substantial
number of small entities. This rule
solely addresses the allocation and use
of grant funds under the new
McKinney-Vento Act homeless
assistance programs as consolidated and
amended by the HEARTH Act. As
discussed in the preamble, the majority
of the regulatory provisions in this rule
track the regulatory provisions of the
existing Emergency Shelter Grants
program, with which prospective
recipients of Emergency Solutions Grant
{(ESG) are familiar. Accordingly, the
transition from the Emergency Shelter
Grants program to the Emergency
Solutions Grant program, in regard to
funding and program requirements,
should raise minimal issues because
applicants and grantees are well-
familiar with these requirements and,
through the years, in soliciting
information on the burden of the
Emergency Solutions Grant
requirements, grantees have not advised
that such requirements are burdensome.
Therefore, HUD has determined that
this rule would not have a significant

economic impact on a substantial
number of small entities.

Notwithstanding that determination,
HUD specifically invites comments
regarding any less burdensome
alternatives to this rule that will meet
HUD’s objectives as described in this
preamble.

Executive Order 13132, Federalism

Executive Order 13132 (entitled
“Federalism") prohibits an agency from
publishing any rule that has federalism
implications if the rule either: (1)
Imposes substantial direct compliance
costs on state and local governments
and is not required by statute, or (2)
preempts state law, unless the agency
meets the consultation and funding
requirements of section 6 of the
Executive Order. This final rule does
not have federalism implications and
does not impose substantial direct
compliance costs on state and local
governments nor preempt state law
within the meaning of the executive
order.

Paperwork Reduction Act

The information collection
requirements contained in this interim
rule have been submitted to OMB under
the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995
(44 U.S.C. 3501-3520). In accordance
with the Paperwork Reduction Act, an
agency may not conduct or sponsor, and
a person is not required to respond to,

a collection of information, unless the
collection displays a currently valid
OMB control number.

The burden of the information
collections in this interim rule is
estimated as follows:

REPORTING AND RECORDKEEPING BURDEN

Response
: : Number of Total annual Burden hours Total annual
Information collection resuprgndents f(i:\f‘eurggg‘)’ responses per response hours
576.400(a) Consultation With Continuums of Care ........ 360 1 360 6.00 2,160
576.400(b) Coordination With Other Targeted Homeless

SEIVICES ..uveceeeeerrrcrceveernssasesressse e ssasesessessassesessenes 2,360 1 2,360 8.00 18,880
576.400(c) System and Program Coordination With

Mainstream RESOUICES ......uveureeereieconeeeereeesensssesssesssans 2,360 1 2,360 16.00 37,760
576.400(d) Centralized or Coordinated Assessment ...... 2,000 1 2,000 3.00 6,000
§76.400(e) Written Standards for Determining the

Amount of Assistance reeeeenannernaenrans 808 1 808 5.00 4,040
§76.400(f) Participation in HMIS ........ccvvvreveeeeeerereenn.n. 78,000 1 78,000 0.50 39,000
576.401(a) Initial Evaluation ...........eeeeerene.... 50,000 1 30,000 1.00 30,000
576.401(b) Recertification .........ccccecvvrvvrreerererecnn.. 20,000 2 40,000 0.50 20,000
576.401(d) Connection to Mainstream Resources 78,000 3 234,000 0.25 58,500
576.401(e) Housing Retention Plan ..................... 50,000 1 50,000 0.75 37,500
576.402 Terminating Assistance ..... 808 1 808 4.00 3,232
576.403 Habitability Review ......... 52,000 1 52,000 0.6 31,200
576.405 Homeless Participation ... 2,360 12 28,320 1.00 28,320
578.500 Recordkeeping Requirements 2,360 1 2,360 12.75 30,009
576.501(b) Remedial Actions .............. 20 1 20 8.00 160
576.501(c) Recipient Sanctions ....... 360 1 360 12.00 4,320
576.501(c) Subrecipient RESPONSE .....c.oeeveveuvveeeeresrerrens, 2,000 1 2,000 8.00 16,000
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REPORTING AND RECORDKEEPING BURDEN—Continued

Response

; ; Number of Total annual Burden hours Total annual
Information collection respondents f(':‘?;:ggg responses per response hours
LSOOl IDTOROTN VOISR [ IO 367,081

Total estimated burden hours:
367,081.

In accordance with 5 CFR
1320.8(d)(1), HUD is soliciting
comments from members of the public
and affected agencies concerning this
collection of information to:

(1) Evaluate whether the proposed
collection of information is necessary
for the proper performance of the
functions of the affected agency,
including whether the information will
have practical utility;

(2) Evaluate the accuracy of the
agency'’s estimate of the burden of the
proposed collection of information;

(3) Enhance the quality, utility, and
clarity of the information to be
collected; and

(4) Minimize the burden of the
collection of information on those who
are to respond, including through the
use of appropriate automated collection
techniques or other forms of information
technology, e.g., permitting electronic
submission of responses.

Interested persons are invited to
submit comments regarding the
information collection requirements in
this rule. Comments must refer to the
proposal by name and docket number
(FR-5474~1-01) and be sent to; HUD
Desk Officer, Office of Management and
Budget, New Executive Office Building,
Washington, DC 20503, Fax: (202) 395—
6947, and Reports Liaison Officer,
Office of the Assistant Secretary for
Community Planning and Development,
Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Room 7233, 451 Seventh
Street SW., Washington, DC 20410~
7000.

Interested persons may submit
comments regarding the information
collection requirements electronically
through the Federal eRulemaking Portal
at hitp://www.regulations.gov. HUD
strongly encourages commenters to
submit comments electronically.
Electronic submission of comments
allows the commenter maximum time to
prepare and submit a comment, ensures
timely receipt by HUD, and enables
HUD to make them immediately
available to the public. Comments
submitted electronically through the
http://fwww.regulations.gov Web site can
be viewed by other commenters and
interested members of the public.
Commenters should follow the

instructions provided on that site to
submit comments electronically.

List of Subjects
24 CFR Part 91

Aged, Grant programs—housing and
community development, Homeless,
Individuals with disabilities, Low- and
moderate-income housing, Reporting
and recordkeeping requirements.

24 CFR Part 576

Community facilities, Emergency
solutions grants, Grant programs—
housing and community development,
Grant program—social programs,
Homeless, Reporting and recordkeeping
requirements.

Accordingly, for the reasons described
in the preamble, parts 91 and 576 of title
24 of the Code of Federal Regulations
are amended as follows:

PART 91—CONSOLIDATED
SUBMISSIONS FOR COMMUNITY
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMS

® 1. The authority citation for 24 CFR
part 91 continues to read as follows:
Authority: 42 U.S.C. 3535(d), 3601-3619,

53015315, 1133111388, 12701-12711,
12741-12756, and 12901-12912.

™ 2. In § 91.2, paragraph (a)(2) is revised
to read as follows:

§91.2 Applicability.
(a) * % k

(2) The Emergency Solutions Grants
(ESG) program {see 24 CFR part 576);

o 3.In § 91.5, the definitions of
“Chronically homeless person,”
“Disabling condition,” “Homeless
family with children,” and “Homeless
subpopulations” are removed; the
definition of “Emergency shelter” is
revised; and the definitions of At risk
of homelessness,” “Chronically
homeless,” “Continuum of Care,”
‘“‘Homeless Management Information
System (HMIS),” “Rapid re-housing
assistance,” and *“Victim service
provider” are added to read as follows:

§91.5 Definitions.

* * * * *

At risk of homelessness. (1) An
individual or family who:

(i) Has an annual income below 30
percent of median family income for the
area, as determined by HUD;

(ii) Does not have sufficient resources
or support networks, e.g., family,
friends, faith-based or other social
networks, immediately available to
prevent them from moving to an
emergency shelter or another place
described in paragraph (1) of the
“Homeless” definition in this section;
and

(iii) Meets one of the following
conditions:

(A) Has moved because of economic
reasons two or more times during the 60
days immediately preceding the
application for homelessness prevention
assistance;

(B) Is living in the home of another
because of economic hardship;

(C) Has been notified in writing that
their right to occupy their current
housing or living situation will be
terminated within 21 days after the date
of application for assistance;

(D) Lives in a hotel or motel and the
cost of the hotel or motel stay is not paid
by charitable organizations or by
federal, State, or local government
programs for low-income individuals;

(E) Lives in a single-room occupancy
or efficiency apartment unit in which
there reside more than two persons or
lives in a larger housing unit in which
there reside more than 1.5 people per
room, as defined by the U.S. Census
Bureau;

(F) Is exiting a publicly funded
institution, or system of care (such as a
health-care facility, a mental health
facility, foster care or other youth
facility, or correction program or
institution); or

(G) Otherwise lives in housing that
has characteristics associated with
instability and an increased risk of
homelessness, as identified in the
recipient’s approved consolidated plan;

(2) A child or youth who does not
qualify as “homeless” under this
section, but qualifies as “homeless”
under section 387(3) of the Runaway
and Homeless Youth Act (42 U.S.C.
5732a(3)), section 637(11) of the Head
Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9832(11)), section
41403(6) of the Violence Against
Women Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 14043e—
2(6)), section 330(h)(5)(A) of the Public
Health Service Act (42 U.S.C.
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254b(h)(5)(A)), section 3(m) of the Food
and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C.
2012(m)), or section 17(b)(15) of the
Child Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C.
1786(b)(15)); or
(3) A child or youth who does not
. qualify as “homeless” under this
section, but qualifies as “homeless”
under section 725(2) of the McKinney-
Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42
U.S.C. 11434a(2)), and the parent(s) or
guardian(s) of that child or youth if
living with her or him.
* * * * *

Chronically homeless. (1) An
individual who:

(i) Is homeless and lives in a place not
meant for human habitation, a safe
haven, or in an emergency shelter; and

(ii) Has been homeless and living or
residing in a place not meant for human
habitation, a safe haven, or in an
emergency shelter continuously for at
least one year or on at least four separate
occasions in the last 3 years, where each
hoéneless occasion was at least 15 days;
an

(iii) Can be diagnosed with one or
more of the following conditions:
substance use disorder, serious mental
illness, developmental disability (as
defined in section 102 of the
Developmental Disabilities Assistance
Bill of Rights Act of 2000 (42 U.S.C.
15002)), post-traumatic stress disorder,
cognitive impairments resulting from

-brain injury, or chronic physical illness
or disability;

(2) An individual who has been
residing in an institutional care facility,
including a jail, substance abuse or
mental health treatment facility,
hospital, or other similar facility, for
fewer than 90 days and met all of the
criteria in paragraph (1) of this
definition, before entering that facility;
or

(3} A family with an adult head of
household (or if there is no adult in the
family, a minor head of household} who
meets all of the criteria in paragraph (1)
of this definition, including a family
whose composition has fluctuated while
the head of household has been
homeless.

* * * * *®

Continuum of Care. The group
composed of representatives of relevant
organizations, which generally includes
nonprofit homeless providers, victim
service providers, faith-based
organizations, governments, businesses,
advocates, public housing agencies,
school districts, social service providers,
mental health agencies, hospitals,
universities, affordable housing
developers, law enforcement,
organizations that serve homeless and

formerly homeless veterans, and
homeless and formerly homeless
persons that are organized to plan for
and provide, as necessary, a system of
outreach, engagement, and assessment;

-emergency shelter; rapid re-housing;

transitional housing; permanent
housing; and prevention strategies to
address the various needs of homeless
persons and persons at risk of
homelessness for a specific geographic
area.

Emergency shelter. Any facility, the
primary purpose of which is to provide
a temporary shelter for the homeless in
general or for specific populations of the
homeless, and which does not require
occupants to sign leases or occupancy
agreements.

* * * * *

Homeless Management Information
System (HMIS). The information system
designated by the Continuum of Care to
comply with HUD’s data collection,
management, and reporting standards
and used to collect client-level data and
data on the provision of housing and
services to homeless individuals and
families and persons at risk of
homelessness.

* * * * *

Rapid re-housing assistance. The
provision of housing relocation and
stabilization services and short- and/or
medium-term rental assistance as
necessary to help a homeless individual
or family move as quickly as possible
into permanent housing and achieve
stability in that housing.

* * * % *

Victim service provider. A private
nonprofit organization whose primary
mission is to provide services to victims
of domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, or stalking. This term
includes rape crisis centers, battered
women’s shelters, domestic violence
transitional housing programs, and
other programs.

* ® * * *

® 4. In § 91.100, paragraph (a)(2) is
revised and a new paragraph (d) is
added to read as follows:

§91.100 Consuitation; local governments.

f@)* * *

(2) When preparing the portions of the
consolidated plan describing the
jurisdiction’s homeless strategy and the
resources available to address the needs
of homeless persons (particularly
chronically homeless individuals and
families, families with children,
veterans and their families, and
unaccompanied youth) and persons at
risk of homelessness, the jurisdiction
must consult with:

(i} The Continuum(s) of Care that
serve(s) the jurisdiction’s geographic
area;

(ii) Public and private agencies that
address housing, health, social service,
victim services, employment, or
education needs of low-income
individuals and families; homeless
individuals and families, including
homeless veterans; youth; and/or other
persons with special needs;

(iii) Publicly funded institutions and
systems of care that may discharge
persons into homelessness (such as
health-care facilities, mental health
facilities, foster care and other youth
facilities, and corrections programs and
institutions); and

(iv) Business and civic leaders.

* * * * *

(d) Emergency Solutions Grants
(ESG). A jurisdiction that receives an
ESG grant must consult with the
Continuum of Care in determining how
to allocate its ESG grant for eligible
activities; in developing the
performance standards for, and
evaluating the outcomes of, projects and
activities assisted by ESG funds; and in
developing funding, policies, and
procedures for the operation and
administration of the HMIS.

* * * * *

m 5. In § 91.105, paragraph (a)(2) is
revised to read as follows:

§91.105 Citizen participation plan; local
governments.

(a) * % x

(2) Encouragement of citizen
participation, (i) The citizen
participation plan must provide for and
encourage citizens to participate in the
development of any consolidated plan,
any substantial amendment to the
consolidated plan, and the performance
report. These requirements are designed
especially to encourage participation by
low- and moderate-income persons,
particularly those living in slum and
blighted areas and in areas where CDBG
funds are proposed to be used, and by
residents of predominantly low- and
moderate-income neighborhoods, as
defined by the jurisdiction. A
jurisdiction is also expected to take
whatever actions are appropriate to
encourage the participation of all its
citizens, including minorities and non-
English speaking persons, as well as
persons with disabilities.

(ii) The jurisdiction shall encourage
the participation of local and regional
institutions, the Continuum of Care and
other organizations (including
businesses, developers, nonprofit
organizations, philanthropic
organizations, and community-based
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and faith-based organizations) in the
process of developing and
implementing the consolidated plan.
1ii) The jurisdiction shall encourage,
in conjunction with consultation with
public housing agencies, the
participation of residents of public and
assisted housing developments, in the
process of developing and
implementing the consolidated plan,
along with other low-income residents
of targeted revitalization areas in which
the developments are located. The
jurisdictions shall make an effort to
provide information to the public
housing agency (PHA) about
consolidated plan activities related to its
developments and surrounding
communities so that the PHA can make
this information available at the annual
p}lblic hearing required for the PHA
Plan. '
* (iv) The jurisdiction should explore
alternative public involvement
techniques and quantitative ways to
measure efforts that encourage citizen
participation in a shared vision for
change in communities and
neighborhoods, and the review of
- program performance; e.g., use of focus
groups and the Internet.

* * * * *

® 6. Section 91.110 is revised to read as
follows:

§91.110 Consultation; States.

(a) When preparing the consolidated
plan, the State shall consult with other
public and private agencies that provide
assisted housing (including any state
housing agency administering public
housing), health services, and social and
fair housing services (including those
focusing on services to children, elderly
persons, persons with disabilities,
persons with HIV/AIDS and their
families, and homeless persons} during
preéaaration of the consolidated plan.

(b} When preparing the portions of the
consolidated plan describing the State’s
homeless strategy and the resources
available to address the needs of
homeless persons (particularly
chronically homeless individuals and
families, families with children,
veterans and their families, and
unaccompanied youth) and persons at
risk of homelessness, the State must
consult with:

(1) Each Continuum of Care within
the state;

- (2) Public and private agencies that
address housing, health, social services,
victim services, employment, or
education needs of low-income
individuals and families; of homeless
individuals and families, including
homeless veterans; youth; and/or of
other persons with special needs;

(3) Publicly funded institutions and
systems of care that may discharge
persons into homelessness (such as
health-care facilities, mental health
facilities, foster care and other youth
facilities, and corrections programs and
institutions); and

(4) Business and civic leaders.

(c) When preparing the portion of its
consolidated plan concerning lead-
based paint hazards, the State shall
consult with state or local health and
child welfare agencies and examine
existing data related to lead-based paint
hazards and poisonings, including
health department data on the addresses
of housing units in which children have
been identified as lead-poisoned.

(d) When preparing its method of
distribution of assistance under the
CDBG program, a State must consult
with local governments in
nonentitlement areas of the state.

(e) The State must also consult with
each Continuum of Care within the state
in determining how to allocate its ESG
grant for eligible activities; developing
the performance standards for, and
evaluating the outcomes of, projects and
activities assisted by ESG funds; and
developing funding, policies, and
procedures for the operation and
administration of the HMIS.

m 7.1n §91,115, paragraph (a){2) is
revised to read as follows:

§91.115 Citizen participation plan; States.

(a) * % %

(2) Encouragement of citizen
participation. (i) The citizen
participation plan must provide for and
encourage citizens to participate in the
development of the consolidated plan,
any substantial amendments to the
consolidated plan, and the performance
report. These requirements are designed
especially to encourage participation by
low- and moderate-income persons,
particularly those living in slum and
blighted areas and in areas where CDBG
funds are proposed to be used, and by
residents of predominantly low- and
moderate-income neighborhoods. A

~ State is also expected to take whatever

actions are appropriate to encourage the
participation of all its citizens,
including minorities and non-English
speaking persons, as well as persons
with disabilities.

(ii) The State shall encourage the
participation of local, regional, and
statewide institutions, Continuums of
Care, and other organizations (including
businesses, developers, nonprofit
organizations, philanthropic
organizations, and community-based
and faith-based organizations) that are
involved with or affected by the
programs or activities covered by the

consolidated plan in the process of
developing and implementing the
consolidated plan.

(iii) The state should explore
alternative public involvement
techniques that encourage a shared
vision of change for the community and
the review of program performance; e.g.,
the use of focus groups'and the Internet.
* * * * *

m 8. In §91.200, paragraph (b) is revised
to read as follows:

§91.200 General.
* * * * *

(b) The jurisdiction shall describe:

(1) The iead agency or entity
responsible for overseeing the
development of the plan and the
significant aspects of the process by
which the consolidated plan was
developed;

(2) The identity of the agencies,
groups, organizations, and others who
participated in the process; and

(3).A jurisdiction’s consultations
with:

(i) The Continuum of Care that serves
the jurisdiction’s geographic area;

(ii) Public and private agencies that
address housing, health, social services,
employment, or education needs of low-
income individuals and families, of
homeless individuals and families, of
youth, and/or of other persons with
special needs;

(iii) Publicly funded institutions and
systems of care that may discharge
persons into homelessness (such as
health-care facilities, mental health
facilities, foster care and other youth
facilities, and corrections programs and
institutions);

(iv) Other entities.

* * * * *

® 9.In §91.205, paragraph (b)(1) and
paragraph (c) are revised to read as
follows:

§91.205 Housing and homeless needs
assessment.
* * * * *

(b)(1)(i) The plan shall estimate the
number and type of families in need of
housing assistance for:

(A) Extremely low-income, low-
income, moderate-income, and middle-
income families;

(B) Renters and owners;

(C) Elderly persons;

(D) Single persons;

(E) Large families;

(F) Public housing residents;

(G) Families on the public housing
and Section 8 tenant-based waiting list;

(H)} Persons with HIV/AIDS and their
families;

(I) Victims of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, and
stalking;



Federal Register/Vol. 76, No. 233/Monday, December 5, 2011 /Rules and Regulations

75969

(J) Persons with disabilities; and

(K) Formerly homeless families and
individuals who are receiving rapid re-
housing assistance and are nearing the
termination of that assistance.

(ii) The description of housing needs
shall include a concise summary of the
cost burden and severe cost burden,
overcrowding (especially for large
families), and substandard housing
conditions being experienced by
extremely low-income, low-income,
moderate-income, and middle-income
renters and owners compared to the
jurisdiction as a whole. (The
jurisdiction must define in its
consolidated plan the terms “standard
condition” and “substandard condition
but suitable for rehabilitation.”)

*® * * * *

(c) Persons who are homeless or at
risk of homelessness. (1) The plan must
describe, in a form prescribed by HUD,
the nature and extent of unsheltered and
sheltered homelessness, including rural
homelessness, within the jurisdiction.
At a minimum, the recipient must use
data from the Homeless Management
Information System (HMIS) and data
from the Point-In-Time (PIT) count
conducted in accordance with HUD
standards.

(i) The description must include, for
each category of homeless persons
specified by HUD (including chronically
homeless individuals and families,
families with children, veterans and
their families, and unaccompanied
youth), the number of persons
experiencing homelessness on a given
night, the number of persons who
experience homelessness each year, the
number of persons who lose their
housing and become homeless each
year, the number of persons who exit
homelessness each year, the number of
days that persons experience
homelessness, and other measures
specified by HUD,

(ii) The plan also must contain a brief
narrative description of the nature and
extent of homelessness by racial and
ethnic group, to the extent information
is available.

(2) The plan must include a narrative
description of the characteristics and
needs of low-income individuals and
families with children (especially
extremely low-income) who are
currently housed but threatened with
homelessness. This information may be
evidenced by the characteristics and
needs of individuals and families with
children who are currently entering the
homeless assistance system or appearing
for the first time on the streets. The
description must also specify particular
housing characteristics that have been

linked with instability and an increased
risk of homelessness.
* * %* * *

10. In § 91.210, paragraph (c) is
revised to read as follows:

§91.210 Housing market analysis.
* * * * *

(c) Facilities, housing, and services for
homeless persons. The plan must
include a brief inventory of facilities,
housing, and services that meet the
needs of homeless persons within the
jurisdiction, particularly chronically
homeless individuals and families,
families with children, veterans and
their families, and unaccompanied
youth.

(1) The inventory of facilities and
housing (e.g., emergency shelter,
transitional housing, and permanent
supportive housing) must be presented
in a form specified by HUD.

(2) The inventory of services must
include both services targeted to
homeless persons and mainstream
services, such as health, mental health,
and employment services to the extent
those services are used to complement
services targeted to homeless persons.
* * * * *

m 11, In § 91.215, paragraphs (b), (d), (k),
and (1) are revised to read as follows:

§91.215 Strategic plan.
* * * * *

(b) Affordable housing. With respect
to affordable housing, the consolidated
plan must include the priority housing
needs table prescribed by HUD and
must do the following:

(1) The affordable housing section
shall describe how the characteristics of
the housing market and the severity of
housing problems and needs of
extremely low-income, low-income, and
moderate-income renters and owners,
persons at risk of homelessness, and
homeless persons identified in
accordance with § 91.205 provided the
rationale for establishing allocation
priorities and use of funds made
available for rental assistance,
production of new units, rehabilitation
of existing units, or acquisition of
existing units (including preserving
affordable housing units that may be
lost from the assisted housing inventory
for any reason). Household and income
types may be grouped together for
discussion where the analysis would
apply to more than one of them, If the
jurisdiction intends to use HOME funds
for tenant-based assistance, the
jurisdiction must specify local market
conditions that led to the choice of that
option.

(2) The affordable housing section
shall include specific objectives that

describe proposed accomplishments,
that the jurisdiction hopes to achieve
and must specify the number of
extremely low-income, low-income, and
moderate-income families, and
homeless persons to whom the
jurisdiction will provide affordable
housing as defined in 24 CFR 92.252 for
rental housing and 24 CFR 92.254 for
homeownership over a specific time
period.
* * * * *

(d) Homelessness. The consolidated
plan must include the priority homeless
needs table prescribed by HUD and
must describe the jurisdiction’s strategy
for reducing and ending homelessness
through:

(1) Reaching out to homeless persons
(especially unsheltered persons) and
assessing their individual needs;

(2) Addressing the emergency shelter
and transitional housing needs of
homeless persons;

(3) Helping homeless persons
(especially chronically homeless
individuals and families, families with
children, veterans and their families,
and unaccompanied youth) make the
transition to permanent housing and
independent living, including
shortening the period of time
individuals and families experience
homelessness, facilitating access for
homeless individuals and families to
affordable housing units, and preventing
individuals and families who were
recently homeless from becoming
homeless again; and

(4) Helping low-income individuals
and families avoid becoming homeless,
especially extremely low-income
individuals and families who are:

(i) Likely to become homeless after
being discharged from publicly funded
institutions and systems of care into
homelessness (such as health-care
facilities, mental health facilities, foster
care and other youth facilities, and
corrections programs and institutions)
or

(ii) Receiving assistance from public
and private agencies that address
housing, health, social services,
employment, education, or youth needs.
* * * * *

(k) Institutional structure. The
consolidated plan must provide a
concise summary of the institutional
structure, including private industry;
nonprofit organizations; community and
faith-based organizations; philanthropic
organizations; the Continuum of Care;
and public institutions, departments
and agencies through which the
jurisdiction will carry out its housing,
homeless, and community development
plan; a brief assessment of the strengths
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and gaps in that delivery system; and a
concise summary of what the
jurisdiction will do to overcome gaps in
the institutional structure for carrying
out its strategy for addressing its priority
needs.

(I) Coordination. The consoclidated
plan must provide a concise summary of
the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance
coaordination among the Continuum of
Care, public and assisted housing
providers, and private and
governmental health, mental health, and
service agencies, The summary must
address the jurisdiction’s efforts to
coordinate housing assistance and
services for homeless persons
(especially chronically homeless
individuals and families, families with
children, veterans and their families,
and unaccompanied youth) and persons
who were recently homeless but now
live in permanent housing. With respect
to the public entities involved, the plan
must describe the means of cooperation
and coordination among the State and
any units of general local government in
the metropolitan area in the
implementation of its consolidated plan.
With respect to economic development,
the jurisdiction should describe efforts
to enhance coordination with private
industry, businesses, developers, and
social service agencies.
® 12.In §91.220, paragraph (i) is
revised and a new paragraph (1)(4) is
added to read as follows:

§91.220 Action plan.

* * * * *

(i) Homeless and other special needs
activities. (1) The jurisdiction must
describe its one-year goals and specific
actions steps for reducing and ending
homelessness through:

(i) Reaching out to homeless persons
{especially unsheltered persons) and
assessing their individual needs;

(i) Addressing the emergency shelter
and transitional housing needs of
homeless persons; and

(iii) Helping homeless persons
(especially chronically homeless
individuals and families, families with
children, veterans and their families,
and unaccompanied youth) make the
transition to permanent housing and
independent living, including
shortening the period of time that
individuals and families experience
homelessness, facilitating access for
homeless individuals and families to
affordable housing units, and preventing
individuals and families who were
recently homeless from becoming
homeless again; and

(iv) Helping low-income individuals
and families avoid becoming homeless,

especially extremely low-income
individuals and families who are:

(A) Being discharged from publicly
funded institutions and systems of care,
such as health-care facilities, mental
health facilities, foster care and other
youth facilities, and corrections
programs and institutions; or

(B) Receiving assistance from public
and private agencies that address
housing, health, social services,
employment, education, or youth needs.

(2) The jurisdiction must specify the
activities that it plans to undertake
during the next year to address the
housing and supportive service needs
identified in accordance with
§ 91.215(e) with respect to persons who
are not homeless but have other special
needs.

* * * * *

(l) * k %

{4) ESG. (i) The jurisdiction must
include its written standards for
providing ESG assistance. The
minimum requirements regarding these
standards are set forth in 24 CFR
576.400(e}(1) and (e)(3).

(ii) If the Continuum of Care for the
jurisdiction’s area has established a
centralized or coordinated assessment
system that meets HUD requirements,
the jurisdiction must describe that
centralized or coordinated assessment
system. The requirements for using a
centralized or coordinated assessment
system, including the exception for
victim service providers, are set forth
under 24 CFR 576.400(d).

(iii) The jurisdiction must identify its
process for making subawards and a
description of how the jurisdiction
intends to make its allocation available
to private nonprofit organizations
(including community and faith-based
organizations), and in the case of urban
counties, funding to participating units
of local government.

{iv) If the jurisdiction is unable to
meet the homeless participation
requirement in 24 CFR 576.405(a), the
jurisdiction must specify its plan for
reaching out to and consulting with
homeless or formerly homeless
individuals in considering and making
policies and decisions regarding any
facilities or services that receive funding
under ESG.

(v) The jurisdiction must describe the
performance standards for evaluating
ESG activities.

(vi) The jurisdiction must describe its
consultation with each Continuum of
Care that serves the jurisdiction in
determining how to allocate ESG funds
each program year; developing the
performance standards for, and
evaluating the outcomes of, projects and

activities assisted by ESG funds; and
developing funding, policies, and
procedures for the administration and
operation of the HMIS.

m 13.In § 91.225, paragraph (c) is
revised to read as follows:

§91.225 Certifications.
* *® * * *

(c) ESG. For jurisdictions that seek
ESG funding under 24 CFR part 576, the
following certifications are required:

(1) If an emergency shelter’s
rehabilitation costs exceed 75 percent of
the value of the building before
rehabilitation, the jurisdiction will
maintain the building as a shelter for
homeless individuals and families for a
minimum of 10 years after the date the
building is first occupied by a homeless
individual or family after the completed
rehabilitation;

(2) If the cost to convert a building
into an emergency shelter exceeds 75
percent of the value of the building after
conversion, the jurisdiction will
maintain the building as a shelter for
homeless individuals and families for a
minimum of 10 years after the date the
building is first occupied by a homeless
individual or family after the completed
conversion;

(3) In all other cases where ESG funds
are used for renovation, the jurisdiction
will maintain the building as a shelter
for homeless individuals and families
for a minimum of 3 years after the date
the building is first occupied by a
homeless individual or family after the
completed renovation;

(4F1n the case of assistance involving
shelter operations or essential services
related to street outreach or emergency
shelter, the jurisdiction will provide
services or shelter to homeless
individuals and families for the period
during which the ESG assistance is
provided, without regard to a particular
site or structure, so long as the
jurisdiction serves the same type of
persons (e.g., families with children,
unaccompanied youth, disabled
individuals, or victims of domestic
violence) or persons in the same
geographic area;

(5) Any renovation carried out with
ESG assistance shall be sufficient to
ensure that the building involved is safe
and sanitary;

(6) The jurisdiction will assist
homeless individuals in obtaining
permanent housing, appropriate
supportive services (including medical
and mental health treatment, victim
services, counseling, supervision, and
other services essential for achieving
independent living), and other Federal,
State, local, and private assistance
available for these individuals;



Federal Register/Vol. 76, No. 233/ Monday, December 5, 2011/Rules and Regulations

75971

(7) The jurisdiction will obtain
matching amounts required under 24
CFR 576.201;

(8) The jurisdiction has established
and is implementing procedures to
ensure the confidentiality of records
pertaining to any individual provided
family violence prevention or treatment
services under any project assisted
under the ESG program, including
protection against the release of the
address or location of any family
violence shelter project, except with the
written authorization of the person
responsible for the operation of that
shelter;

(9) To the maximum extent
practicable, the jurisdiction will
involve, through employment, volunteer
services, or otherwise, homeless
individuals and families in
constructing, renovating, maintaining,
and operating facilities assisted under

the ESG program, in providing services -

assisted under the program, and in
providing services for occupants of
facilities assisted under the program;

(10) All activities the jurisdiction
undertakes with assistance under ESG
are consistent with the jurisdiction’s
consolidated plan; and

(11} The jurisdiction will establish
and implement, to the maximum extent
practicable and where appropriate,
policies and protocols for the discharge
of persons from publicly funded
institutions or systems of care (such as
health-care facilities, mental health
facilities, foster care or other youth
facilities, or correction programs and
institutions) in order to prevent this
discharge from immediately resulting in
homelessness for these persons.
* * * * *

™ 14.In §91.300, paragraph (b) is
revised to read as follows:

§91.300 General.

* * * * *

{b) The State shall describe:

(1) The lead agency or entity
responsible for overseeing the
development of the plan and the
significant aspects of the process by
which the consolidated plan was
developed;

(2) The identity of the agencies,
groups, organizations, and others who
participated in the process;

(3) The State’s consultations with;

(i) Continuums of Care;

(ii) Public and private agencies that
address housing, health, social services,
employment, or education needs of low-
income individuals and families,
homeless individuals and families,
youth, and/or other persons with special
needs;

(iii) Publicly funded institutions and
systems of care that may discharge
persons into homelessness (such as
health-care facilities, mental health
facilities, foster care and other youth
facilities, and corrections programs and
institutions); and

(iv) Other entities.

* * * * *

m 15, In § 91.305, paragraphs (b)(1) and
(c) are revised to read as follows:

§91.305 Housing and homeless needs
assessment.
* * * * *

(b)(1)(i) The plan shall estimate the
number and type of families in need of
housing assistance for:

(A) Extremely low-income, low-
income, moderate-income, and middle-
income families;

(B} Renters and owners;

(C) Elderly persons;

(D) Single persons;

(E) Large families;

(F) Public housing residents;

{G) Families on the public housing
and Section 8 tenant-based waiting list;

(H) Persons with HIV/AIDS and their
families;

(D) Victims of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, and
stalking;

(J) Persons with disabilities; and

(K) Formerly homeless families and
individuals who are receiving rapid re-
housing assistance and are nearing the
termination of that assistance.

(ii) The description of housing needs
shall include a concise summary of the
cost burden and severe cost burden,
overcrowding {especially for large
families), and substandard housing
conditions being experienced by
extremely low-income, low-income,
moderate-income, and middle-income
renters and owners compared to the
state as a whole. (The state must define
in its consolidated plan the terms
“standard condition” and “substandard
condition but suitable for
rehabilitation.”)

* * * * *

(c) Persons who are homeless or at
risk of homelessness. (1) The plan must
describe, in a form prescribed by HUD,
the nature and extent of homelessness,
including rural homelessness, within
the state.

(i) The description must include, for
each category of homeless persons
specified by HUD (including chronically
homeless individuals and families,
families with children, veterans and
their families, and unaccompanied
youth), the number of persons
experiencing homelessness on a given
night, the number of persons who

experience homelessness each year, the
number of persons who lose their
housing and become homeless each
year, the number of persons who exit
homelessness each year, and the
number of days that persons experience
homelessness, and any other measures

“ specified by HUD.

(ii) The plan also must contain a brief
narrative description of the nature and
extent of homelessness by racial and
ethnic group, to the extent that
information is available.

(2) The plan must include a narrative
description of the characteristics and
needs of low-income individuals and
families with children (especially
extremely low-income) who are
currently housed but threatened with
homelessness. This information may be
evidenced by the characteristics and
needs of individuals and families with
children who are currently entering the
homeless assistance system or appearing
for the first time on the streets. The
description must also include specific
housing characteristics linked to
instability and an increased risk of

homelessness.
* * * * *

® 16. In § 91.310, paragraph (b) is
revised to read as follows:

§91.310 Housing market analysis.
* * * % *

(b) Facilities, housing, and services for
homeless persons. The plan must
include a brief inventory of facilities
and services that meet the needs of
homeless persons within the state,
particularly chronically homeless
individuals and families, families with
children, veterans and their families,
and unaccompanied youth.

(1) The inventory of facilities and
housing (e.g., emergency shelter,
transitional housing, and permanent
supportive housing) must be presented
in a form specified by HUD.

(2) The inventory of services must
include both services targeted to
homeless persons and mainstream
services, such as health, mental health,
and employment services to the extent
those services are used to complement
services targeted to homeless persons.

* * * * *®

m 17.In § 91.315, paragraphs (b), (d), (k},
and (1) are revised to read as follows:

§91.315 Strategic plan.
* * * * *

(b) Affordable housing. With respect
to affordable housing, the consolidated
plan must include the priority housing
needs table prescribed by HUD and the
following:

(1) The affordable housing section
shall describe how the characteristics of
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the housing market and the severity of
housing problems and needs of
extremely low-income, low-income, and
moderate-income renters and owners,
persons at risk of homelessness, and
homeless persons identified in
accordance with §91.305 provided the
rationale for establishing allocation
priorities and use of funds made
available for rental assistance,
production of new units, rehabilitation
of existing units, or acquisition of
existing units (including preserving
affordable housing units that may be
lost from the assisted housing inventory
for any reason). Household and income
types may be grouped togsther for
discussion where the analysis would
apply to more than one of them. If the
State intends to use HOME funds for
tenant-based rental assistance, the State
must specify local market conditions
that led to the choice of that option.

{2) The affordable housing section
shall include specific objectives that
describe proposed accomplishments
that the jurisdiction hopes to achieve
and must specify the number of
extremely low-income, low-income, and
moderate-income families, and
homeless persons to whom the
jurisdiction will provide affordable
housing as defined in 24 CFR 92.252 for
rental housing and 24 CFR 92.254 for
homeownership over a specific time

~period.
* * * * *

(d) Homelessness. The consolidated
plan must include the priority homeless
needs table prescribed by HUD and
must describe the State’s strategy for
reducing and ending homelessness
through:

(1) Reaching out to homeless persons
(especially unsheltered persons) and
assessing their individual needs;

(2) Addressing the emergency shelter
and transitional housing needs of
homeless persons;

(3) Helping homeless persons
(especially chronically homeless
individuals and families, families with
children, veterans and their families,
and unaccompanied youth) make the
transition to permanent housing and
independent living, including
shortening the period of time
individuals and families experience
homelessness, facilitating access for
homeless individuals and families to
affordable housing units, and preventing
individuals and families who were
recently homeless from becoming
homeless again; and

(4) Helping low-income individuals
and families avoid becoming homeless,
especially extremely low-income
individuals and families who are:

(i) Likely to become homeless after
being discharged from publicly funded
institutions and systems of care (such as
health-care facilities, mental health
facilities, foster care and other youth
facilities, and corrections programs and
institutions}; or

(ii) Receiving assistance from public
or private agencies that address housing,
health, social services, employment,
education, or youth needs.

* * * * *

(k) Institutional structure. The
consolidated plan must provide a
concise summary of the institutional
structure, including businesses,
developers, nonprofit organizations,
philanthropic organizations,
community-based and faith-based
organizations, the Continuum of Care,
and public institutions, departments,
and agencies through which the State
will carry out its housing, homeless, and
community development plan; a brief
assessment of the strengths and gaps in
that delivery system; and a concise
summary of what the State will do to
overcome gaps in the institutional
structure for carrying out its strategy for
addressing its priority needs. |

(1) Coordination. The consolidated
plan must provide a concise summary of
the jurisdiction’s activities to enhance
coordination among Continuums of
Care, public and assisted housing
providers, and private and
governmental health, mental health, and
service agencies. The summary must
include the jurisdiction’s efforts to
coordinate housing assistance and
services for homeless persons
(especially chronically homeless
individuals and families, families with
children, veterans and their families,
and unaccompanied youth) and persons
who were recently homeless but now
live in permanent housing. With respect
to the public entities involved, the plan
must describe the means of cooperation
and coordination among the State and
any units of general local government in
the implementation of its consolidated
plan. With respect to economic
development, the State should describe
efforts to enhance coordination with
private industry, businesses, developers,

and social service agencies.
* * * * *

®m 18. In § 91.320, paragraphs (h} and
(k)(3) are revised to read as follows:

§91.320 Action plan.
* * * * *

(h) Homeless and other special needs
activities. (1) The State must describe its
one-year goals and specific actions steps

for reducing and ending homelessness
through:

(i) Reaching out to homeless persons
(especially unsheltered persons) and
assessing their individual needs;

(ii) Addressing the emergency shelter *
and transitional housing needs of
homeless persons;

(iii) Helping homeless persons
(especially chronically homeless
individuals and families, families with
children, veterans and their families,
and unaccompanied youth) make the
transition to permanent housing and
independent living, including
shortening the period of time that
individuals and families experience
homelessness, facilitating access for
homeless individuals and families to
affordable housing units, and preventing
individuals and families who were
recently homeless from becoming
homeless again; and

(iv) Helping low-income individuals
and families avoid becoming homeless,
especially extremely low-income
individuals and families who are;

(A) Being discharged from publicly
funded institutions and systems of care
(such as health-care facilities, mental
health facilities, foster care and other
youth facilities, and corrections
programs and institutions); or

(B) Receiving assistance from public
or private agencies that address housing,
health, social services, employment,
education, or youth needs.

(2) The State must specify the
activities that it plans to undertake
during the next year to address the
housing and supportive service needs
identified in accordance with
§ 91.315(e) with respect to persons who
are not homeless but have other special
needs.

* * * * *

(k) * K *

(3) ESG. (i) The State must either
include its written standards for
providing Emergency Solutions Grant
(ESG) assistance or describe its
requirements for its subrecipients to
establish and implement written
standards for providing ESG assistance.
The minimum requirements regarding
these standards are set forth in 24 CFR
576.400{(e)(2) and (e)(3).

(ii) For each area of the State in which
a Continuum of Care has established a
centralized or coordinated assessment
system that meets HUD requirements,
the State must describe that centralized
or coordinated assessment system. The
requirements for using a centralized or
coordinated assessment system,
including the exception for victim
service providers, are set forth under 24
CFR 576.400(d).

(iii) The State must identify its
process for making subawards and a
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description of how the State intends to
make its allocation available to units of
general local government and private
nonprofit organizations, including
community and faith-based
organizations.

(iv) The State must describe the
performance standards for evaluating
ESG activities.

(v) The State must describe its
consultation with each Continuum of
Care in determining how to allocate ESG
funds each program year; developing
the performance standards for, and
evaluating the outcomes of, projects and
activities assisted by ESG funds; and
developing funding, policies and
procedures for the administration and
operation of the HMIS.

* * * * *

m19.In§ 91.325, paragraph (c) is
revised to read as follows:

§91.325 Certifications.

* * * * *

(c) ESG. Each State that seeks funding
under ESG must provide the following
certifications:

(1) The State will obtain any matching
amounts required under 24 CFR 576.201
in a manner so that its subrecipients
that are least capable of providing
matching amounts receive the benefit of
the exception under 24 CFR
576.201(a)(2);

(2) The State will establish and
implement, to the maximum extent
practicable and where appropriate,
policies, and protocols for the discharge
of persons from publicly funded
institutions or systems of care (such as
health-care facilities, mental health
facilities, foster care or other youth
facilities, or correction programs and
institutions) in order to prevent this
discharge from immediately resulting in
homelessness for these persons;

{3) The State will develop and
implement procedures to ensure the
confidentiality of records pertaining to
any individual provided family violence
prevention or treatment services under
any project assisted under the ESG
program, including protection against
the release of the address or location of
any family violence shelter project,
except with the written authorization of
the person responsible for the operation
of that shelter; and

(4) The State will ensure that its
subrecipients comply with the following
criteria:

(i) If an emergency shelter’s
rehabilitation costs exceed 75 percent of
the value of the building before
rehabilitation, the building will be
maintained as a shelter for homeless
individuals and families for a minimum

of 10 years after the date the building is
first occupied by a homeless individual
or family after the completed
rehabilitation;

(ii) If the cost to convert a building
into an emergency shelter exceeds 75
percent of the value of the building after
conversion, the building will be
maintained as a shelter for homeless
individuals and families for a minimum
of 10 years after the date the building is
first occupied by a homeless individual
or family after the completed
conversion;

(iii) In all other cases where ESG
funds are used for renovation, the
building will be maintained as a shelter
for homeless individuals and families
for a minimum of 3 years after the date
the date the building is first occupied by
a homeless individual or family after the
completed renovation;

(iv) If ESG funds are used for shelter
operations or essential services related
to street outreach or emergency shelter,
the subrecipient will provide services or
shelter to homeless individuals and
families for the period during which the
ESG assistance is provided, without
regard to a particular site or structure,
so long as the applicant serves the same
type of persons (e.g., families with
children, unaccompanied youth,
veterans, disabled individuals, or
victims of domestic violence) or persons
in the same geographic area;

(v} Any renovation carried out with
ESG assistance shall be sufficient to
ensure that the building involved is safe
and sanitary;

(vi) The subrecipient will assist
homeless individuals in obtaining
permanent housing, appropriate
supportive services (including medical
and mental health treatment,
counseling, supervision, and other
services essential for achieving
independent living), and other Federal,
State, local, and private assistance
available for such individuals;

(vii) To the maximum extent
practicable, the subrecipient will
involve, through employment, volunteer
services, or otherwise, homeless
individuals and families in
constructing, renovating, maintaining,
and operating facilities assisted under
ESG, in providing services assisted
under ESG, and in providing services
for occupants of facilities assisted under
ESG; and

(viii) All activities the subrecipient
undertakes with assistance under ESG
are consistent with the State’s current
HUD-approved consolidated plan.

*

m 20, In § 91,520, paragraph (b) is
revised, paragraphs (c), (d), (e}, (f), and

(g) are redesignated as paragraphs {d),
(e), (f), (b}, and (i), respectively, and
new paragraphs {(c) and (g) are added to
read as follows:

§91.520 Performance reports.
* * * * *

(b) Affordable housing. The report
shall include an evaluation of the
jurisdiction’s progress in meeting its
specific objective of providing
affordable housing, including the
number and types of families served.
This element of the report must include
the number of extremely low-income,
low-income, moderate-income, middle-
income, and homeless persons served.

(c) Homelessness. The report must
include, in a form prescribed by HUD,
an evaluation of the jurisdiction’s
progress in meeting its specific
objectives for reducing and ending
homelessness through:

(1) Reaching out to homeless persons
(especially unsheltered persons) and
assessing their individual needs;

(2) Addressing the emergency shelter
and transitional housing needs of
homeless persons;

(3) Helping homeless persons
(especially chronically homeless
individuals and families, families with
children, veterans and their families,
and unaccompanied youth) make the
transition to permanent housing and
independent living, including
shortening the period of time that
individuals and families experience
homelessness, facilitating access for
homeless individuals and families to
affordable housing units, and preventing
individuals and families who were
recently homeless from becoming
homeless again; and

(4) Helping low-income individuals
and families avoid becoming homeless,
especially extremely low-income
individuals and families and those who

are

(1) Likely to become homeless after
being discharged from publicly funded
institutions and systems of care (such as
health-care facilities, mental health
facilities, foster care and other youth
facilities, and corrections programs and
institutions);

(ii) Receiving assistance from public
or private agencies that address housing,
health, social services, employment,
education, or youth needs.

* * * * *

(g) ESG. For jurisdictions receiving
funding under the ESG program
provided in 24 CFR part 576, the report,
in a form prescribed by HUD, must
include the number of persons assisted,
the types of assistance provided, and the
project or program outcomes data
measured under the performance
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standards developed in consultation
with the Continuum(s) of Care.
* * * * *

m 21, Part 576 is revised to read as
follows:

PART 576—EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS
GRANTS PROGRAM

Subpart A—General Provisions

Sec.

576.1 Applicability and purpose.
576.2 Definitions.

576.3 Allocation of funding,

Subpart B—Program Components and
Eligible Activities

576.100 General provisions and
expenditure limits,

576.101 Street outreach component.

576.102 Emergency shelter component.

576.103 Homelessness prevention
component.

576.104 Rapid re-housing assistance
component.

576.105 Housing relocation and
stabilization services.

576.106 Short-term and medium-term
rental assistance.

576.107 HMIS component.

576.108 Administrative activities.

576.109 Indirect costs.

Subpart C—Award and Use of Funds

576.200 Submission requirements and
grant approval.

576.201 Matching requirement.

576.202 Means of carrying out grant
activities.

576.203 Obligation, expenditure, and
payment requirements.

Subpart D—Reallocations

576.300 In general.

576.301 Metropolitan cities and urban
counties.

576.302 States.

576.303 Territories.

576.304 Alternative method.

Subpart E—Program Requirements

576.400 Area-wide systems coordination
requirements.

576.401 Evaluation of program participant
eligibility and needs.

576.402 Terminating assistance.

576.403 Shelter and housing standards.

576.404 Conflicts of interest.

576.405 Homeless participation.

576.406 Faith-based activities.

576.407 Other Federal requirements.

576.408 Displacement, relocation, and
acquisition.

Subpart F—Grant Administration

576.500 Recordkeeping and reporting
requirements.
576.501 Enforcement.

Authority: 42 U.S.C. 11371 et seq., 42
U.S.C. 3535(d).

Subpart A—General Provisions

§576.1 Applicability and purpose.

This part implements the Emergency
Solutions Grants (ESG} program
authorized by subtitle B of title IV of the
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance
Act (42 U.S.C. 11371-11378). The
program authorizes the Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
to make grants to States, units of general
purpose local government, and
territories for the rehabilitation or
conversion of buildings for use as
emergency shelter for the homeless, for
the payment of certain expenses related
to operating emergency shelters, for
essential services related to emergency
shelters and street outreach for the
homeless, and for homelessness
prevention and rapid re-housing
assistance. '

§576.2 Definitions.

At risk of homelessness means: (1) An
individual or family who:

(i) Has an annual income below 30
percent of median family income for the
area, as determined by HUD;

(ii) Does not have sufficient resources
or support networks, e.g., family,
friends, faith-based or other social
networks, immediately available to
prevent them from moving to an
emergency shelter or another place
described in paragraph (1) of the
“homeless” definition in this section;
and :

(iii) Meets one of the following
conditions:

(A) Has moved because of economic
reasons two or more times during the 60
days immediately preceding the
application for homelessness prevention
assistance;

(B) Is living in the home of another
because of economic hardship;

(C) Has been notified in writing that
their right to occupy their current
housing or living situation will be
terminated within 21 days after the date
of application for assistance;

(D) Lives in a hotel or motel and the
cost of the hotel or motel stay is not paid
by charitable organizations or by
Federal, State, or local government
programs for low-income individuals;

(E) Lives in a single-room occupancy
or efficiency apartment unit in which
there reside more than two persons or
lives in a larger housing unit in which
there reside more than 1.5 persons
reside per room, as defined by the U.S,
Census Bureau;

(F) Is exiting a publicly funded
institution, or system of care (such as a
health-care facility, a mental health
facility, foster care or other youth

facility, or correction program or
institution); or

(G) Otherwise lives in housing that
has characteristics associated with
instability and an increased risk of
homelessness, as identified in the
recipient’s approved consolidated plan;

2)A chilcF or youth who does not
qualify as “homeless” under this
section, but qualifies as “homeless”
under section 387(3) of the Runaway
and Homeless Youth Act (42 U.S.C.
5732a(3)), section 637(11) of the Head
Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9832(11)), section
41403(6) of the Violence Against
Women Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 14043e-
2(8)), section 330(h)(5)(A) of the Public
Health Service Act (42 U.S.C.
254b(h)(5)(A)), section 3(m) of the Food
and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C.
2012{m)); or section 17(b)(15) of the
Child Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C.
1786(b)(15)); or

(3) A child or youth who does not
qualify as “homeless” under this
section, but qualifies as “homeless”
under section 725(2) of the McKinney-
Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42
U.S.C. 11434a(2)), and the parent(s) or
guardian(s) of that child or youth if
living with her or him.

Consolidated plan means a plan
prepared in accordance with 24 CFR
part 91. An approved consolidated plan
means a consolidated plan that has been
approved by HUD in accordance with
24 CFR part 91.

Continuum of Care means the group
composed of representatives of relevant
organizations, which generally includes
nonprofit homeless providers; victim
service providers; faith-based
organizations; governments; businesses;
advocates; public housing agencies;
school districts; social service providers;
mental health agencies; hospitals;
universities; affordable housing
developers; law enforcement;
organizations that serve homeless and
formerly homeless veterans, and
homeless and formerly homeless
persons that are organized to plan for
and provide, as necessary, a system of
outreach, engagement, and assessment;
emergency shelter; rapid re-housing;
transitional housing; permanent
housing; and prevention strategies to
address the various needs of homeless
persons and persons at risk of
homelessness for a specific geographic
area.

Emergency shelter means any facility,
the primary purpose of which is to
provide a temporary shelter for the
homeless in general or for specific
populations of the homeless and which
does not require occupants to sign
leases or occupancy agreements. Any
project funded as an emergency shelter
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under a Fiscal Year 2010 Emergency
Solutions grant may continue to be
funded under ESG.

Homeless means:

(1) An individual or family who lacks
a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime
residence, meaning;

(i) An individua% or family with a
primary nighttime residence that is a
public or private place not designed for
or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping
accommodation for human beings,
including a car, park, abandoned
building, bus or train station, airport, or
camping ground;

(ii) An individual or family living in
a supervised publicly or privately
operated shelter designated to provide
temporary living arrangements
(including congregate shelters,
transitional housing, and hotels and
motels paid for by charitable
organizations or by federal, state, or
local government programs for low-
income individuals); or

(iii) An individual who is exiting an
institution where he or she resided for
90 days or less and who resided in an
emergency shelter or place not meant
for human habitation immediately
before entering that institution;

(2} An individual or family who will
imminently lose their primary nighttime
residence, provided that:

{i) The primary nighttime residence
will be lost within 14 days of the date
of application for homeless assistance;

(i1) No subsequent residence has been
identified; and

(iii) The individual or family lacks the
resources or support networks, e.g.,

" family, friends, faith-based or other
social networks, needed to obtain other
permanent housing;

(3) Unaccompanied youth under 25
years of age, or families with children
and youth, who do not otherwise
qualify as homeless under this
definition, but who:

(i) Are defined as homeless under
section 387 of the Runaway and
Homeless Youth Act (42 U.S.C. 5732a),
section 637 of the Head Start Act (42
U.S.C. 9832), section 41403 of the
Violence Against Women Act of 1994
(42 U.S.C. 14043e-2), section 330(h) of
the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C.
254b(h)), section 3 of the Food and
Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. 2012),
section 17(b) of the Child Nutrition Act.
of 1966 (42 U.S.C. 1786(b)) or section
725 of the McKinney-Vento Homeless
Assistance Act (42 U.S.C, 11434a);

(ii) Have not had a lease, ownership
interest, or occupancy agresment in
permanent housing at any time during
the 60 days immediately preceding the
date of application for homeless
assistance;

(iii) Have experienced persistent
instability as measured by two moves or
more during the 60-day period
immediately preceding the date of
applying for homeless assistance; and

(iv) Can be expected to continue in
such status for an extended period of
time because of chronic disabilities,
chronic physical health or mental health
conditions, substance addiction,
histories of domestic violence or
childhood abuse (including neglect), the
presence of a child or youth with a
disability, or two or more barriers to
employment, which include the lack of
a high school degree or General
Education Development (GED),
illiteracy, low English proficiency, a
history of incarceration or detention for
criminal activity, and a history of
unstable employment; or '

(4) Any individual or family who:

(i) Is fleeing, or is attempting to flee,
domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, stalking, or other
dangerous or life-threatening conditions
that relate to violence against the
individual or a family member,
including a child, that has either taken
place within the individual’s or family’s
primary nighttime residence or has
made the individual or family afraid to
return to their primary nighttime
residence;

(ii) Has no other residence; and

(iii) Lacks the resources or support
networks, e.g., family, friends, faith-
based or other social networks, to obtain
other permanent housing.

Homeless Management Information
System (HMIS) means the information

system designated by the Continuum of

Care to comply with the HUD’s data
collection, management, and reporting
standards and used to collect client-
level data and data on the provision of
housing and services to homeless
individuals and families and persons at-
risk of homelessness.

Metropolitan city means a city that
was classified as a metropolitan city
under 42 U.S.C. 5302(a) for the fiscal
year immediately preceding the fiscal
year for which ESG funds are made
available. This term includes the
District of Columbia.

Private nonprofit organization means
a private nonprofit organization that is
a secular or religious organization
described in section 501(c) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and
which is exempt from taxation under
subtitle A of the Code, has an
accounting system and a voluntary
board, and practices nondiscrimination
in the provision of assistance. A private
nonprofit organization does not include
a governmental organization, such as a

public housing agency or housing
finance agency.

Program income shall have the
meaning provided in 24 CFR 85.25.
Program income includes any amount of
a security or utility deposit returned to
the recipient or subrecipient.

Program participant means an
individual or family who is assisted
under ESG program.

Program year means the consolidated
program year established by the
recipient under 24 CFR part 91,

Recipient means any State, territory,
metropolitan city, or urban county, or in
the case of reallocation, any unit of
general purpose local government that is
approved by HUD to assume financial
responsibility and enters into a grant
agreement with HUD to administer
assistance under this part.

State means each of the several States
and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

Subrecipient means a unit of general
purpose local government or private
nonprofit organization to which a
recipient makes available ESG funds.

Territory means each of the following;
the Virgin Islands, Guam, American
Samoa, and the Northern Mariana
Islands.

Unit of general purpose local
government means any city, county,
town, township, parish, village, or other
general purpose political subdivision of
a State.

Urban county means a county that
was classified as an urban county under
42 U.S.C. 5302(a) for the fiscal year
immediately preceding the fiscal year
for which ESG funds are made available.

Victim service provider means a
private nonprofit organization whose
primary mission is to provide services
to victims of domestic violence, dating
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
This term includes rape crisis centers,
battered women'’s shelters, domestic
violencs transitional housing programs,
and other programs,

§576.3 Allocation of funding.

(a) Territories. HUD will set aside for
allocation to the territories up to 0.2
percent, but not less than 0.1 percent, of
the total amount of each appropriation
under this part in any fiscal year. HUD
will allocate this set-aside amount to
each territory based on its proportionate
share of the total population of all
territories and its rate of compliance
with the most recent expenditure
deadline under § 576.203.

{b) States, metropolitan cities, and
urban counties. HUD will allocate the
amounts that remain after the set-aside
to territories under paragraph (a) of this
section to States, metropolitan cities,
and urban counties, as follows:
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(1) HUD will provide that the
percentage of the total amount available
for allocation to each State,
metropolitan city, or urban county is
equal to the percentage of the total
amount available under section 106 of
the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1974 for the prior
fiscal year that was allocated to that
State, metropolitan city, or urban
county.

(2) Except as otherwise provided by
law, if the amount a metropolitan city
or urban county would be allocated
under paragraph (b)(1) is less than 0.05
percent of the total fiscal year
appropriation for ESG, that amount will
be added to the allocation for the State
in which the city or county is located.

() Notification of allocation amount.
HUD will notify each State,
metropolitan city, urban county, and
territory that is eligible to receive an
allocation under this section of the
amount of its allocation.

Subpart B-—Program Components and
Eligible Activities

§576.100 General provisions and
expenditure limits.

(a) ESG funds may be used for five
program components: street outreach,
emergency shelter, homelessness
prevention, rapid re-housing assistance,
and HMIS; as well as administrative
activities. The five program components
and the eligible activities that may be
funded under each are set forth in
§576.101 through §576.107. Eligible
administrative activities are set forth in
§576.108.

(b) The total amount of the recipient’s
fiscal year grant that may be used for
street outreach and emergency shelter
activities cannot exceed the greater of;

(1) 60 percent of the recipient’s fiscal
year grant; or

(2) The amount of Fiscal Year 2010
grant funds committed for homeless
assistance activities.

(c) The total amount of ESG funds that
may be used for administrative activities
cannot exceed 7.5 percent of the
recipient’s fiscal year grant.

(d) Subject to the cost principles in
OMB Circulars A-87 (2 CFR 225) and
A-122 (2 CFR 230) and other
requirements in this part, employee
compensation and other overhead costs
directly related to carrying out street
outreach, emergency shelter,
homelessness prevention, rapid re-
housing, and HMIS are eligible costs of
those program components. These costs
are not subject to the expenditure limit
in paragraph (c) of this section.

§576.101 Street outreach component.

(a) Eligible costs. Subject to the
expenditure limit in § 576.100(b), ESG
funds may be used for costs of providing
essential services necessary to reach out
to unsheltered homeless people;
connect them with emergency shelter,
housing, or critical services; and
provide urgent, nonfacility-based care to
unsheltered homeless people who are
unwilling or unable to access emergency
shelter, housing, or an appropriate
health facility. For the purposes of this
section, the term “unsheltered homeless
people” means individuals and families
who qualify as homeless under
paragraph (1)(i) of the “homeless”’
definition under §576.2. The eligible
costs and requirements for essential
services consist of:

(1) Engagement. The costs of activities
to locate, identify, and build
relationships with unsheltered homeless
people and engage them for the purpose
of providing immediate support,
intervention; and connections with
homeless assistance programs and/or
mainstream social services and housing
programs. These activities consist of
making an injtial assessment of needs
and eligibility; providing crisis
counseling; addressing urgent physical
needs, such as providing meals,
blankets, clothes, or toiletries; and
actively connecting and providing
information and referrals to programs
targeted to homeless people and-
mainstream social services and housing
programs, including emergency shelter,
transitional housing, community-based
services, permanent supportive housing,
and rapid re-housing programs. Eligible
costs include the cell phone costs of
outreach workers during the
performance of these activities.

(2) Case management. The cost of
assessing housing and service needs,
arranging, coordinating, and monitoring
the delivery of individualized services
to meet the needs of the program
participant. Eligible services and
activities are as follows: using the
centralized or coordinated assessment
system as required under § 576.400(d);
conducting the initial evaluation
required under § 576.401(a), including
verifying and documenting eligibility;
counseling; developing, securing and
coordinating services; obtaining Federal,
State, and local benefits; monitoring and
evaluating program participant progress;
providing information and referrals to
other providers; and developing an
individualized housing and service
plan, including planning a path to
permanent housing stability.

(3) Emergency health services. (i)
Eligible costs are for the direct
outpatient treatment of medical

conditions and are provided by licensed
medical professionals operating in
community-based settings, including
streets, parks, and other places where
unsheltered homeless people are living.

(ii) ESG funds may be used only for
these services to the extent that other
appropriate health services are
inaccessible or unavailable within the
area.

(iii) Eligible treatment consists of
assessing a program participant’s health
problems and developing a treatment
plan; assisting program participants to
understand their health needs;
providing directly or assisting program
participants to obtain appropriate
emergency medical treatment; and
providing medication and follow-up
services.

(4) Emergency mental health services.
(i) Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment by licensed professionals of
mental health conditions operating in
community-based settings, including
streets, parks, and other places where
unsheltered people are living.

(ii) ESG funds may be used only for
these services to the extent that other
appropriate mental health services are
inaccessible or unavailable within the
community.

(iii) Mental health services are the
application of therapeutic processes to
personal, family, situational, or
occupational problems in order to bring
about positive resolution of the problem
or improved individual or family
functioning or circumstances.

(iv) Eligible treatment consists of
crisis interventions, the prescription of
psychotropic medications, explanation
about the use and management of
medications, and combinations of
therapeutic approaches to address
multiple problems.

(5) Transportation. The transportation
costs of travel by outreach workers,
social workers, medical professionals, or
other service providers are eligible,
provided that this travel takes place
during the provision of services eligible
under this section. The costs of
transporting unsheltered people to
emergency shelters or other service
facilities are also eligible. These costs
include the following:

(i} The cost of a program participant’s
travel on public transportation;

(ii) If service workers use their own
vehicles, mileage allowance for service
workers to visit program participants;

(iii) The cost of purchasing or leasing
a vehicle for the recipient or
subrecipient in which staff transports
program participants and/or staff
serving program participants, and the
cost of gas, insurance, taxes and
maintenance for the vehicle; and
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(iv) The travel costs of recipient or
subrecipient staff to accompany or assist
program participants to use public
transportation,

(6) Services for special populations.
ESG funds may be used to provide
services for homeless youth, victim
services, and services for people living
with HIV/AIDS, so long as the costs of
providing these services are eligible
under paragraphs (a)(1) through (a)(5) of
this section. The term victim services
means services that assist program
participants who are victims of
domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, or stalking, including
services offered by rape crisis centers
and domestic violence shelters, and
other organizations with a documented
history of effective work concerning
domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, or stalking.

(b) Minimum period 0]5 use, The
recipient or subrecipient must provide
services to homeless individuals and
families for at least the period during
which ESG funds are provided.

(c) Maintenance of effort. (1) If the
recipient or subrecipient is a unit of
general purpose local government, its
ESG funds cannot be used to replace
funds the local government provided for
street outreach and emergency shelter
services during the immediately
preceding 12-month period, unless HUD
determines that the unit of general
purpose local government is in a severe
financial deficit.

(2) Upon the recipient’s request, HUD
will determine whether the unit of
general purpose local government is in
a severe financial deficit, based on the
recipient’s demonstration of each of the
following:

{i) The average poverty rate in the unit
of general purpose local government’s
jurisdiction was equal to or greater than
125 percent of the average national
poverty rate, during the calendar year
for which the most recent data are
available, as determined according to
information from the U.S. Census
Bureau,

(ii) The average per-capita income in
the unit of general purpose local
government’s jurisdiction was less than
75 percent of the average national per-
capita income, during the calendar year
for which the most recent data are
available, as determined according to
information from the Census Bureau.

(iif) The unit of general purpose local
government has a current annual budget
deficit that requires a reduction in
funding for services for homeless
people.

(iv) The unit of general purpose local
government has taken all reasonable
steps to prevent a reduction in funding

of services for homeless people.
Reasonable steps may include steps to
increase revenue generation, steps to
maximize cost savings, or steps to
reduce expenditures in areas other than
services for homeless people.

§576.102 Emergency shelter component.

(a) General. Subject to the
expenditure limit in § 576.100(b), ESG
funds may be used for costs of providing
essential services to homeless families
and individuals in emergency shelters,
renovating buildings to be used as
emergency shelter for homeless families
and individuals, and operating
emergency shelters.

(1) Essential services. ESG funds may
be used to provide essential services to
individuals and families who are in an
emergency shelter, as follows:

(i) Case management. The cost of
assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of
individualized services to meet the
needs of the program participant is
eligible. Component services and
activities consist of:

(A) Using the centralized or
coordinated assessment system as
required under § 576.400(d);

(B) Conducting the initial evaluation
required under § 576.401(a), including
verifying and documenting eligibility;

(C) Counseling;

(D) Developing, securing, and
coordinating services and obtaining
Federal, State, and local benefits;

(E) Monitoring and evaluating
program participant progress;

(F) Providing information and
referrals to other providers;

{G) Providing ongoing risk assessment
and safety planning with victims of
domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, and stalking; and

(H) Developing an individualized
housing and service plan, including
planning a path to permanent housing
stability.

(ii) Child care. The costs of child care
for program participants, including
providing meals and snacks, and
comprehensive and coordinated sets of
appropriate developmental activities,
are eligible. The children must be under
the age of 13, unless they are disabled.
Disabled children must be under the age
of 18. The child-care center must be
licensed by the jurisdiction in which it
operates in order for its costs to be
eligible,

(iii) Education services. When
necessary for the program participant to
obtain and maintain housing, the costs
of improving knowledge and basic
educational skills are eligible. Services
include instruction or training in
consumer education, health education,

substance abuse prevention, literacy,
English as a Second Language, and
General Educational Development
(GED). Component services or activities
are screening, assessment and testing;
individual or group instruction;
tutoring; provision of books, supplies
and instructional material; counseling;
and referral to community resources.

(iv) Employment assistance and job
training. The costs of employment ’
assistance and job training programs are
eligible, including classroom, online,
and/or computer instruction; on-the-job
instruction; and services that assist
individuals in securing employment,
acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of
providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment
assistance and job training programs is
an eligible cost. Learning skills include
those skills that can be used to secure
and retain a job, including the
acquisition of vocational licenses and/or
certificates. Services that assist
individuals in securing employment
consist of employment screening,
assessment, or testing; structured job
skills and job-seeking skills; special
training and tutoring, including literacy
training and prevocational training;
books and instructional material;
counseling or job coaching; and referral
to community resources.

(v) Outpatient health services. Eligible
costs are for the direct outpatient
treatment of medical conditions and are
provided by licensed medical
professionals. Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG) funds may be used only for
these services to the extent that other
appropriate health services are
unavailable within the community.
Eligible treatment consists of assessing a
program participant’s health problems
and developing a treatment plan;
assisting program participants to
understand their health needs;
providing directly or assisting program
participants to obtain appropriate
medical treatment, preventive medical
care, and health maintenance services,
including emergency medical services;
providing medication and follow-up
services; and providing preventive and
noncosmetic dental care.

(vi) Legal services. (A) Eligible costs
are the hourly fees for legal advice and
representation by attorneys licensed and
in good standing with the bar
association of the State in which the
services are provided, and by person(s)
under the supervision of the licensed
attorney, regarding matters that interfere
with the program participant’s ability to
obtain and retain housing.

(B) Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
funds may be used only for these
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services to the extent that other
appropriate legal services are
unavailable or inaccessible within the
communit{v}.

(C) Eligible subject matters are child
support, guardianship, paternity,
emancipation, and legal separation,
orders of protection and other civil
remedies for victims of domestic
viclence, dating violence, sexual
assault, and stalking, appeal of veterans
and public benefit claim denials, and
the resolution of outstanding criminal
warrants,

(D) Component services or activities
may include client intake, preparation
of cases for trial, provision of legal
advice, representation at hearings, and
counseling.

(E) Fees based on the actual service
performed (i.e., fee for service) are also
eligible, but only if the cost would be
less than the cost of hourly fees. Filing
fees and other necessary court costs are
also eligible. If the subrecipient is a
legal services provider and performs the
services itself, the eligible costs are the
subrecipient’s employees’ salaries and
other costs necessary to perform the
services.

(F) Legal services for immigration and
citizenship matters and issues relating
to mortgages are ineligible costs.
Retainer fee arrangements and
contingency fee arrangements are
ineligible costs,

(vii) Life skills training. The costs of
teaching critical life management skills
that may never have been learned or
have been lost during the course of
physical or mental illness, domestic
violence, substance use, and
homelessness are eligible costs. These
services must be necessary to assist the
program participant to function
independently in the community.
Component life skills training are
budgeting resources, managing money,
managing a household, resolving
conflict, shopping for food and needed
items, improving nutrition, using public
transportation, and parenting.

(vili) Mental health services. (A)
Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment by licensed professionals of
mental health conditions.

(B} ESG funds may only be used for
these services to the extent that other
appropriate mental health services are
unavailable or inaccessible within the
community.

(C) Mental health services are the
application of therapeutic processes to
personal, family, situational, or
occupational problems in order to bring
about positive resolution of the problem
or improved individual or family
functioning or circumstances. Problem
areas may include family and marital

relationships, parent-child problems, or
symptom management.

(D) Eligible treatment consists of crisis
interventions; individual, family, or
group therapy sessions; the prescription
of psychotropic medications or
explanations about the use and
management of medications; and
combinations of therapeutic approaches
to address multiple problems,

(ix) Substance abuse treatment
services. (A) Eligible substance abuse
treatment services are designed to
prevent, reduce, eliminate, or deter
relapse of substance abuse or addictive
behaviors and are provided by licensed
or certified professionals.

(B) ESG funds may only be used for
these services to the extent that other
appropriate substance abuse treatment
services are unavailable or inaccessible
within the community.

(C) Eligible treatment consists of
client intake and assessment, and
outpatient treatment for up to 30 days.
Group and individual counseling and
drug testing are eligible costs. Inpatient
detoxification and other inpatient drug
or alcohol treatment are not eligible
costs,

(%) Transportation. Eligible costs
consist of the transportation costs of a
program participant’s travel to and from
medical care, employment, child care,
or other eligible essential services
facilities. These costs include the
following:

(A) The cost of a program
participant’s travel on public
transportation;

(B) If service workers use their own
vehicles, mileage allowance for service
workers to visit program participants;

(C) The cost oF purchasing or leasing
a vehicle for the recipient or
subrecipient in which staff transports
program participants and/or staff
serving program participants, and the
cost of gas, insurance, taxes, and
maintenance for the vehicle; and

(D) The travel costs of recipient or
subrecipient staff to accompany or assist
program participants to use public
transportation.

(xiFServices for special populations.
ESG funds may be used to provide
services for homeless youth, victim
services, and services for people living
with HIV/AIDS, so long as the costs of
providing these services are eligible
under paragraphs (a)(1)(i} through
(a)(1)(x) of this section. The term victim
services means services that assist
program participants who are victims of
domestic violence, dating viclence,
sexual assault, or stalking, including
services offered by rape crisis centers
and domestic violence shelters, and
other organizations with a documented

history of effective work concerning
domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, or stalking.

(2) Renovation. Eligible costs include
labor, materials, tools, and other costs
for renovation (including major ]
rehabilitation of an emergency shelter or
conversion of a building into an
emergency shelter). The emergency
shelter must be owned by a government
entity or private nonprofit organization.

(3) Shelter operations. Eligible costs
are the costs of maintenance (including
minor or routine repairs), rent, security,
fuel, equipment, insurance, utilities,
food, furnishings, and supplies
necessary for the operation of the
emergency shelter. Where no
appropriate emergency shelter is
available for a homeless family or
individual, eligible costs may also
include a hotel or motel voucher for that
family or individual.

(4) Assistance required under the
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisition Policies Act of
1970 (URA). Eligible costs are the costs
of providing URA assistance under
§576.408, including relocation
payments and other assistance to
persons displaced by a project assisted
with ESG funds. Persons that receive
URA assistance are not considered
“program participants” for the purposes
of this part, and relocation payments
and other URA assistance are not
considered ‘rental assistance” or
“housing relocation and stabilization
services” for the purposes of this part.

(b) Prohibition against involuntary
family separation. The age, of a child
under age 18 must not be used as a basis
for denying any family’s admission to
an emergency shelter that uses
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
funding or services and provides shelter
to families with children under age 18.

(¢} Minimum period of use. (1)
Renovated buildings. Each building
renovated with ESG funds must be
maintained as a shelter for homeless
individuals and families for not less
than a period of 3 or 10 years,
depending on the type of renovation
and the value of the building. The
“value of the building” is the reasonable
monetary value assigned to the building,
such as the value assigned by an
independent real estate appraiser. The
minimum use period must begin on the
date the building is first occupied by a
homeless individual or family after the
completed renovation. A minimum
period of use of 10 years, required for
major rehabilitation and conversion,
must be enforced by a recorded deed or
use restriction.

(i) Major rehabilitation. If the
rehabilitation cost of an-emergency
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shelter exceeds 75 percent of the value
of the building before rehabilitation, the
minimum period of use is 10 years.

(ii) Conversion. If the cost to convert
a building into an emergency shelter
exceeds 75 percent of the value of the
building after conversion, the minimum
period of use is 10 years.

(iii) Renovation other than major
rehabilitation or conversion. In all other
cases where ESG funds are used for
renovation, the minimum period of use
is 3 years.

(2) Essential services and shelter
operations. Where the recipient or
subrecipient uses ESG funds solely for
essential services or shelter operations,
the recipient or subrecipient must
provide services or shelter to homeless
individuals and families at least for the
period during which the ESG funds are
provided. The recipient or subrecipient
does not need to limit these services or
shelter to a particular site or structure,
s0 long as the site or structure serves the
same type of persons originally served
with the assistance (e.g., families with
children, unaccompanied youth,
disabled individuals, or victims of
domestic violence) or serves homeless
persons in the same area where the
recipient or subrecipient originally
provided the services or shelter,

{d) Maintenance of effort. The
maintenance of effort requirements
under §576.101(c), which apply to the
use of ESG funds for essential services
related to street outreach, also apply for
the use of such funds for essential
services related to emergency shelter,

§576.103 Homelessness prevention
component.

ESG funds may be used to provide
housing relocation and stabilization
services and short- and/or medium-term
rental assistance necessary to prevent an
individual or family from moving into
an emergency shelter or another place
described in paragraph (1) of the
“homeless” definition in § 576.2. This
assistance, referred to as homelessness
prevention, may be provided to
individuals and families who meet the
criteria under the “at risk of
homelessness” definition, or who meet
the criteria in paragraph (2), (3), or (4)
of the “homeless” definition in §576.2

‘and have an annual income below 30
percent of median family income for the
area, as determined by HUD. The costs
of homelessness prevention are only
eligible to the extent that the assistance
is necessary to help the program
participant regain stability in the
program participant’s current
permanent housing or move into other
permanent housing and achieve stability
in that housing. Homelessness

prevention must be provided in
accordance with the housing relocation
and stabilization services requirements
in § 576.105, the short-term and
medium-term rental assistance
requirements in § 576.106, and the
written standards and procedures
established under § 576.400.

§576.104 Rapid re-housing assistance
component.

ESG funds may be used to provide
housing relocation and stabilization
services and short- and/or medium-term
rental assistance as necessary to help a
homeless individual or family move as
quickly as possible into permanent
housing and achieve stability in that
housing. This assistance, referred to as
rapid re-housing assistance, may be
provided to program participants who
meet the criteria under paragraph (1) of
the “homeless” definition in §576.2 or
who meet the criteria under paragraph
(4) of the “homeless” definition and live
in'an emergency shelter or other place
described in paragraph (1) of the
“homeless” definition. The rapid re-
housing assistance must be provided in
accordance with the housing relocation
and stabilization services requirements
in § 576.105, the short- and medium-
term rental assistance requirements in
§ 576,106, and the written standards and
procedures established under § 576.400.

§576.105 Housing relocation and
stabllization services.

(a) Financial assistance costs, Subject
to the general conditions under
§576.103 and § 576.104, ESG funds may
be used to pay housing owners, utility
companies, and other third parties for
the following costs:

(1) Rental application fees. ESG funds
may pay for the rental housing
application fee that is charged by the
owner to all applicants.

(2) Security deposits. ESG funds may
pay for a security deposit that is equal
to no more than 2 months’ rent.

(3) Last month’s rent. If necessary to
obtain housing for a program
participant, the last month’s rent may be
paid from ESG funds to the owner of
that housing at the time the owner is
paid the security deposit and the first
month’s rent. This assistance must not
exceed one month’s rent and must be
included in calculating the program
participant’s total rental assistance,
which cannot exceed 24 months during
any 3-year period.

(4) Utility deposits. ESG funds may
pay for a standard utility deposit
required by the utility company for all
customers for the utilities listed in
paragraph (5) of this section.

(5) Utility payments. ESG funds may
pay for up to 24 months of utility
payments per program participant, per
service, including up to 6 months of
utility payments in arrears, per service.
A partial payment of a utility bill counts
as one month. This assistance may only
be provided if the program participant
or a member of the same household has
an account in his or her name with a
utility company or proof of
responsibility to make utility payments.
Eligible utility services are gas, electric,
water, and sewage. No program
participant shall receive more than
24 months of utility assistance within
any 3-year period.

{6) Moving costs. ESG funds may pay
for moving costs, such as truck rental or
hiring a moving company. This
assistance may include payment of
temporary storage fees for up to 3
months, provided that the fees are
accrued after the date the program
participant begins receiving assistance
under paragraph (b) of this section and
before the program participant moves
into permanent housing. Payment of
temporary storage fees in arrears is not
eligible.

(%)) Services costs. Subject to the
general restrictions under §576.103 and
§576.104, ESG funds may be used to
pay the costs of providing the following
services:

(1) Housing search and placement.
Services or activities necessary to assist
program participants in locating,
obtaining, and retaining suitable
permanent housing, include the
following:

(i) Assessment of housing barriers,
needs, and preferences;

(ii) Development of an action plan for
locating housing;

(iii) Housing search;

(iv) Outreach to and negotiation with
owners;

{v) Assistance with submitting rental
applications and understanding leases;

(vi) Assessment of housing for
compliance with Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG) requirements for
habitability, lead-based paint, and rent
reasonableness;

(vii) Assistance with obtaining
utilities and making moving
arrangements; and

(viii) Tenant counseling.

(2) Housing stability case
management. ESG funds may be used to
pay cost of assessing, arranging,
coordinating, and monitoring the
delivery of individualized services to
facilitate housing stability for a program
participant who resides in permanent
housing or to assist a program
participant in overcoming immediate
barriers to obtaining housing. This
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assistance cannot exceed 30 days during
the period the program participant is
seeking permanent housing and cannot
exceed 24 months during the period the
program participant is living in
permanent housing. Component
services and activities consist of;

(A) Using the centralized or
coordinated assessment system as
required under § 576.400(d), to evaluate
individuals and families applying for or
receiving homelessness prevention or
rapid re-housing assistance;

(B) Conducting the initial evaluation
required under § 576.401(a}, including
verifying and documenting eligibility,
for individuals and families applying for
homelessness prevention or rapid re-
housing assistance;

(C) Counseling;

(D) Developing, securing, and
coordinating services and obtaining
Federal, State, and local benefits;

(E) Monitoring and evaluating
program participant progress;

(F) Providing information and
referrals to other providers;

(G) Developing an individualized
housing and service plan, including
planning a path to permanent housing
stability; and

(H) Conducting re-evaluations
required under §576.401(b).

(3) Mediation. ESG funds may pay for
mediation between the program
participant and the owner or person(s)
with whom the program participant is
living, provided that the mediation is
necessary to prevent the program
participant from losing permanent
housing in which the program
participant currently resides.

{4) Legal services. ESG funds may pay
for legal services, as set forth in
§ 576.102(a)(1)(vi), except that the
eligible subject matters also include
landlord/tenant matters, and the
services must be necessary to resolve a
legal problem that prohibits the program
participant from obtaining permanent
housing or will likely result in the
program participant losing the
permanent housing in which the
program participant currently resides.

(5) Credit repair. ESG funds may pay
for credit counseling and other services
necessary to assist program participants
with critical skills related to household
budgeting, managing money, accessing a
free personal credit report, and
resolving personal credit problems. This
assistance does not include the payment
or modification of a debt.

(c) Maximum amounts and periods of
assistance. The recipient may set a
maximum dollar amount that a program
participant may receive for each type of
financial assistance under paragraph (a)
of this section. The recipient may also

set a maximum period for which a
program participant may receive any of
the types of assistance or services under
this section. However, except for
housing stability case management, the
total period for which any program
participant may receive the services
under paragraph (b) of this section must
not exceed 24 months during any 3-year
period. The limits on the assistance
under this section apply to the total
assistance an individual receives, either
as an individual or as part of a family.

(d) Use with other subsidies. Financial
assistance under paragraph (a) of this
section cannot be provided to a program
participant who is receiving the same
type of assistance through other public
sources or to a program participant who
has been provided with replacement
housing payments under the URA,
during the period of time covered by the
URA payments. '

§576.106 Short-term and medium-term
rental assistance. s :

(a) General provisions. Subject to the
general conditions under §576.103 and
§576.104, the recipient or subrecipient
may provide a program participant with
up to 24 months of rental assistance
during any 3-year period. This
assistance may be short-term rental
assistance, medium-term rental
assistance, payment of rental arrears, or
any combination of this assistance.

(1) Short-term rental assistance is
assistance for up to 3 months of rent.

(2) Medium-term rental assistance is
assistance for more than 3 months but
not more than 24 months of rent.

(3) Payment of rental arrears consists
of a one-time payment for up to 6
months of rent in arrears, including any
late fees on those arrears.

(4) Rental assistance may be tenant-
based or project-based, as set forth in
paragraphs (h) and (i) of this section.

(b} Discretion to set caps and
conditions. Subject to the requirements
of this section, the recipient may set a
maximum amount or percentage of
rental assistance that a program
participant may receive, a maximum
number of months that a program
participant may receive rental
assistance, or a maximum number of
times that a program participant may
receive rental assistance. The recipient
may also require program participants to
share in the costs of rent.

(c) Use with other subsidies. Except
for a one-time payment of rental arrears
on the tenant’s portion of the rental
payment, rental assistance cannot be
provided to a program participant who
is receiving tenant-based rental
assistance, or living in a housing unit
receiving project-based rental assistance

or operating assistance, through other
public sources. Rental assistance may
not be provided to a program participant
who has been provided with
replacement housing payments under
the URA during the period of time
covered by the URA payments.

{(d) Rent restrictions. (1) Rental
assistance cannot be provided unless
the rent does not exceed the Fair Market
Rent established by HUD, as provided
under 24 CFR part 888, and complies
with HUD’s standard of rent
reasonableness, as established under 24
CFR 982.507.

(2) For purposes of calculating rent
under this section, the rent shall equal
the sum of the total monthly rent for the
unit, any fees required for occupancy
under the lease (other than late fees and
pet fees) and, if the tenant pays
separately for utilities, the monthly
allowance for utilities (excluding
telephone) established by the public
housing authority for the area in which
the housing is located.

(e) Rental assistance agreement. The
recipient or subrecipient may make
rental assistance payments only to an
owner with whom the recipient or
subrecipient has entered into a rental
assistance agreement. The rental
assistance agreement must set forth the
terms under which rental assistance will
be provided, including the requirements
that apply under this section. The rental
assistance agreement must provide that,
during the term of the agreement, the
owner must give the recipient or
subrecipient a copy of any notice to the
program participant to vacate the
housing unit, or any complaint used
under state or local law to commence an
eviction action against the program
participant.

{f) Late payments. The recipient or
subrecipient must make timely
payments to each owner in accordance
with the rental assistance agreement.
The rental assistance agreement must
contain the same payment due date,
grace period, and late payment penalty
requirements as the program :
participant’s lease. The recipient or
subrecipient is solely responsible for
paying late payment penalties that it
incurs with non-ESG funds.

(g) Lease. Each program participant
receiving rental assistance must have a
legally binding, written lease for the
rental unit, unless the assistance is
solely for rental arrears. The lease must
be between the owner and the program
participant. Where the assistance is
solely for rental arrears, an oral
agreement may be accepted in place of
a written lease, if the agreement gives
the program participant an enforceable
leasehold interest under state law and
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the agreement and rent owed are
sufficiently documented by the owner’s
financial records, rent ledgers, or
canceled checks. For program
participants living in housing with
project-based rental assistance under
paragraph (i} of this section, the lease
must have an initial term of one year.

(h) Tenant-based rental assistance.
(1) A program participant who receives
tenant-based rental assistance may
select a housing unit in which to live
and may move to another unit or
building and continue to receive rental
assistance, as long as the program
participant continues to meet the
program requirements.

(2) The recipient may require that all
program participants live within a
particular area for the period in which
the rental assistance is provided.

(3) The rental assistance agreement
with the owner must terminate and no
further rental assistance payments
under that agreement may be made if:

(i} The program participant moves out
of the housing unit for which the
program participant has a lease;

(i1) The lease terminates and is not
renewed; or

(iii) The program participant becomes
ineligible to receive ESG rental
assistance.

(i) Project-based rental assistance, If
the recipient or subrecipient identifies a
permanent housing unit that meets ESG
requirements and becomes available
before a program participant is
identified to lease the unit, the recipient
or subrecipient may enter into a rental
assistance agreement with the owner to
reserve the unit and subsidize its rent in
accordance with the following
requirements:

1) The rental assistance agreement
may cover one Or more permanent
housing units in the same building,
Each unit covered by the rental
assistance agreement (“‘assisted unit”)
may only be occupied by program
participants, except as provided under
paragraph (i)(4) of this section.

(2) The recipient or subrecipient may
pay up to 100 percent of the first
month’s rent, provided that a program
participant signs a lease and moves into
the unit before the end of the month for
which the first month’s rent is paid. The
rent paid before a program participant
moves into the unit must not exceed the
rent to be charged under the program
participant’s lease and must be included
when determining that program
participant’s total rental assistance.

(3) The recipient or subrecipient may
make monthly rental assistance
payments only for each whole or partial
month an assisted unit is leased to a
program participant. When a program

participant moves out of an assisted
unit, the recipient or subrecipient may
pay the next month’s rent, i.e., the first
month’s rent for a new program
participant, as provided in paragraph
(1)(2) of this section.

(4) The program participant’s lease
must not condition the term of
occupancy to the provision of rental
assistance payments. If the program
participant is determined ineligible or
reaches the maximum number of
months over which rental assistance can
be provided, the recipient or
subrecipient must suspend or terminate
the rental assistance payments for the
unit. If the payments are suspended, the
individual or family may remain in the
assisted unit as permitted under the
lease, and the recipient or subrecipient
may resume payments if the individual
or family again becomes eligible and
needs further rental assistance. If the
payments are terminated, the rental
assistance may be transferred to another
available unit in the same building,
provided that the other unit meets all
ESG requirements.

(5) The rental assistance agreement
must have an initial term of one year.
When a new program participant moves
into an assisted unit, the term of the
rental assistance agreement may be
extended to cover the initial term of the
program participant’s lease. If the
program participant’s lease is renewed,
the rental assistance agreement may be
renewed or extended, as needed, up to
the maximum number of months for
which the program participant remains
eligible. However, under no
circumstances may the recipient or
subrecipient commit ESG funds to be
expended beyond the expenditure
deadline in §576.203 or commit funds
for a future ESG grant before the grant
is awarded.

(j) Changes in household composition.
The limits on the assistance under this
section apply to the total assistance an
individual receives, either as an
individual or as part of a family.

§576.107 HMIS component.

(a) Eligible costs.

(1) The recipient or subrecipient may
use ESG funds to pay the costs of
contributing data to the HMIS
designated by the Continuum of Care for
the area, including the costs of:

(i) Purchasing or leasing computer
hardware;

(ii) Purchasing software or software
licenses;

(iii) Purchasing or leasing equipment,
including telephones, fax machines, and
furniture;

(iv) Obtaining technical support;

(v) Leasing office space;

(vi) Paying charges for electricity, gas,
water, phone service, and high-speed
data transmission necessary to operate
or contribute data to the HMIS;

(vii) Paying salaries for operating
HMIS, including:

(A) Completing data entry;

(B) Monitoring and reviewing data

© quality;

(C) Completing data analysis;

(D) Reporting to the HMIS Lead;

(F) Training staff on using the HMIS
or comparable database; and

(G) Implementing and complying with
HMIS requirements;

(viii) Paying costs of staff to travel to
and attend HUD-sponsored and HUD-
approved training on HMIS and
programs authorized by Title IV of the
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance
Act;

(ix) Paying staff travel costs to
conduct intake; and

(x) Paying participation fees charged
by the HMIS Lead, if the recipient or
subrecipient is not the HMIS Lead, The
HMIS Lead is the entity designated by
the Continuum of Care to operate the
area’s HMIS.

(2) If the recipient is the HMIS lead
agency, as designated by the Continuum
of Care in the most recent fiscal year
Continuum of Care Homeless Assistance
Grants Competition, it may also use ESG
funds to pay the costs of:

(i) Hosting and maintaining HMIS
software or data;

(ii) Backing up, recovering, or
repairing HMIS software or data;

(iii) Upgrading, customizing, and
enhancing the HMIS;

(iv) Integrating and warehousing data,
including development of a data
warehouse for use in aggregating data
from subrecipients using multiple
software systems;

{v) Administering the system;

(vi) Reporting to providers, the
Continuum of Care, and HUD; and

{vii) Conducting training on using the
system or a comparable database,
including traveling to the training.

(3) If the subrecipient is a victim
services provider or a legal services
provider, it may use ESG funds to
establish and operate a comparable
database that collects client-level data
over time (i.e., longitudinal data) and
generates unduplicated aggregate
reports based on the data. Information
entered into a comparable database
must not be entered directly into or
provided to an HMIS.

(b) General restrictions. Activities
funded under this section must comply
with HUD’s standards on participation,
data collection, and reporting under a
local HMIS. :
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§576.108 Administrative activities.

(a) Eligible costs. The recipient may
use up to 7.5 percent of its ESG grant
for the payment of administrative costs
related to the planning and execution of
ESG activities. This does not include
staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under
§576.101 through § 576.107, because
those costs are eligible as part of those
activities. Eligible administrative costs
include:

(1) General management, oversight
and coordination. Costs of overall
program management, coordination,
monitoring, and evaluation. These costs
include, but are not limited to,
necessary expenditures for the
following:

(i) Salaries, wages, and related costs of
the recipient’s staff, the staff of
subrecipients, or other staff engaged in
program administration. In charging
costs to this category, the recipient may
either include the entire salary, wages,
and related costs allocable to the
program of each person whose primary
responsibilities with regard to the
program involve program
administration assignments, or the pro
rata share of the salary, wages, and
related costs of each person whose job
includes any program administration
assignments. The recipient may use
only one of these methads for each
fiscal year grant. Program
administration assignments include the
following:

(A) Preparing program budgets and
schedules, and amendments to those
budgets and schedules;

(B) Developing systems for assuring
compliance with program requirements;

(C) Developing interagency
agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry
out program activities;

{D) Monitoring program activities for
progress and compliance with program
requirements;

(E) Preparing reports and other
documents directly related to the
program for submission to HUD;

(F) Coordinating the resolution of
audit and monitoring findings;

(G) Evaluating program results against
stated objectives; and :

(H) Managing or supervising persons
whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such
assignments as those described in
paragraph (a)(1)(i)(A) through (G) of this
section.

(ii) Travel costs incurred for
monitoring of subrecipients;

(iii) Administrative services
performed under third-party contracts
or agreements, including general legal

services, accounting services, and audit
services; and

(iv) Other costs for goods and services
required for administration of the
program, including rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office
supplies, and rental and maintenance
{but not purchase) of office space.

(2) Training on ESG requirements.
Costs of providing training on ESG
requirements and attending HUD-
sponsored ESG trainings.

(3) Consolidated plan. Costs of
preparing and amending the ESG and
homelessness-related sections of the
consolidated plan in accordance with
ESG requirements and 24 CFR part 91.

(4) Environmental review. Costs of
carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under § 576.407.

(b) Sharing requirement. (1) States. If
the recipient is a State, the recipient
must share its funds for administrative
costs with its subrecipients that are
units of general purpose local
government. The amount shared must
be reasonable under the circumstances.
The recipient may share its funds for
administrative costs with its
subrecipients that are private nonprofit
organizations.

(2) Territories, metropolitan cities,
and urban counties. If the recipient is a
territory, metropolitan city, or urban
county, the recipient may share its
funds for administrative costs with its
subrecipients.

§576.109 Indirect costs.

(a} In general. ESG grant funds may be
used to pay indirect costs in accordance
with OMB Circular A~87 (2 CFR part
225), or A—~122 (2 CFR part 230), as
applicable.

(b) Allocation. Indirect costs may be
allocated to each eligible activity under
§576.101 through §576.108, so long as
that allocation is consistent with an
indirect cost rate proposal developed in
accordance with OMB Circular A-87 (2
CFR part 225), or A-122 (2 CFR part
230), as applicable.

(c) Expenditure limits. The indirect
costs charged to an activity subject to an
expenditure limit under § 576.100 must
be added to the direct costs charged for
that activity when determining the total
costs subject to the expenditure limit.

Subpart C—Award and Use of Funds

§576.200 Submission requirements and
grant approval.

(a) Application submission and
approval. In addition to meeting the
application submission requirements in
24 CFR part 5, subpart K, each State,
urban county, or metropolitan city must
submit and obtain HUD approval of a

consolidated plan in accordance with
the requirements in 24 CFR part 91, and
each territory must submit and obtain
HUD approval of a consolidated plan in
accordance with the requirements that
apply to local governments under 24
CFR part 91. As provided under 24 CFR
85,12, HUD may impose special
conditions or restrictions on a grant, if
the recipient is determined to be high
risk.

(b) Amendments. The recipient must
amend its approved consolidated plan
in order to make a change in its
allocation priorities; make a change in
its method of distributing funds; carry
out an activity not previously described
in the plan; or change the purpose,
scope, location, or beneficiaries of an
activity. The amendment must be
completed and submitted to HUD in
accordance with the requirements under
24 CFR 91.,505.

§576.201 Matching requirement.

(a) Required amount of matching
contributions. (1} Except as provided
under paragraphs (a)(2) and (a)(3) of this
section, the recipient must make
matching contributions to supplement
the recipient’s ESG program in an
amount that equals the amount of ESG
funds provided by HUD.

@) IF the recipient is a State, the first
$100,000 of the fiscal year grant is not
required to be matched. However, the
recipient must transfer the benefit of
this exception to its subrecipients that
are least capable of providing the
recipient with matching contributions.

(3) This matching requirement does
not apply if the recipient is a territory.

(b) Eligible sources of matching
contributions. (1) Subject to the
requirement for States under paragraph
(a)(2) of this section, the recipient may
require its subrecipients to make
matching contributions consistent with
this section to help meet the recipient’s
matching requirement,

(2) Matching contributions may be
obtained from any source, including any
Federal source other than the ESG
program, as well as state, local, and
private sources. However, the following
requirements apply to matching
contributions from a Federal source of
funds:

{i) The recipient must ensure the laws
governing any funds to be used as
matching contributions do not prohibit
those funds from being-used to match
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds.

(ii) If ESG funds are used to satisfy the
matching requirements of another
Federal program, then funding from that
program may not be used to satisfy the
matching requirements under this
section. )
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{c) Recognition of matching
contributions. (1) In order to meet the
matching requirement, the matching
contributions must meet all
requirements that apply to the ESG
funds provided by HUD, except for the
expenditure limits in § 576.100.

2) The matching contributions must
be provided after the date that HUD
signs the grant agreement.

(3) To count toward the required
match for the recipient’s fiscal year
grant, cash contributions must be
expended within the expenditure
deadline in § 576.203, and noncash
contributions must be made within the
expenditure deadline in § 576.203.

4) Contributions used to match a
previous ESG grant may not be used to
match a subsequent ESG grant.

(5) Contributions that have been or
will be counted as satisfying a matching
requirement of another Federal grant or
award may not count as satisfying the
matching requirement of this section.

(d) Eligible types of matching
contributions. The matching
requirement may be met by one or both
of the following:

(1) Cash contributions. Cash
expended for allowable costs, as defined
in OMB Circulars A-87 (2 CFR part 225)
and A-122 (2 CFR part 230), of the
recipient or subrecipient.

(2) Noncash contributions. The value
of any real property, equipment, goods,
or services contributed to the recipient’s
or subrecipient’s ESG program,
provided that if the recipient or
subrecipient had to pay for them with
grant funds, the costs would have been
allowable. Noncash contributions may
also include the purchase value of any
donated building.

(e) Calculating the amount of noncash
contributions. (1) To determine the
value of any donated material or
building, or of any lease, the recipient
must use a method reasonably
calculated to establish the fair market
value.

(2) Services provided by individuals
must be valued at rates consistent with
those ordinarily paid for similar work in
the recipient’s or subrecipient’s
organization, If the recipient or
subrecipient does not have employees
performing similar work, the rates must
be consistent with those ordinarily paid
by other employers for similar work in
the same labor market.

(3) Some noncash contributions are
real property, equipment, goods, or
services that, if the recipient or
subrecipient had to pay for them with
grant funds, the payments would have
been indirect costs. Matching eredit for
these contributions must be given only
if the recipient or subrecipient has

established, along with its regular
indirect cost rate, a special rate for
allocating to individual projects or
programs the value of those
contributions.

(f) Costs paid by program income.
Costs paid by program income shall
count toward meeting the recipient’s
matching requirements, provided the
costs are eligible ESG costs that
supplement the recipient’s ESG
program.

§576.202  Means of carrying out grant
activitles.

(a) States. If the recipient is a State,
the recipient may use an amount
consistent with the restrictions in
§576.100 and § 576.108 to carry out
administrative activities through its
employees or procurement contracts. If
the recipient is a State, and has been
identified as the HMIS lead by the
Continuum of Care, the State may use
funds to carry out HMIS activities set
forth in § 576.107(a)(2). The recipient
must subgrant the remaining funds in its
fiscal year grant to:

(1) Units of general purpose local
government in the State, which may
include metropolitan cities and urban
counties that receive ESG funds directly
from HUD; or

(2) Private nonprofit organizations,
provided that for emergency shelter
activities the recipient obtains a
certification of approval from the unit of
general purpose local government for
the geographic area in which those
activities are to be carried out.

(b) Recipients other than States;
subrecipients. The recipient, if it is not
a State, and all subrecipients may carry
out all eligible activities through their
employees, procurement contracts, or
subgrants to private nonprofit
organizations. If the recipient is an
urban county, it may carry out activities
through any of its member governments,
so long as the county applies to its
members the same requirements that are
applicable to local government
subrecipients under this part.

§576.203 Obligation, expenditure, and
payment requirements.

(a) Obligation of funds. (1) Funds
allocated to States. (i) Within 60 days
from the date that HUD signs the grant
agreement with the State {or grant
amendment for reallocated funds), the
recipient must obligate the entire grant,
except the amount for its administrative
costs. This requirement is met by a
subgrant agreement with, or a letter of
award requiring payment from the grant
to, a subrecipient.

(ii) Within 120 days after the date that
the State obligates its funds to a unit of

general purpose local government, the
subrecipient must obligate all of those
funds by a subgrant agreement with, or
a letter of award requiring payment to,
a private nonprofit organization; a
procurement contract; or the written
designation of a department within the
government of the subrecipient to
directly carry out an eligible activity.

(2) Funds allocated to metropolitan
cities, urban counties, and territories.
Within 180 days after the date that HUD
signs the grant agreement (or a grant
amendment for reallocation of funds)
with the metropolitan city, urban
county, or territory, the recipient must
obligate all the grant amount, except the
amount for its administrative costs. This
requirement is met by an agreement
with, or a letter of award requiring
payment to, a subrecipient; a
procurement contract; or a written
designation of a department within the
government of the recipient to directly
carry out an eligible activity. If the
recipient is an urban county, this
requirement may also be met with an
agreement with, or letter of award
requiring payment to, a member
government, which has designated a
department to directly carry out an
eligible activity.

) Expenditures. The recipient must
draw down and expend funds from each
year’s grant not less than once during
each quarter of the recipient’s program
year. All of the recipient’s grant must be
expended for eligible activity costs
within 24 months after the date HUD
signs the grant agreement with the
recipient. For the purposes of this
paragraph, expenditure means either an
actual cash disbursement for a direct
charge for a good or service or an
indirect cost or the accrual of a direct
charge for a good or service or an
indirect cost.

(c) Payments to subrecipients. The
recipient must pay each subrecipient for
allowable costs within 30 days after
receiving the subrecipient’s complete
payment request. This requirement also
applies to each subrecipient that is a
unit of general purpose local
government.

Subpart D—Reallocations

§576.300 In general.

(1) Funds not awarded by HUD due to
failure by the recipient to submit and
obtain HUD approval of a consolidated
plan will be reallocated in accordance
with §§ 576.301 through 576.303.

(2) Recaptured funds will be awarded
by formula. In October and April each
year, HUD will determine if the amount
of recaptured funds is at least 30 percent
of the most recent fiscal year
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appropriation. If so, HUD will amend all
existing grants and reallocate the funds.
If the amount is less than 30 percent of
the most recent fiscal year
appropriation, the funds will be
reallocated in conjunction with the next
fiscal year’s allocation of funding.

§576.301 Metropolitan cities and urban
counties. :

Grant funds returned by a
metropolitan city or urban county will
be reallocated as follows:

(a) Eligible recipient. HUD will make
the funds available to the State in which
the city or county is located.

{b) Notification of availability. HUD
will promptly notify the State of the
availability of the amounts to be
reallocated.

(c) Application requirement. Within
45 days after the date of notification, the
State must submit to HUD a substantial
amendment to its consolidated plan in
accordance with 24 CFR part 91.

{d) Restrictions that apply to
reallocated amounts. The same
requirements that apply to grant funds
allocated under §576.3 apply to grant
funds reallocated under this section,
except that the State must distribute the
reallocated funds:

(1) To private nonprofit organizations
and units of general purpose local
government in the geographic area in
which the metropolitan city or urban
county is located;

(2) If funds remain, to private
nonprofit organizations and units of
general purpose local government
located throughout the State.

§576.302 States.

Grant funds returned by a State will
be reallocated as follows:

(a) Eligible recipients. HUD will make
the funds available:

(1) To metropolitan cities and urban
counties in the State that were not
allocated funds under § 576.3 because
the amount they would have been
allocated did not meet the minimum
requirement under §576.3(b)(2);

(2) If funds remain, to county
governments in the State other than
urban counties;

(3) Then, if funds remain, to
metropolitan cities and urban counties
in the State that were allocated funds
under §576.3.

(b) Notification of availability, HUD
will notify eligible recipients of the
availability of the funds by a
notification letter or Federal Register
notice, which will specify how the
awards of funds will be made.

(c) Application requirements. Within
45 days after the date of notification, the
eligible recipient must submit to HUD:

(1) A substantial amendment to its
approved consolidated plan in
accordance with 24 CFR part 91; or

(2) If the eligible recipient does not
have an approved consolidated plan, an
abbreviated consolidated plan that
meets the requirements in the Federal
Register notice or notification letter
from HUD. '

(d) Restrictions that apply to
reallocated amounts. The same
requirements that apply to grant funds
allocated under § 576.3 apply to grant
funds reallocated under this section.

§576.303 Territories.

(a) General. Grant funds returned by
a territory will be reallocated to other
territories, then if funds remain, to
States.

(b) Allocation method. The funds will
be allocated as follows:

(1) For territories, the funds will be
allocated among the territories in direct
proportion with each territory’s share of
the total population of all of the eligible
territories. If HUD determines that a
territory failed to spend its funds in
accordance with ESG requirements,
then HUD may exclude the territory
from the allocation of reallocation
amounts under this section.

(2) For States, the funds will be
allocated to each State in direct
proportion with each State’s share of the
total amount of funds allocated to States
under §576.3.

(c) Notification of availability. HUD
will notify eligible recipients of the
availability of the fund by a letter or

- Federal Register notice, which will

specify how the awards of funds will be
made.

(d) Application requirements. Within
45 days after the date of notification, the
eligible recipient must submit to HUD a
substantial amendment to its
consolidated plan in accordance with 24
CFR part 91.

{e) Restrictions that apply to
reallocated amounts. The same
requirements that apply to grant funds
allocated under § 576.3 apply to grant
funds reallocated under this section.

Subpart'E—Program Requirements

§576.400 Area-wide systems coordination
requirements.

(a) Consultation with Continuums of
Care. The recipient must consult with
each Continuum of Care that serves the
recipient’s jurisdiction in determining
how to allocate ESG funds each program
year; developing the performance
standards for, and evaluating the
outcomes of, projects and activities
assisted by ESG funds; and developing
funding, policies, and procedures for

the administration and operation of the
HMIS.

{b) Coordination with other targeted
homeless services. The recipient and its
subrecipients must coordinate and
integrate, to the maximum extent
practicable, ESG-funded activities with
other programs targeted to homeless
people in the area covered by the
Continuum of Care or area over which
the services are coordinated to provide
a strategic, community-wide system to
prevent and end homelessness for that
area, These programs include:

(1) Shelter Plus Care Program (24 CFR
part 582);

{2) Supportive Housing Program (24
CFR part 583);

(3) Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation
Program for Single Room Occupancy
Program for Homeless Individuals (24
CFR part 882);

(4) HUD—Veterans Affairs Supportive
Housing (HUD-VASH)] (division K, title
I, Consolidated Appropriations Act,
2008, Pub. L. 110-161 (2007), 73 FR
25026 (May 6, 2008));

(5) Education for Homeless Children
and Youth Grants for State and Local
Activities (title VII-B of the McKinney-
Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42
U.S.C. 11431 et seq.));

(6) Grants for the Benefit of Homeless
Individuals (section 506 of the Public
Health Services Act (42 U.S.C. 290aa~
5));

(7) Healthcare for the Homeless (42
CFR part 51c);

(8) Programs for Runaway and
Homeless Youth (Runaway and
Homeless Youth Act (42 U.S.C. 5701 et
seq.));

9) Projects for Assistance in
Transition from Homelessness (part C of
title V of the Public Health Service Act
(42 U.S.C. 290cc—21 et seq.));

(10) Services in Supportive Housing
Grants (section 520A of the Public
Health Service Act);

(11) Emergency Food and Shelter
Program (title III of the McKinney-Vento
Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C.
11331 et seq.));

(12) Transitional Housing Assistance
Grants for Victims of Sexual Assault,
Domestic Violence, Dating Violence,
and Stalking Program (section 40299 of
the Violent Crime Control and Law
Enforcement Act (42 U.S.C. 13975));

(13) Homeless Veterans Reintegration
Program (section 5(a)(1)) of the
Homeless Veterans Comprehensive
Assistance Act (38 U.S.C. 2021);

{14) Domiciliary Care for Homeless
Veterans Program (38 U.S.C. 2043);

(15} VA Homeless Providers Grant
and Per Diem Program (38 CFR part 61);

(16) Health Care for Homeless
Veterans Program (38 U.S.C. 2031);
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(17) Homeless Veterans Dental
Program (38 U.S.C. 2062);

(18) Supportive Services for Veteran
Families Program (38 CFR part 62); and

(19) Veteran Justice Qutreach
Initiative (38 U.S.C. 2031).

(c) System and program coordination
with mainstream resources. The
recipient and its subrecipients must
coordinate and integrate, to the
maximum extent practicable, ESG-
funded activities with mainstream
housing, health, social services,
employment, education, and youth
programs for which families and
individuals at risk of homelessness and
homeless individuals and families may
be eligible. Examples of these programs
include:

(1) Public housing programs assisted
under section 9 of the U.S. Housing Act
of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437g) (24 CFR parts
905, 968, and 990);

(2) Housing programs receiving
tenant-based or project-based assistance
under section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act
of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 14371} (respectively
24 CFR parts 982 and 983);

(3) Supportive Housing for Persons
with Disabilities (Section 811) (24 CFR
part 891);
~ (4) HOME Investment Partnerships

Program {24 CFR part 92};

(5) Temporary Assistance for Needy
Fan;ilies (TANF) (45 CFR parts 260—
265);

(6) Health Center Program (42 CFR
part 51c);

(7) State Children’s Health Insurance
Program (42 CFR part 457):

(8) Head Start (45 CFR chapter XIII,
subchapter B);

(9) Mental Health and Substance
Abuse Block Grants (45 CFR part 96);
and

(10) Services funded under the
Workforce Investment Act (29 U.S.C.
2801 et seq.).

(d) Centralized or coordinated
assessment. Once the Continuum of
Care has developed a centralized
assessment system or a coordinated
assessment system in accordance with
requirements to be established by HUD,
each ESG-funded program or project
within the Continuum of Care’s area
must use that assessment system. The
recipient and subrecipient must work
with the Continuum of Care to ensure
the screening, assessment and referral of
program participants are consistent with
the written standards required by
paragraph (e) of this section. A victim
service provider may choose not to use
the Continuum of Care’s centralized or
coordinated assessment system.

(e} Written standards for providing
ESG assistance. (1) If the recipient is a
metropolitan city, urban county, or

territory, the recipient must have
written standards for providing
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
assistance and must consistently apply
those standards for all program
participants. The recipient must
describe these standards in its
consolidated plan.

(2) If the recipient is a state:

(i) The recipient must establish and
consistently apply, or require that its
subrecipients establish and consistently
apply, written standards for providing
ESG assistance. If the written standards
are established by the subrecipients, the
recipient may require these written
standards to be:

(A) Established for each area covered
by a Continuum of Care or area over
which the services are coordinated and
followed by each subrecipient providing
assistance in that area; or

(B) Established by each subrecipient
and applied consistently within the
subrecipient’s program.

(ii) Written standards developed by
the state must be included in the state’s
Consolidated Plan. If the written
standards are developed by its
subrecipients, the recipient must
describe its requirements for the
establishment and implementation of
these standards in the state’s
Consolidated Plan.

(3) At a minimum these written
standards must include:

(i) Standard policies and procedures
for evaluating individuals’ and families’
eligibility for assistance under
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG);

(ii) Standards for targeting and
providing essential services related to
street outreach;

(iii) Policies and procedures for
admission, diversion, referral, and
discharge by emergency shelters
assisted under ESG, including standards
regarding length of stay, if any, and
safeguards to meet the safety and shelter
needs of special populations, e.g.,
victims of domestic violence, dating
violence, sexual assault, and stalking;
and individuals and families who have
the highest barriers to housing and are
likely to be homeless the longest;

(iv) Policies and procedures for
assessing, prioritizing, and reassessing
individuals’ and families’ needs for
essential services related to emergency
shelter;

(v} Policies and procedures for
coordination among emergency shelter
providers, essential services providers,
homelessness prevention, and rapid re-
housing assistance providers; other
homeless assistance providers; and
mainstream service and housing
providers (see § 576.400(b) and (c) for a
list of programs with which ESG-funded

activities must be coordinated and
integrated to the maximum extent
practicable);

(vi) Policies and procedures for
determining and prioritizing which
eligible families and individuals will
receive homelessness prevention
assistance and which eligible families
and individuals will receive rapid re-
housing assistance;

{vii) Standards for determining what
percentage or amount of rent and
utilities costs each program participant
must pay while receiving homelessness
prevention or rapid re-housing
assistance;

{viii} Standards for determining how
long a particular program participant
will be provided with rental assistance
and whether and how the amount of
that assistance will be adjusted over
time; and

(ix) Standards for determining the
type, amount, and duration of housing
stabilization and/or relocation services
to provide to'a program participant,
including the limits, if any, on the
homelessness prevention or rapid re-
housing assistance that each program
participant may receive, such as the
maximum amount of assistance,
maximum number of months the
program participant receive assistance;
or the maximum number of times the
program participant may receive
assistance.

(f) Participation in HMIS. The
recipient must ensure that data on all
persons served and all activities assisted
under ESG are entered into the
applicable community-wide HMIS in
the area in which those persons and
activities are located, or a comparable
database, in accordance with HUD’s
standards on participation, data
collection, and reporting under a local
HMIS. If the subrecipient is a victim
service provider or a legal services
provider, it may use a comparable
database that collects client-level data
over time (i.e., longitudinal data) and
generates unduplicated aggregate
reports based on the data. Information
entered into a comparable database
must not be entered directly into or
provided to an HMIS.

§576.401 Evaluation of program
participant eligibility and needs.

(a) Evaluations. The recipient or its
subrecipient must conduct an initial
evaluation to determine the eligibility of
each individual or family’s eligibility for
ESG assistance and the amount and
types of assistance the individual or
family needs to regain stability in
permanent housing. These evaluations
must be conducted in accordance with
the centralized or coordinated
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assessment requirements set forth under
§ 576.400(d) and the written standards
established under § 576.400(e).

(b) Re-evaluations for homelessness
prevention and rapid re-housing
assistance. (1) The recipient or
subrecipient must re-evaluate the
program participant’s eligibility and the
types and amounts of assistance the
program participant needs not less than,
once every 3 months for program
participants receiving homelessness
prevention assistance, and not less than
once annually for program participants
receiving rapid re-housing assistance, At
a minimum, each re-evaluation of
eligibility must establish that:

(i) The program participant does not
have an annual income that exceeds 30
percent of median family income for the
area, as determined by HUD; and

(ii) The program participant lacks
sufficient resources and support
networks necessary to retain housing
without ESG assistance.

- (2) Therecipient or subrecipient may
require each program participant
receiving homelessness prevention or
rapid re-housing assistance to notify the
recipient or subrecipient regarding
changes in the program participant’s
income or other circumstances (e.g.,
changes in household composition) that
affect the program participant’s need for
assistance under ESG. When notified of
a relevant change, the recipient or
subrecipient must re-evaluate the
program participant’s eligibility and the
amount and types of assistance the
program participant needs.

(c) Annual income. When
determining the annual income of an
individual or family, the recipient or
subrecipient must use the standard fof
calculating annual income under 24
CFR 5.609.

(d) Connecting program participants
to mainstream and other resources. The
recipient and its subrecipients must
assist each program participant, as
needed, to obtain:

(1) Appropriate supportive services,
including assistance in obtaining
permanent housing, medical health
treatment, mental health treatment,
counseling, supervision, and other
services essential for achieving
independent living; and

(2) Other Federa%, State, local, and
private assistance available to assist the
program participant in obtaining
housing stability, including:

(i) Medicaid {42 CFR chapter IV,
subchapter C):

(ii) Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program (7 CFR parts 271~
283);

(iii) Women, Infants and Children
(WIC) (7 CFR part 246);

(iv) Federal-State Unemployment
Insurance Program (20 CFR parts 601—
603, 606, 609, 614617, 625, 640, 650);

(v) Social Security Disability
Insurance (SSDI) (20 CFR part 404);

(vi) Supplemental Security Income
(SSI) (20 CFR part 416);

(vii) Child and Adult Care Food
Program (42 U.S.C. 1766(t) (7 CFR part
226));

(viii) Other assistance available under
the programs listed in § 576.400(c).

(e) Housing stability case
management. (1) While providing
homelessness prevention or rapid re-
housing assistance to a program
participant, the recipient or subrecipient
must:

(i) Require the program participant to
meet with a case manager not less than
once per month to assist the program
participant in ensuring long-term
housing stability; and

(ii) Develop a plan to assist the
program participant to retain permanent
housing after the ESG assistance ends,
taking into account all relevant
considerations, such as the program
participant’s current or expected income
and expenses; other public or private
assistance for which the program
participant will be eligible and likely to
receive; and the relative affordability of
available housing in the area.

(2) The recipient or subrecipient is
exempt from the requirement under
paragraph (e)(1)(i} of this section if the
Violence Against Women Act of 1994
(42 U.S.C. 13701 et seq.) or the Family
Violence Prevention and Services Act
(42 U.S.C. 10401 et seq.) prohibits that
recipient or subrecipient from making
its shelter or housing conditional on the
participant’s acceptance of services.

§576.402 Terminating assistance.

(a) In general. If a program participant
violates program requirements, the
recipient or subrecipient may terminate
the assistance in accordance with a
formal process established by the
recipient or subrecipient that recognizes
the rights of individuals affected. The
recipient or subrecipient must exercise
judgment and examine all extenuating
circumstances in determining when
violations warrant termination so thata
program participant’s assistance is
terminated only in the most severe
cases.

{b) Program participants receiving
rental assistance or housing relocation
and stabilization services. To terminate
rental assistance or housing relocation
and stabilization services to a program
participant, the required formal process,
at a minimum, must consist of:

(1) Written notice to the program
participant containing a clear statement
of the reasons for termination;

(2) A review of the decision, in which
the program participant is given the
opportunity to present written or oral
objections before a person other than the
person (or a subordinate of that person)
who made or approved the termination
decision; and :

(3) Prompt written notice of the final
decision to the program participant.

() Ability to provide further
assistance. Termination under this
section does not bar the recipient or
subrecipient from providing further
assistance at a later date to the same
family or individual.

§576.403 Shelter and housing standards.

(a) Lead-based paint remediation and
disclosure. The Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C.
4821-4846), the Residential Lead-Based
Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (42
U.S.C.'4851-4856), and implementing
regulations in 24 CFR part 35, subparts
A,B,H,J,K, M, and R apply to all
shelters assisted under ESG program
and all housing occupied by program
participants.

(b) Minimum standards for emergency
shelters. Any building for which
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds
are used for conversion, major
rehabilitation, or other renovation, must
meet state or local government safety
and sanitation standards, as applicable,
and the following minimum safety,
sanitation, and privacy standards. Any
emergency shelter that receives
assistance for shelter operations must
also meet the following minimum
safety, sanitation, and privacy
standards. The recipient may also
establish standards that exceed or add to
these minimum standards.

(1) Structure and materials. The
shelter building must be structurally
sound to protect residents from the
elements and not pose any threat to
health and safety of the residents. Any
renovation (including major
rehabilitation and conversion) carried
out with ESG assistance must use
Energy Star and WaterSense products
and appliances.

(2) Access. The shelter must be
accessible in accordance with Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act (29 U.S.C.
794) and implementing regulations at 24
CFR part 8; the Fair Housing Act (42
U.S.C. 3601 et seq.) and implementing
regulations at 24 CFR part 100; and Title
11 of the Americans with Disabilities Act
(42 U.S.C. 12131 et seq.) and 28 CFR
part 35; where applicable.

(3) Space and security. Except where
the shelter is intended for day use only,
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the shelter must provide each program
participant in the shelter with an
acceptable place to sleep and adequate
space and security for themselves and
their belongings.

(4) Interior air quality. Each room or
space within the shelter must have a
natural or mechanical means of
ventilation. The interior air must be free
of pollutants at a level that might
threaten or harm the health of residents.

(5) Water supply. The shelter’s water
supply must be free of contamination.

(6) Sanitary facilities. Each program
participant in the shelter must have
access to sanitary facilities that are in
proper operating condition, are private,
and are adequate for personal
cleanliness and the disposal of human
waste.

(7} Thermal environment, The shelter
must have any necessary heating/
cooling facilities in proper operating
condition,

(8) HNlumination and electricity. The
shelter must have adequate natural or
artificial illumination to permit normal
indoor activities and support health and
safety. There must be sufficient
electrical sources to permit the safe use
of electrical appliances in the shelter.

(9) Food preparation. Food
preparation areas, if any, must contain
suitable space and equipment to store,
prepare, and serve food in a safe and
sanitary manner.

(10) Sanitary conditions. The shelter
must be maintained in a sanitary
condition,

(11) Fire safety. There must be at least
one working smoke detector in each
occupied unit of the shelter. Where
possible, smoke detectors must be
located near sleeping areas. The fire
alarm system must be designed for
hearing-impaired residents. All public
areas of the shelter must have at least
one working smoke detector. There
must also be a second means of exiting
the building in the event of fire or other
emergency.

(c) Minimum standards for permanent
housing. The recipient or subrecipient
cannot use ESG funds to help a program
participant remain or move into housing
that does not meet the minimum
habitability standards provided in this
paragraph (c). The recipient may also
establish standards that exceed or add to
these minimum standards.

(1) Structure and materials. The
structures must be structurally sound to
protect residents from the elements and
not pose any threat to the health and
safety of the residents.

(2) Space and security. Each resident
must be provided adequate space and
security for themselves and their

belongings. Each resident must be
provided an acceptable place to sleep.

(3) Interior air quality. Each room or
space must have a natural or mechanical
means of ventilation. The interior air
must be free of pollutants at a level that
might threaten or harm the health of
residents.

(4) Water supply. The water supply
must be free from contamination.

(5) Sanitary facilities. Residents must
have access to sufficient sanitary
facilities that are in proper operating
condition, are private, and are adequate
for personal cleanliness and the
disposal of human waste.

(6) Thermal environment. The
housing must have any necessary
heating/cooling facilities in proper
operating condition.

(7) Hlumination and electricity. The
structure must have adequate natural or
artificial illumination to permit normal
indoor activities and support health and
safety. There must be sufficient
electrical sources to permit the safe use
of electrical appliances in the structure.

(8) Food preparation. All food
preparation areas must contain suitable
space and equipment to store, prepare,
and serve food in a safe and sanitary
manner.

(9) Sanitary conditions. The housing
must be maintained in a sanitary
condition.

(10) Fire safety. (i) There must be a
second means of exiting the building in
the event of fire or other emergency.

(ii) Each unit must include at least
one battery-operated or hard-wired
smoke detector, in proper working
condition, on each occupied level of the
unit. Smoke detectors must be located,
to the extent practicable, in a hallway
adjacent to a bedroom. If the unit is
occupied by hearing impaired persons,
smoke detectors must have an alarm
system designed for hearing-impaired
persons in each bedroom occupied by a
hearing-impaired person.

(iii) The public areas of all housing
must be equipped with a sufficient
number, but not less than one for each
area, of battery-operated or hard-wired
smoke detectors. Public areas include,
but are not limited to, laundry rooms,
community rooms, day care centers,
hallways, stairwells, and other common
areas.

§576.404 Conflicts of interest.

(2) Organizational conflicts of interest.
The provision of any type or amount of
ESG assistance may not be conditioned
on an individual’s or family’s
acceptance or occupancy of emergency
shelter or housing owned by the
recipient, the subrecipient, or a parent
or subsidiary of the subrecipient. No

subrecipient may, with respect to
individuals or families occupying
housing owned by the subrecipient, or
any parent or subsidiary of the
subrecipient, carry out the initial
evaluation required under § 576.401 or
administer homelessness prevention
assistance under §576.103.

(b) Individual conflicts of interest. For
the procurement of goods and services,
the recipient and its subrecipients must
comply with the codes of conduct and
conflict of interest requirements under
24 CFR 85.36 (for governments) and 24
CFR 84.42 (for private nonprofit
organizations). For all other transactions
and activities, the following restrictions
apply: :

(1) Conflicts prohibited. No person
described in paragraph (b)(2) of this
section who exercises or has exercised
any functions or responsibilities with
respect to activities assisted under the
ESG program, or who is in a position to
participate in a decision-making process
or gain inside information with regard
to activities assisted under the program,
may obtain a financial interest or benefit
from an assisted activity; have a
financial interest in any contract,
subcontract, or agreement with respect
to an assisted activity; or have a
financial interest in the proceeds
derived from an assisted activity, either
for him or herself or for those with
whom he or she has family or business
ties, during his or her tenure or during
the one-year period following his or her
tenure.

(2) Persons covered. The conflict-of-
interest provisions of paragraph (b)(1) of
this section apply to any person who is
an employee, agent, consultant, officer,
or elected or appointed official of the
recipient or its subrecipients.

(3) Exceptions. Upon the written
request of the recipient, HUD may grant
an exception to the provisions of this
subsection on a case-by-case basis,
taking into account the cumulative
effects of the criteria in paragraph
(b)(3)(ii) of this section, provided that
the recipient has satisfactorily met the
threshold requirements of paragraph
{b)(3)(i) of this section.

(i) Threshold requirements. HUD will
consider an exception only after the
recipient has provided the following
documentation:

(A) If the recipient or subrecipient is
a government, disclosure of the nature
of the conflict, accompanied by an
assurance that there has been public
disclosure of the conflict and a
description of how the public disclosure
was made; and

(B) An opinion of the recipient’s
attorney that the interest for which the
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exception is sought would not violate
state or local law.

(ii) Factors to be considered for
exceptions. In determining whether to
grant a requested exception after the
recipient has satisfactorily met the
threshold requirements under paragraph
(b)(3)(i) of this section, HUD must
conclude that the exception will serve
to further the purposes of the ESG
program and the effective and efficient
administration of the recipient’s or
subrecipient’s program or project, taking
into account the cumulative effect of the
following factors, as applicable:

(A) Whether the exception would
provide a significant cost benefit or an
essential degree of expertise to the
program or project that would otherwise
not be available;

{B) Whether an opportunity was
provided for open competitive bidding
or negotiation;

(C) Whether the affected person has
withdrawn from his or her functions,
responsibilities or the decision-making
process with respect to the specific
activity in question;

{D) Whether the interest or benefit
was present before the affected person
was in the position described in
paragraph (b)(1) of this section;

{E) Whether undue hardship results to
the recipient, the subrecipient, or the
person affected, when weighed against
the public interest served by avoiding
the prohibited conflict; and

(F) Any other relevant considerations.

{c) Contractors. All contractors of the
recipient or subrecipient must comply
with the same requirements that apply
to subrecipients under this section.

§576.405 Homeless participation.

(a) Unless the recipient is a State, the
recipient must provide for the
participation of not less than one
homeless individual or formerly
homeless individual on the board of
directors or other equivalent policy-
making entity of the recipient, to the
extent that the entity considers and
makes policies and decisions regarding
any facilities, services, or other
assistance that receive funding under
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG).

(b} If the recipient is unable to meet
requirement under paragraph (a), it
must instead develop and implement a
plan to consult with homeless or
formerly homeless individuals in
considering and making policies and
decisions regarding any facilities,
services, or other assistance that receive
funding under Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG). The plan must be included
in the annual action plan required
under 24 CFR 91.220.

(c) To the maximum extent
practicable, the recipient or subrecipient
must involve homeless individuals and
families in constructing, renovating,
maintaining, and operating facilities
assisted under ESG, in providing
services assisted under ESG, and in
providing services for occupants of
facilities assisted under ESG. This
involvement may include employment
or volunteer services.

§576.406 Faith-based activities.

(a) Organizations that are religious or
faith-based are eligible, on the same
basis as any other organization, to
receive ESG funds. Neither the Federal
Government nor a State or local
government receiving funds under ESG
shall discriminate against an
organization on the basis of the
organization’s religious character or
affiliation.

(b} Organizations that are directly
funded under the ESG program may not
engage in inherently religious activities,
such as worship, religious instruction,
or proselytization as part of the
programs or services funded under ESG.
If an organization conducts these
activities, the activities must be offered
separately, in time or location, from the
programs or services funded under ESG,
and participation must be voluntary for
program participants.

(c) Any religious organization that
receives ESG funds retains its
independence from Federal, State, and
local governments, and may continue to
carry out its mission, including the
definition, practice, and expression of
its religious beliefs, provided that the
religious organization does not use
direct ESG funds to support any
inherently religious activities, such as
worship, religious instruction, or
proselytization. Among other things,
faith-based organizations may use space
in their facilities to provide ESG-funded
services, without removing religious art,
icons, scriptures, or other religicus
symbols. In addition, an ESG-funded
religious organization retains its
authority over its internal governance,
and the organization may retain
religious terms in its organization’s
name, select its board members on a
religious basis, and include religious
references in its organization’s mission
statements and other governing
documents.

(d) An organization that receives ESG
funds shall not, in providing ESG
assistance, discriminate against a
program participant or prospective
program participant on the basis of
religion or religious belief. )

(e) ESG funds may not be used for the
rehabilitation of structures to the extent

that those structures are used for
inherently religious activities. Solutions
ESG funds may be used for the
rehabilitation of structures only to the
extent that those structures are used for
conducting eligible activities under the
ESG program. Where a structure is used
for both eligible and inherently religious
activities, ESG funds may not exceed
the cost of those portions of the
rehabilitation that are attributable to
eligible activities in accordance with the
cost accounting requirements applicable
to ESG funds. Sanctuaries, chapels, or
other rooms that an ESG-funded
religious congregation uses as its
principal place of worship, however, are
ineligible for funded improvements
under the program. Disposition of real
property after the term of the grant, or
any change in use of the property during
the term of the grant, is subject to
government-wide regulations governing
real property disposition (see 24 CFR
parts 84 and 85).

(f) If the recipient or a subrecipient
that is a local government voluntarily
contributes its own funds to supplement
federally funded activities, the recipient
or subrecipient has the option to
segregate the Federal funds or
commingle them. However, if the funds
are commingled, this section applies to
all of the commingled funds.

§576.407 Other Federal requirements.

(a) General. The requirements in 24
CFR part 5, subpart A are applicable,
including the nondiscrimination and
equal opportunity requirements at 24
CFR 5.105(a). Section 3 of the Housing
and Urban Development Act of 1968, 12
U.S.C. 1701u, and implementing
regulations at 24 CFR part 135 apply,
except that homeless individuals have
priority over other Section 3 residents in
accordance with § 576.405(c).

(b) Affirmative outreach. The
recipient or subrecipient must make
known that use of the facilities,
assistance, and services are available to
all on a nondiscriminatory basis. If it is
unlikely that the procedures that the
recipient or subrecipient intends to use
to make known the availability of the
facilities, assistance, and services will to
reach persons of any particular race,
color, religion, sex, age, national origin,
familial status, or disability who may
qualify for those facilities and services,
the recipient or subrecipient must
establish additional procedures that
ensure that those persons are made
aware of the facilities, assistance, and
services. The recipient and its
subrecipients must take appropriate
steps to ensure effective communication
with persons with disabilities including,
but not limited to, adopting procedures
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that will make available to interested
persons information concerning the
location of assistance, services, and
facilities that are accessible to persons
with disabilities. Consistent with Title
VI and Executive Order 13166,
recipients and subrecipients are also
required to take reasonable steps to
ensure meaningful access to programs
and activities for limited English
proficiency (LEP) persons.

(c) Uniform Administrative
Requirements. The requirements of 24
CFR part 85 apply to the recipient and
subrecipients that are units of general
purpose local government, except that
24 CFR 85.24 and 85.42 do not apply,
and program income is to be used as
match under 24 CFR 85.25(g). The
requirements of 24 CFR part 84 apply to
subrecipients that are private nonprofit
organizations, except that 24 CFR 84.23
and 84.53 do not apply, and program
income is o be used as the nonfederal
share under 24 GFR 84.24(b). These
regulations include allowable costs and
non-Federal audit requirements.

(d) Environmental review
responsibilities. (1) Activities under this
part are subject to environmental review
by HUD under 24 CFR part 50. The
recipient shall supply all available,
relevant information necessary for HUD
to perform for each property any
environmental review required by 24
CFR part 50. The recipient also shall
carry out mitigating measures required
by HUD or select alternate eligible
property. HUD may eliminate from
consideration any application that
would require an Environmental Impact
Statement (EIS).

(2) The recipient or subrecipient, or
any contractor of the recipient or
subrecipient, may not acquire,
rehabilitate, convert, lease, repair,
dispose of, demolish, or construct
property for a project under this part, or
commit or expend HUD or local funds
for eligible activities under this part,
until HUD has performed an
environmental review under 24 CFR
part 50 and the recipient has received
HUD approval of the property.

(e) Davis-Bacon Act. The provisions of
the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to
276a-5) do not apply to the ESG
program.

(f% Procurement of Recovered
Materials. The recipient and its
contractors must comply with Section
6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as
amended by the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act. The requirements of
Section 6002 include procuring only
items designated in guidelines of the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the
highest percentage of recovered

materials practicable, consistent with
maintaining a satisfactory level of
competition, where the purchase price
of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value
of the quantity acquired by the
preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000;
procuring solid waste management
services in a manner that maximizes
energy and resource recovery; and
establishing an affirmative procurement
program for procurement of recovered
materials identified in the EPA
guidelines.

§576.408 Displacement, relocation, and
acquisition.

(a) Minimizing displacement.
Consistent with the other goals and
objectives of Emergency Solutions Grant
(ESG), the recipient and its
subrecipients must assure that they have
taken all reasonable steps to minimize
the displacement of persons (families,
individuals, businesses, nonprofit
organizations, and farms) as a result of
a project assisted under Emergency
Solutions Grant (ESG).

(b} Temporary relocation not
permitted. No tenant-occupant of
housing (a dwelling unit) that is
converted into an emergency shelter
may be required to relocate temporarily
for a project assisted with ESG funds, or
be required to move to another unit in
the same building/complex. When a
tenant moves for a project assisted with
ESG funds under conditions that trigger
the Uniform Relocation Assistance and
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act
of 1970 (URA), 42 U.S.C. 4601-4655, as
described in paragraph (c) of this
section, the tenant should be treated as
permanently displaced and offered
relocation assistance and payments
consistent with that paragraph.

(c) Relocation assistance }()JI‘ displaced
persons. (1) In general. A displaced
person (defined in paragraph {c)(2) of
this section) must be provided
relocation assistance at the levels
described in, and in accordance with,
the URA and 49 CFR part 24. A
displaced person must be advised of his
or her rights under the Fair Housing Act
(42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.). Whenever

‘possible, minority persons shall be

given reasonable opportunities to
relocate to comparable and suitable
decent, safe, and sanitary replacement
dwellings, not located in an area of
minority concentration, that are within
their financial means. This policy,
however, does not require providing a
person a larger payment than is
necessary to enable a person to relocate
to a comparable replacement dwelling,
(See 49 CFR 24.205(c)(2)(ii)(D).) As
required by Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act (29 U.S.C. 794) and

49 CFR part 24, replacement dwellings
must also contain the accessibility
features needed by displaced persons
with disabilities.

(2) Displaced Person. (i) For purposes
of paragraph (c) of this section, the term
“displaced person” means any person
(family, individual, business, nonprofit
organization, or farm, including any
corporation, partnership, or association)
that moves from real property, or moves
personal property from real property,
permanently, as a direct result of
acquisition, rehabilitation, or
demolition for a project assisted under
the ESG program. This includes any
permanent, involuntary move for an
assisted project, including any
permanent move from the real property
that is made:

(A) After the owner (or person in
control of the site) issues a notice to
move permanently from the property or
refuses to renew an expiring lease, if the
move occurs on or after:

(I) The date of the submission by the
recipient (or subrecipient, as applicable)
of an application for assistance to HUD
(or the recipient, as applicable) that is
later approved and funded if the
recipient (or subrecipient, as applicable)
has site control as evidenced by a deed,
sales contract, or option contract to
acquire the property; or

11) The date on which the recipient
{or subrecipient, as applicable) selects
the applicable site, if the recipient (or
subrecipient, as applicable) does not
have site control at the time of the
application, provided that the recipient
(or subrecipient, as applicable)
eventually obtains control over the site;

(B) Before the date described in
paragraph (c)(2)(i)(A) of this section, if
the recipient or HUD determines that
the displacement resulted directly from
acquisition, rehabilitation, or
demolition for the project; or

(C) By a tenant-occupant of a dwelling
unit and the tenant moves after
execution of the agreement covering the
acquisition, rehabilitation, or
demolition of the property for the
project.

(ii) Notwithstanding paragraph
(c)(2){i) of this section, a person does
not qualify as a displaced person if:

(A) The person has been evicted for
cause based upon a serious or repeated
violation of the terms and conditions of
the lease or occupancy agreement;
violation of applicable Federal, State or
local law, or other good cause; and the
recipient determines that the eviction
was not undertaken for the purpose of
evading the obligation to provide
relocation assistance.

(B) The person moved into the
property after the submission of the
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application but, before signing a lease
and commencing occupancy, was
provided written notice of the project,
its possible impact on the person (e.g.,
the person may be displaced), and the
fact that the person would not qualify as
a “‘displaced person” {or for any
assistance under this section) as a result
of the project;

(C) The person is ineligible under 49
CFR 24.2(a}(9)(ii); or

(D) HUD determines that the person
was not displaced as a direct result of
acquisition, rehabilitation, or
demolition for the project.

(iii) The recipient or subrecipient
may, at any time, request that HUD to
determine whether a displacement is or
would be covered by this rule.

(3} Initiation of negotiations, For
purposes of determining the type of
replacement housing payment
assistance to be provided to a displaced
person pursuant to this section:

(i) If the displacement is the direct
result of privately undertaken
rehabilitation, demolition, or
acquisition of the real property,
“initiation of negotiations’” means the .
execution of the agreement between the
recipient and the subrecipient or the
agreement between the recipient (or
subrecipient, as applicable) and the
person owning or controlling the
property;

(ii) If site control is only evidenced by
an option contract to acquire the
property, the “initiation of negotiations”
does not become effective until the
execution of a written agreement that
creates a legally enforceable
commitment to proceed with the
purchase, such as a sales contract.

(d) Real property acquisition
requirements. The acquisition of real
property, whether funded privately or
publicly, for a project assisted with
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds
is subject to the URA and Federal
governmentwide regulations at 49 CFR
part 24, subpart B,

(e) Appeals. A person who disagrees
with the recipient’s (or subrecipient’s, if
applicable) determination concerning
whether the person qualifies as a
displaced person, or the amount of
relocation assistance for which the
person may be eligible, may file a
written appeal of that determination
with the recipient under 49 CFR 24.10.
A low-income person who disagrees
with the recipient’s determination may
submit a written request for review of
that determination by the appropriate
HUD field office.

Subpart F—Grant Administration

§576.500 Recordkeeping and reporting
requirements.

(a) In general. The recipient must
have policies and procedures to ensure
the requirements of this part are met.
The policies and procedures must be
established in writing and implemented
by the recipient and its subrecipients to
ensure that ESG funds are used in
accordance with the requirements. In
addition, sufficient records must be
established and maintained to enable
the recipient and HUD to determine
whether ESG requirements are being
met.

(b) Homeless status. The recipient
must maintain and follow written intake
procedures to ensure compliance with
the homeless definition in § 576.2. The
procedures must require documentation
at intake of the evidence relied upen to
establish and verify homeless status.
The procedures must establish the order
of priority for obtaining evidence as
third-party documentation first, intake
worker observations second, and
certification from the person seeking
assistance third. However, lack of third-
party documentation must not prevent
an individual or family from being
immediately admitted to emergency
shelter, receiving street outreach
services, or being immediately admitted
to shelter or receiving services provided
by a victim service provider. Records
contained in an HMIS or comparable
database used by victim service or legal
service providers are acceptable
evidence of third-party documentation
and intake worker observations if the
HMIS retains an auditable history of all
entries, including the person who
entered the data, the date of entry, and
the change made; and if the HMIS
prevents overrides or changes of the
dates on which entries are made.

(1) If the individual or family qualifies
as homeless under paragraph {1)(i) or
(ii) of the homeless definition in §576.2,
acceptable evidence includes a written
observation by an outreach worker of
the conditions where the individual or
family was living, a written referral by
another housing or service provider, or
a certification by the individual or head
of household seeking assistance.

(2) If the individual qualifies as
homeless under paragraph (1)(iii) of the
homeless definition in § 576.2, because
he or she resided in an emergency
shelter or place not meant for human
habitation and is exiting an institution
where he or she resided for 90 days or
less, acceptable evidence includes the
evidence described in paragraph (b)(1)
of this section and one of the following:

(i) Discharge paperwork or a written
or oral referral from a social worker,
case manager, or other appropriate
official of the institution, stating the
beginning and end dates of the time
residing in the institution. All oral
statements must be recorded by the
intake worker; or

(ii) Where the evidence in paragraph
{(b)(2)(i) of this section is not obtainable,
a written record of the intake worker’s
due diligence in attempting to obtain
the evidence described in paragraph
(b)(2)(i) and a certification by the
individual seeking assistance that states
he or she is exiting or has just exited an
institution where he or she resided for
90 days or less.

(3) If the individual or family qualifies
as homeless under paragraph (2) of the
homeless definition in § 576.2, because
the individual or family will
imminently lose their housing, the
evidence must include:

(i)(A) A court order resulting from an
eviction action that requires the
individual or family to leave their
residence within 14 days after the date
of their application for homeless
assistance; or the equivalent notice
under applicable state law, a Notice to
Quit, or a Notice to Terminate issued
under state law;

(B) For individuals and families
whose primary nighttime residence is a
hotel or motel room not paid for by
charitable organizations or federal, state,
or local government programs for low-
income individuals, evidence that the
individual or family lacks the resources
necessary to reside there for more than
14 days after the date of application for
homeless assistance; or

(C) An oral statement by the
individual or head of household that the
owner or renter of the housing in which
they currently reside will not allow
them to stay for more than 14 days after
the date of application for homeless
assistance. The intake worker must
record the statement and certify that it
was found credible. To be found
credible, the oral statement must either:
(D) be verified by the owner or renter of
the housing in which the individual or
family resides at the time of application
for homeless assistance and
documented by a written certification
by the owner or renter or by the intake
worker’s recording of the owner or
renter’s oral statement; or (II) if the
intake worker is unable to contact the
owner or renter, be documented by a
written certification by the intake
worker of his or her due diligence in
attempting to obtain the owner or
renter’s verification and the written
certification by the individual or head of
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household seeking assistance that his or
her statement was true and complete;

(ii) Certification by the indivigual or
head of household that no subsequent
residence has been identified; and

(iii) Certification or other written
documentation that the individual or
family lacks the resources and support
networks needed to obtain other
permanent housing.

(4) If the individual or family qualifies
as homeless under paragraph (3) of the
homeless definition in § 576.2, because
the individual or family does not
otherwise qualify as homeless under the
‘homeless definition but is an
unaccompanied youth under 25 years of
age, or homeless family with one or
more children or youth, and is defined
as homeless under another Federal
statute or section 725(2) of the
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance
Act (42 U.S.C. 11434a(2)), the evidence
must include:

(i) For paragraph (3)(i) of the homeless
definition in § 576.2, certification of
homeless status by the local private
nonprofit organization or state or local
governmental entity responsible for
administering assistance under the
Runaway and Homeless Youth Act (42
U.5.C. 5701 et seq.), the Head Start Act
(42 U.8.C. 9831 et seq.), subtitle N of the
Violence Against Women Act of 1994
(42 U.S.C. 14043e et seq.), section 330
of the Public Health Service Act (42
U.S.C. 254b), the Food and Nutrition
Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. 2011 ef seq.),
section 17 of the Child Nutrition Act of
1966 (42 U.S.C. 1786), or subtitle B of
title VII of the McKinney-Vento
Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C.
11431 et seq.), as applicable;

(ii) For paragraph (3)(ii) of the
homeless definition in § 576.2, referral
by a housing or service provider, written
observation by an outreach worker, or
certification by the homeless individual
or head of household seeking assistance;

(iii) For paragraph (3)(iii) of the
homeless definition in §576.2,
certification by the individual or head of
household and any available supporting
documentation that the individual or
family moved two or more times during
the 60-day period immediately
preceding the date of application for
homeless assistance, including:
recorded statements or records obtained
from each owner or renter of housing,
provider of shelter or housing, or social
worker, case worker, or other
appropriate official of a hospital or
institution in which the individual or
family resided; or, where these
statements or records are unobtainable,
a written record of the intake worker’s
due diligence in attempting to obtain
these statements or records. Where a

move was due to the individual or
family fleeing domestic violence, dating
violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
then the intake worker may alternatively
obtain a written certification from the
individual or head of household seeking
assistance that they were fleeing that
situation and that they resided at that
address; and

(iv) For paragraph (3)(iv) of the
homeless definition in §576.2, written
diagnosis from a professional who is
licensed by the state to diagnose and
treat that condition (or intake staff-
recorded observation of disability that
within 45 days of date of the application
for assistance is confirmed by a
professional who is licensed by the state
to diagnose and treat that condition);
employment records; department of
corrections records; literacy, English
proficiency tests; or other reasonable
documentation of the conditions
required under paragraph (3)(iv) of the
homeless definition.

(5) If the individual or family qualifies
under paragraph (4) of the homeless
definition in § 576.2, because the
individual or family is fleeing domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, stalking, or other dangerous or’
life-threatening conditions related to
violence, then acceptable evidence
includes an oral statement by the
individual or head of household seeking
assistance that they are fleeing that
situation, that no subsequent residence
has been identified and that they lack
the resources or support networks, e.g.,
family, friends, faith-based or other
social networks, needed to obtain other
housing. If the individual or family is
receiving shelter or services provided by
a victim service provider, the oral
statement must be documented by either
a certification by the individual or head
of household; or a certification by the
intake worker. Otherwise, the oral
statement that the individual or head of
household seeking assistance has not
identified a subsequent residence and
lacks the resources or support networks,
e.g., family, friends, faith-based or other
social networks, needed to obtain
housing must be documented by a
certification by the individual or head of
household that the oral statement is true
and complete, and, where the safety of
the individual or family would not be
jeopardized, the domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, stalking,
or other dangerous or life-threatening
condition must be verified by a written
observation by the intake worker or a
written referral by a housing or service
provider, social worker, legal assistance
provider, health-care provider, law
enforcement agency, legal assistance
provider, pastoral counselor, or any

other organization from whom the
individual or head of household has
sought assistance for domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking. The written referral or
observation need only include the
minimum amount of information
necessary to document that the
individual or family is fleeing, or
attempting to flee domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, and
stalking.

(c) At risk of homelessness status. For
each individual or family who receives
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG)
homelessness prevention assistance, the
records must include the evidence
relied upon to establish and verify the
individual or family’s ““at risk of
homelessness” status. This evidence
must include an intake and certification
form that meets HUD specifications and
is completed by the recipient or
subrecipient. The evidence must also
include:

(1) If the program participant meets
the criteria under paragraph (1) of the
“at risk of homelessness” definition in
§576.2:

(i) The documentation specified
under this section for determining
annual income;

(ii) The program participant’s
certification on a form specified by HUD
that the program participant has
insufficient financial resources and
support networks; e.g., family, friends,
faith-based or other social networks,
immediately available to attain housing
stability and meets one or more of the
conditions under paragraph (1)(iii) of
the definition of ‘‘at risk of
homelessness” in § 576.2;

(ii1) The most reliable evidence
available to show that the program
participant does not have sufficient
resources or support networks; e.g.,
family, friends, faith-based or other
social networks, immediately available
to prevent them from moving to an
emergency shelter or another place
described in paragraph (1) of the
“homeless” definition. Acceptable
evidence includes:

(A) Source documents (e.g., notice of
termination from employment,
unemployment compensation
statement, bank statement, health-care
bill showing arrears, utility bill showing
arrears);

(B) To the extent that source
documents are unobtainable, a written
statement by the relevant third party
(e.g., former employer, public
administrator, relative) or the written
certification by the recipient’s or
subrecipient’s intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party
that the applicant meets one or both of
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the criteria under paragraph (1)(ii) of the
definition of “at risk of homelessness”
in §576.2; or

(C) To the extent that source
documents and third-party verification
are unobtainable, a written statement by
the recipient’s or subrecipient’s intake
staff describing the efforts taken to
obtain the required evidence; and

(iv) The most reliable evidence
available to show that the program
participant meets one or more of the
conditions under paragraph (1)(iii) of
the definition of “‘at risk of
homelessness” in § 576.2. Acceptable
evidence includes:

(A) Source documents that evidence
one or more of the conditions under
paragraph (1)(iii) of the definition (e.g.,
eviction notice, notice of termination
from employment, bank statement);

(B) To the extent that source
documents are unobtainable, a written
statement by the relevant third party
(e.g., former employer, owner, primary
leaseholder, public administrator, hotel
or motel manager) or the written
certification by the recipient’s or
subrecipient’s intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party
that the applicant meets one or more of
the criteria under paragraph (1)(iii) of
the definition of “‘at risk of
homelessness”; or

(C) To the extent that source
documents and third-party verification
are unobtainable, a written statement by
the recipient’s or subrecipient’s intake
staff that the staff person has visited the
applicant’s residence and determined
that the applicant meets one or more of
the criteria under paragraph (1)(iii) of
the definition or, if a visit is not
practicable or relevant to the
determination, a written statement by
the recipient’s or subrecipient’s intake
staff describing the efforts taken to
obtain the required evidence; or

(2) If the program participant meets
the criteria under paragraph (2) or (3) of
the “at risk of homelessness” definition
in § 576.2, certification of the child or
youth’s homeless status by the agency or
organization responsible for
administering assistance under the
Runaway and Homeless Youth Act (42
U.S.C. 5701 et seq.), the Head Start Act
(42 U.S.C. 9831 ef seq.), subtitle N of the
Violence Against Women Act of 1994
(42 U.S.C. 14043e et seq.), section 330
of the Public Health Service Act (42
U.S.C. 254b), the Food and Nutrition
Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. 2011 ef seq.),
section 17 of the Child Nutrition Act of
1966 (42 U.S.C. 17886) or subtitle B of
title VII of the McKinney-Vento
Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C.
11431 et seq.), as applicable.

(d) Determinations of ineligibility. For
each individual and family determined
ineligible to receive Emergency
Solutions Grant (ESG) assistance, the
record must include documentation of
the reason for that determination.

(e) Annual income. For each program
participant who receives homelessness
prevention assistance, or who receives
rapid re-housing assistance longer than
one year, the following documentation
of annual income must be maintained:

(1) Income evaluation form containing
the minimum requirements specified by
HUD and completed by the recipient or
subrecipient; and

(2) Source documents for the assets
held by the program participant and
income received over the most recent
period for which representative data is
available before the date of the
evaluation (e.g., wage statement,
unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement,
bank statement);

(3) To the extent that source
documents are unobtainable, a written
statement by the relevant third party
(e.g., employer, government benefits
administrator) or the written
certification by the recipient’s or
subrecipient’s intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party
of the income the program participant
received over the most recent period for
which representative data is available;
or

(4) To the extent that source
documents and third party verification
are unobtainable, the written
certification by the program participant
of the amount of income the program
participant received for the most recent
period representative of the income that
the program participant is reasonably
expected to receive over the 3-month
period following the evaluation.

(f) Program participant records. In
addition to evidence of homeless status
or “‘at risk of homelessness” status, as
applicable, records must be kept for
each program participant that
document:

(1) The services and assistance
provided to that program participant,
including, as applicable, the security
deposit, rental assistance, and utility
payments made on behalf of the
program participant;

(2) Compliance with the applicable
requirements for providing services and
assistance to that program participant
under the program components and
eligible activities provisions at §576.101
through § 576.106, the provision on
determining eligibility and amount and
type of assistance at § 576.401(a) and
(b), and the provision on using

appropriate assistance and services at
§576.401(d) and (e); and

(3) Where applicable, compliance
with the termination of assistance
requirement in § 576.402.

g) Centralized or coordinated
assessment systems and procedures.
The recipient and its subrecipients must
keep documentation evidencing the use
of, and written intake procedures for,
the centralized or coordinated
assessment system(s) developed by the
Continuum of Care(s) in accordance
with the requirements established by
HUD.

(h) Rental assistance agreements and
payments. The records must include
copies of all leases and rental assistance
agreements for the provision of rental
assistance, documentation of payments
made to owners for the provision of
rental assistance, and supporting
documentation for these payments,
including dates of occupancy by

rogram participants.

(5 Utility allowance. The records must
document the monthly allowance for
utilities (excluding telephone) used to
determine compliance with the rent
restriction.

() Shelter and housing standards. The
records must include documentation of
compliance with the shelter and
housing standards in § 576.403,
including inspection reports.

(k) Emergency shelter facilities. The
recipient must keep records of the
emergency shelters assisted under the
ESG program, including the amount and
type of assistance provided to each
emergency shelter. As applicable, the
recipient’s records must also include
documentation of the value of the
building before the rehabilitation of an
existing emergency shelter or after the
conversion of a building into an
emergency shelter and copies of the
recorded deed or use restrictions.

(1) Services and assistance provided.
The recipient must keep records of the
types of essential services, rental
assistance, and housing stabilization
and relocation services provided under
the recipient’s program and the amounts
spent on these services and assistance.
The recipient and its subrecipients that
are units of general purpose local
government must keep records to
demonstrate compliance with the
maintenance of effort requirement,
including records of the unit of the
general purpose local government’s
annual budgets and sources of funding
for street outreach and emergency
shelter services.

(m) Coordination with Continuum(s)
of Care and other programs. The
recipient and its subrecipients must
document their compliance with the
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requirements of § 576.400 for consulting
with the Continuum(s} of Care and
coordinating and integrating ESG
assistance with programs targeted
toward homeless people and
mainstream service and assistance
programs,

(n) HMIS. The recipient must keep
records of the participation in HMIS or
a comparable database by all projects of
the recipient and its subrecipients.

{0) Matching. The recipient must keep
records of the source and use of
contributions made to satisfy the
matching requirement in § 576.201. The
records must indicate the particular
fiscal year grant for which each
matching contribution is counted. The
records must show how the value
placed on third-party, noncash
contributions was derived. To the extent
feasible, volunteer services must be
supported by the same methods that the
organization uses to support the
allocation of regular personnel costs.

(p) Conflicts of interest. The recipient
and its subrecipients must keep records
to show compliance with the
organizational conflicts-of-interest
requirements in § 576.404(a}, a copy of
the personal conflicts of interest policy
or codes of conduct developed and
implemented to comply with the
requirements in § 576.404(b), and
records supporting exceptions to the
personal conflicts of interest
prohibitions.

(q) Homeless participation, The
recipient must document its compliance
with the homeless participation
requirements under § 576.405.

1) Faith-based activities. The
recipient and its subrecipients must
document their compliance with the
faith-based activities requirements
under § 576.406.

(s) Other Federal requirements. The
recipient and its subrecipients must
document their compliance with the
Federal requirements in § 576.407, as
applicable, including:

1) Records demonstrating compliance
with the nondiscrimination and equal
opportunity requirements under
§576.407(a), including data concerning
race, ethnicity, disability status, sex,
and family characteristics of persons
and households who are applicants for,
or program participants in, any program
or activity funded in whole or in part
with ESG funds and the affirmative
outreach requirements in § 576.407(b).

(2) Recorgs demonstrating compliance
with the uniform administrative
requirements in 24 CFR part 85 (for
governments) and 24 CFR part 84 (for
nonprofit organizations).

(3) Records demonstrating compliance
with the environmental review

requirements, including flood insurance
requirements.

(4) Certifications and disclosure forms
required under the lobbying and
disclosure requirements in 24 GFR part
87.

{t) Relocation. The records must
include documentation of compliance
with the displacement, relocation, and
acquisition requirements in § 576.408.

(u) Financial records. (1) The
recipient must retain supporting
documentation for all costs charged to
the ESG grant.

(2) The recipient and its subrecipients
must keep documentation showing that
ESG grant funds were spent on
allowable costs in accordance with the
requirements for eligible activities
under §576.101-§ 576.109 and the cost
principles in OMB Circulars A-87 (2
CFR part 225) and A-122 (2 CFR part
230).

(3) The recipient and its subrecipients
must retain records of the receipt and
use of program income,

(4) The recipient must keep
documentation of compliance with the
expenditure limits in §576.100 and the
expenditure deadline in §576.203.

{v) Subrecipients and contractors. (1)
The recipient must retain copies of all
solicitations of and agreements with
subrecipients, records of all payment
requests by and dates of payments made
to subrecipients, and documentation of
all monitoring and sanctions of
subrecipients, as applicable. If the
recipient is a State, the recipient must
keep records of each recapture and
distribution of recaptured funds under
§576.501.

(2) The recipient and its subrecipients
must retain copies of all procurement
contracts and documentation of
compliance with the procurement
requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24
CFR 84.40-84.48.

(3) The recipient must ensure that its
subrecipients comply with the
recordkeeping requirements specified
by the recipient and HUD notice or
regulations.

(w) Other records specified by HUD.
The recipient must keep other records
specified by HUD,

(x) Confidentiality. (1) The recipient
and its subrecipients must develop and
implement written procedures to
ensure:

(i) All records containing personally
identifying information (as defined in
HUD’s standards for participation, data
collection, and reporting in a local
HMIS]) of any individual or family who
applies for and/or receives ESG
assistance will be kept secure and
confidential;

(ii) The address or location of any
domestic violence, dating violence,
sexual assault, or stalking shelter project
assisted under the ESG will not be made
public, except with written
authorization of the person responsible
for the operation of the shelter; and

(iii) The address or location of any
housing of a program participant will
not be made public, except as provided
under a preexisting privacy policy of the
recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with state and local laws regarding
privacy and obligations of
confidentiality.

(2) The contidentiality procedures of
the recipient and its subrecipients must
be in writing and must be maintained in
accordance with this section.

(y) Period of record retention. All
records pertaining to each fiscal year of
ESG funds must be retained for the
greater of 5 years or the period specified
below. Copies made by microfilming,
photocopying, or similar methods may
be substituted for the original records.

(1) Documentation of each program
participant’s qualification as a family or
individual at risk of homelessness or as
a homeless family or individual and
other program participant records must
be retained for 5 years after the
expenditure of all funds from the grant
under which the program participant
was served;

(2) Where ESG funds are used for the
renovation of an emergency shelter
involves costs charged to the ESG grant
that exceed 75 percent of the value of
the building before renovation, records
must be retained until 10 years after the
date that ESG funds are first obligated
for the renovation; and

(3) Where ESG funds are used to
convert a building into an emergency
shelter and the costs charged to the ESG
grant for the conversion exceed 75
percent of the value of the building after
conversion, records must be retained
until 10 years after the date that ESG
funds are first obligated for the
conversion.

(z) Access to records. (1) Federal
government rights. Notwithstanding the
confidentiality procedures established
under paragraph (w) of this section,
HUD, the HUD Office of the Inspector
General, and the Comptroller General of
the United States, or any of their
authorized representatives, must have
the right of access to all books,
documents, papers, or other records of
the recipient and its subrecipients that
are pertinent to the ESG grant, in order
to make audits, examinations, excerpts,
and transcripts. These rights of access
are not limited to the required retention
period but last as long as the records are
retained.
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(2) Public rights. The recipient must
provide citizens, public agencies, and
other interested parties with reasonable
access (consistent with state and local
laws regarding privacy and obligations
of confidentiality and the
confidentiality requirements in this
part) to records regarding any uses of
ESG funds the recipient received during
the preceding 5 years.

(aa) Reports. The recipient must
collect and report data on its use of ESG
funds in the Integrated Disbursement
and Information System (IDIS) and other
reporting systems, as specified by HUD.
The recipient must also comply with the
reporting requirements in 24 CFR parts
85 and 91 and the reporting
requirements under the Federal Funding
Accountability and Transparency Act of
2006, (31 U.S.C. 6101 note}, which are
set forth in Appendix A to 2 CFR part
170.

§576.501 Enforcement.

(a) Performance reviews.

(1) HUD will review the performance
of each recipient in carrying out its
responsibilities under this part
whenever determined necessary by
HUD, but at least annually, In
conducting performance reviews, HUD
will rely primarily on information
obtained from the records and reports
from the recipient and, when
appropriate, its subrecipients, as well as
information from onsite monitoring,
audit reports, and information from IDIS
and HMIS. Where applicable, HUD may
also consider relevant information
pertaining to the recipient’s
performance gained from other sources,
including citizen comments, complaint
determinations, and litigation. Reviews
to determine compliance with specific
requirements of this part will be
conducted as necessary, with or without
prior notice to the recipient.

(2) If HUD determines preliminarily
that the recipient or one of its
subrecipients has not complied with an
ESG program requirement, HUD will
give the recipient notice of this
determination and an opportunity to
demonstrate, within the time prescribed
by HUD and on the basis of substantial
facts and data, that the recipient has
complied with Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG) requirements. HUD may
change the method of payment to
require the recipient to obtain HUD’s
prior approval each time the recipient
draws down Emergency Solutions Grant
(ESG) funds. To obtain prior approval,
the recipient may be required to
manually submit its payment requests
and supporting documentation to HUD
in order to show that the funds to be
drawn down will be expended on

eligible activities in accordance with all
ESG program requirements.

(3) If the recipient fails to demonstrate
to HUD’s satisfaction that the activities
were carried out in compliance with
ESG program requirements, HUD will
take one or more of the remedial actions
or sanctions specified in paragraph (b)
of this section.

(b) Remedial actions and sanctions.
Remedial actions and sanctions for a
failure to meet an ESG program
requirement will be designed to prevent
a continuation of the deficiency;
mitigate, to the extent possible, its
adverse effects or consequences; and
prevent its recurrence.

(1) HUD may instruct the recipient to
submit and comply with proposals for
action to correct, mitigate, and prevent
noncompliance with ESG requirements,
including:

(i) Preparing and following a schedule
of actions for carrying cut activities
affected by the noncompliance,
including schedules, timetables, and
milestones necessary to implement the
affected activities;

(ii) Establishing and following a
management plan that assigns
responsibilities for carrying out the
remedial actions;

(iii) Canceling or revising activities
likely to be affected by the
noncompliance, before expending ESG
funds for the activities;

(iv) Reprogramming ESG funds that
have not yet been expended from
affected activities to other eligible
activities;

(v) Suspending disbursement of ESG
funds for some or all activities;

{vi) Reducing or terminating the
remaining grant of a subrecipient and
reallocating those funds to other
subrecipients; and

(vii) Making matching contributions
before or as draws are made from the
recipient’s ESG grant.

(2) HUD may change the method of
payment to a reimbursement basis.

3) HUD may suspend payments to
the extent HUD deems it necessary to
preclude the further expenditure of
funds for affected activities.

(4) HUD may remove the recipient
from participation in reallocations of
funds under subpart D of this part.

(5) HUD may deny matching credit for
all or part of the cost of the affected
activities and require the recipient to
make further matching contributions to
make up for the contribution
determined to be ineligible.

(6) HUD may require the recipient to
reimburse its line of credit in an amount
equal to the funds used for the affected
activities.

(7) HUD may reduce or terminate the
remaining grant of a recipient and

reallocate those funds to other
recipients in accordance with subpart D
of this part. :

(8) HUD may condition a future grant.

(9) HUD may take other remedies that
are legally available.

(c) Recipient sanctions. If the
recipient determines that a subrecipient
is not complying with an ESG program
requirement or its subgrant agreement,
the recipient must take appropriate
actions, as prescribed for HUD in
paragraphs (a) and (b} of this section. If
the recipient is a State and funds
become available as a result of an action
under this section, the recipient must
reallocate those funds to other
subrecipients as soon as practicable, If
the recipient is a unit of general purpose
local government of territory, it must
either reallocate those funds to other
subrecipients or reprogram the funds for
other activities to be carried out by the
recipient as soon as practicable. The
recipient must amend its Consolidated
Plan in accordance with its citizenship
participation plan if funds become
available and are reallocated or
reprogrammed under this section. The
reallocated or reprogrammed funds
must be used by the expenditure
deadline in §576.203.

Dated: November 9, 2011.
Mercedes Marquez,

Assistant Secretary for Community Planning
and Development.

[FR Doc. 2011-30938 Filed 12-2~11; 8:45 am]
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Homeless Emergency Assistance and

Rapid Transition to Housing: Defining
“Homeless”

AGENCY: Office of the Assistant
Secretary for Community Planning and
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AcCTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: The Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing Act of 2009 (HEARTH Act),
enacted into law on May 20, 2009,
consolidates three of the separate
homeless assistance programs
administered by HUD under the
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance
Act into a single grant program, revises
the Emergency Shelter Grants program
and renames the program the
Emergency Solutions Grants program,
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§ 8400. Purpose and Scope.

(a) These regulations establish procedures for the State of California (“State”)
administration of federal funds from the Emergency Solutions Grants Program (the
‘ESG” or “ESG program”) and establish policies and procedures for use of these funds
to meet the purposes contained in Title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance
Act (42 U.S.C. sections 11371-11378) as amended by S.896 The Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing (HEARTH) Act of 2009 (sections 103-105
and 401-418) (the “Act”).

(b) The Act, and any amendments thereto, provide for State administration of the ESG
program. These regulations set forth policies and procedures governing the
administration of these funds within the California Department of Housing and
Community Development (the “Department”). In addition to these regulations, ESG
program participants will comply with the regulations applicable to the ESG program as
indicated below and as set forth in 24 C.F.R. Part 58, and 24 C.F.R. Part 576.
Additionally, nonprofit organizations funded by the ESG program shall comply with the
requirements of 24 C.F.R. Part 84 as though they were subrecipients pursuant to 24
C.F.R. Part 84. Also, Units of general local government funded by the ESG program
shall comply with the requirements of 24 C.F.R. Part 85. In the event that any federal or
state laws or regulations, including without limitation regulations by the Department of
Housing and Urban Development (*HUD") add, delete, modify, or otherwise change any
statutory or regulatory requirements concerning the use or administration of these
funds, ESG program participants shall comply with such requirements, as amended.

(c) References to section numbers in the 8400 series in the following sections are
references to these Emergency Solutions Grants Program Regulations beginning at 24
Cal Code Regulations, title 25, section 8400 et seq.

(d) In the event of a conflict between the State ESG Regulations and 24 C.F.R. Part 58,
24 C.F.R. Part 84, 24 C.F.R. Part 85, or the ESG regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 576, the
federal regulations shall prevail.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 42 U.S.C.
Sections 11371-11378 (sections 103-105 and 401-418); 24 C.F.R. Part 58; 24 C.F.R.
Part 84, 24 C.F.R. Part 85; and 24 C.F.R. Part 576.

§ 8401. Definitions.

In addition to the definitions found in 42 U.S.C. section 11371 (section 411), and 24
C.F.R. section 576.3, the following definitions shall apply to this subchapter

“Action Plan” means the annual plan required by HUD pursuant to 24 CFR Part 91

governing the distribution and use of ESG funds allocated by HUD to states and local
governments.
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“‘Administrative activities” is defined at 24 CFR 576.108.

“Administrative Entity” means a Unit of general purpose local government approved by
the Department pursuant to section 8403 to administer State ESG funds.

“Balance of State Allocation” means funds allocated pursuant to the requirements of
sections 8404 through 8407.

“‘City” is defined at 42 U.S.C. section 5302(a)(5).
“Continuum of Care” is defined at 24 CFR 576.2.

“Continuum of Care Allocation” means the ESG funds pursuant to the requirements of
section 8403.

“Continuum of Care Service Area” means the entire geographic area within the
boundaries of an Eligible Continuum of Care.

“Coordinated Entry” means the system of program access, needs assessment and
prioritization developed by a Continuum of Care pursuant to 24 CFR 576.400 (d), and
associated HUD requirements and guidance. This term is also known as “Coordinated
Entry System”, “Coordinated Assessment” or “Centralized Assessment’”.

“Core Practices” means the practices and protocols of delivering ESG Eligible activities
as specified in section 8409.

“Department” means the California Department of Housing and Community
Development.

“ESG” is the acronym for the Emergency Solutions Grants program.

“Eligible activities” mean those activities upon which ESG funds may be expended as
described in section 8408.

“Eligible Continuum of Care” means a Continuum of Care in the State that has within its
Service Area at least one Nonentitlement area. These entities must also meet the
requirements of sections 8403 (d) or 8404 (a).

“Eligible organization” means a Private nonprofit organization or a Unit of general
purpose local government that provides, or contracts with Private nonprofit
organizations to provide, Eligible activities.

‘Emergency shelter” is defined under 24 CFR 576.2.
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“ESG Entitlement” means a Unit of general purpose local government that meets one of
the following: (1) is a Metropolitan City or Urban County as defined under 42 USC 5302
that receives an allocation of ESG funds directly from HUD; (2) is in a Nonentitlement
area that has entered into an agreement with an Urban County to participate in that
locality's ESG program, or (3) is a Metropolitan City or Urban County that have entered
into a joint agreement with one another to receive and administer a combined direct
allocation of ESG funds from HUD.

‘ESG Entitlement Area” or “Entitlement Area” means the geography within an ESG
Entitlement's boundaries.

“ESG Nonentitlement” means a Unit of general purpose local government that does not
receive ESG funding directly from HUD and is not participating as an ESG Entitlement.

‘ESG Nonentitlement Area” means the geography within an ESG Nonentitlement's
boundaries.

“Governing Board” - for nonprofit applicants this term includes board of directors; for
county local government applicants this term includes county board of supervisors; for
City local government applicants this term includes City council.

‘HMIS” means Homeless Management Information System as defined under 24 CFR
576.2. Use of the term “HMIS” within these regulations shall also include use of a
comparable database, as permitted by HUD under 24 CFR Part 576.

“Homeless” is defined at 24 CFR 576.2.

“Homelessness prevention activities” means activities or programs described in 24 CFR
576.103.

‘HUD” means the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.
“NOFA" is the acronym for a “Notice of Funding Availability” described in section 8405.
“Nonentitlement area” is defined at 42 U.S.C. 5302.

“Operations” means the category of FESG activities that includes shelter maintenance,
operation, rent, repairs, security, fuel, equipment, insurance, utilities, food and
furnishings.

“Private nonprofit organization” is defined at 24 CFR 576.2.

“Rapid Re-housing” means the activities set forth in 24 CFR 576.104.

“Rank” means the order of eligible applications for funding based only on the rating
established pursuant to the applicable grant selection criteria.
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‘Rating” means the process by which eligible applications are evaluated and given an
overall numerical or relative value based on the numerical or relative value(s) assigned
to each of the identified selection criteria described in the NOFA to which the applicant
is responding.

“Service Area” has the same meaning as the term “Continuum of Care Service Area”.
“Site” means one or more facilities where the program(s) is being carried out.

“Site Control” means the legal right to occupy and use the Site, as evidenced by such
things as:

(1) a deed demonstrating ownership in fee title;

(2) a lease demonstrating a leasehold interest in the Site and its |mprovements for at
least the term of the ESG grant,

(3) an enforceable option to purchase or lease a site provided that such option will be |
for at least the term of the ESG grant or

(4) For rotating shelter programs, site control may include other evidence provided by
the applicant granting permission to use the site(s). Such evidence must be approved
by the Department in writing prior to the deadline for submission of the ESG application
stated in the applicable NOFA.

“‘Standard Agreement” means the contract entered into by the Department and the ESG
Subrecipient setting forth the basic terms and conditions governing the award of ESG
funds.

“Subrecipient” means an entity that enters into a Standard Agreement with the
Department for ESG funds.

“Subrecipient of the Administrative Entity” means an entity that enters into a written

agreement with the Administrative Entity to implement Eligible activities with ESG funds.

“Unit of general purpose local government” is defined at 24 CFR section 576.2.
“Written Standards” means the standards, policies, and procedures adopted by a
Continuum of Care for providing ESG-eligible activities pursuant to the requirements of
24 CFR 576.400 (e).

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 42 U.S.C. 5302,
42 U.S.C. 11302, 42 U.S.C. 11371,42 U.S.C. 11373,24 C.F.R. 576.3 and 24 C.F.R.
576.400.
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§ 8402. Allocation of Funds

(a) The Department will accept and use an amount of the State's annual allocation of
ESG funds for Administrative activities not to exceed the amount permitted under 24
CFR 576.100(c). Pursuant to 24 CFR 576.108 (b), a portion of this amount will be
shared with ESG Subrecipients that are Units of general purpose local government. The
amounts available for Administrative activities will be announced in the Action Plan and
annual NOFA,

(b) After deducting for State Administrative activities, the remaining ESG funds will be
made available for Eligible activities through two allocations according to the formula set
forth in subsection (c):

(1) the Continuum of Care Allocation to be administered in accordance with
section 8403; and

(2) the Balance of State Allocation to be administered in accordance with
sections 8404 through 8407.

(c) The amount of funds available to Service Areas within the Continuum of Care
Allocation and the Balance of State Allocation will be based on the amount of ESG
funds available in any given year using the following formula factors adjusted biannually
using the most recent data available.

(1) The point-in-time count published by HUD which includes both sheltered and
unsheltered homeless persons prorated to reflect the total population of the ESG
Nonentitiement Areas within each Continuum of Care Service Area as published
by the Census Bureau;

(2) The number of extremely low-income renter households within the ESG
Nonentitlement Areas of each Continuum of Care Service Area that are paying
more than 50 percent of their income for rent using HUD's Comprehensive
Housing Affordability Strategy dataset;

(3) The number of persons below the federal poverty line within the ESG
Nonentitlement Areas of each Continuum of Care Service Area divided by the
total population within the ESG Nonentitiement Areas of each Continuum of Care
Service Area. This factor will be double-weighted. Data for these factors will be
obtained from the Census Bureau.

(4) Notwithstanding subsections (1) through (3) above, the Department may
occasionally adjust the weighting of these factors and sources of information to
reflect changes in the availability of data sources and to use the best information
available. Any changes to the factors or weighting of the formula will be proposed
in the Action Plan.

State ESG Regulations Effective April 1, 2016



(d) The amount of funds available to a Service Area under the formula may be capped
in order to achieve a greater geographic balance of the funds among all eligible
Continuums of Care of the State. Any cap on amounts available under the formula will
be proposed in the Action Pian.

(e) In any year where the Department is issuing a NOFA, by January 31st, the
Department will notify Eligible Continuums of Care and ESG Entitlement Areas within an
Eligible Continuum of Care of the following:

(1) Service Areas and preliminary funding amounts within the Continuum of Care
Allocation and the Balance of State Allocation

(2) In determining the Continuum of Care Allocation, the Department will issue the
following: ~

(A) A solicitation of interest for Administrative Entities, pursuant to the
requirements of section 8403, which includes timeframes for applications and
approval and a solicitation of interest to administer funds for geographically
contiguous Continuums of Care that are eligible to receive funds under the
Balance of State Allocation; and

(B) Where there is no intent to apply to be an Administrative Entity, a
solicitation of interest to apply for Rapid Re-housing activities pursuant to
8403(a) (2).

(3) In determining the Balance of State Allocation, the Department will issue the
following: .

(A) A solicitation of interest from Continuums of Care to participate in Balance
of State Allocation regional competition pursuant to section 8404(a(4)), and

(B) A solicitation of interest in applying for Rapid Rehousing activities
pursuant to 8404(a) (2).

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code.
Reference: 24 C.F.R. Section 576.100 and 24 C.F.R. 576.108.
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§ 8403. Continuum of Care Allocation

(a) Funding for a Service Area in the Continuum of Care Allocation shall be
administered by an approved Administrative Entity in the Service Area in which it is
located pursuant to the requirements of this subdivision.

(1) Notwithstanding the location requirement in subdivision (a) above, an
approved Administrative Entity shall also be eligible to administer funds for
geographically contiguous Continuums of Care that are eligible to receive funds
under the Balance of State Allocation and that agree to administration of their
allocation by the Administrative Entity. One hundred percent of both allocations
shall be used for Rapid Rehousing activities pursuant to the requirements of
sections 8408 and 8409.

(2) In the absence of an approved Administrative Entity for a Service Area
otherwise eligible under the Continuum of Care Allocation, a Continuum of Care
may recommend a provider to apply for Rapid Rehousing activities

(A) In making this recommendation, the Continuum of Care shall use a process
which is

1. Fair and open and avoids conflicts of interest in project selection,
implementation, and the administration of funds;

2. Considers selection criteria reasonably consistent with the criteria used by
the Department in section 8407; :

3. Complies with the requirements of sections 8408 and 8409;

4. Incorporates reasonable performance standards as set forth in the Action
Plan based on HUD requirements and guidance. If the applicant has not
implemented the proposed activity or similar activity within the past three
years, the Continuum of Care shall work with the funded applicant to ensure
it meets reasonable performance standards specified in the Action Plan in
the contract year.

5. Complies with federal ESG requirements

6. Considers any other practices promoted or required by HUD.
(B) If recommending a Private nonprofit organization for these funds, the
nonprofit organization must submit a Certification of Local Government Approval

to undertake ESG-funded activities from each Unit of Local Government where
the activity is carried out pursuant to section 414 [42 U.S.C. section 11373(c)];
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(C) Documentation of matching contributions must be maintained pursuant to the
requirements of 24 CFR 576.201.

(D) The Department may request information from the Continuum of Care or
Subrecipient which demonstrates compliance with the above requirements, and
the Continuum of Care or Subrecipient shall provide such information.

(E) The provider shall enter into a Standard Agreement with the Department for
Rapid Re-housing funds awarded pursuant to Subdivision (a) (2) above;

(F) The Action Plan will propose minimum and maximum percentages of a
Service Area allocation that shall be designated for a Rapid Rehousing
application.

(b) The Department will use the formula in section 8402 to reallocate any remaining
funds that have not been conditionally reserved or allocated pursuant to the
requirements of subdivision (a) to participating Service Areas in the Continuum of Care
and Balance of State Allocations.

(c) The Department will evaluate applications from Units of general purpose local
government in ESG Entitlement Areas recommended by Continuums of Care to
determine eligibility and approve the designation of qualified Administrative Entities on a
bi-annual basis.

(1) The application must demonstrate eligibility of the Continuum of Care and
Administrative Entity pursuant to the requirements of this section and describe
the collaboration among the two entities and the process for allocating funds to
activities, and selecting providers.

(A) If proposing to also administer funds in a geographically contiguous
Continuum of Care Service Area pursuant to subdivision (a) (1) above, the
application shall also include evidence of agreement between geographically
contiguous Continuums of Care to administer Rapid Re-Housing with 100
percent of both allocations.

(B) Applications from a continuing Administrative Entity shall include HMIS
project-level and system-level performance data for the prior two years. After
the initial award period, this data will be set forth in the State's Action Plan for
the prior fiscal year. If performance remains in the lowest quartile compared
to all participating Service Areas in the Continuum of Care allocation, the
Department will work collaboratively with the Administrative Entity to develop
performance improvement plans which will be incorporated into the written
agreements required under subdivisions (f) and (j).
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(d) To be eligible to participate in the Continuum of Care Allocation, the Service Area
shall have an Eligible Continuum of Care that meets all of the following criteria:

(1) It has received Continuum of Care funding from HUD in at least one of the.
- past two federal competitions or has registered with HUD to apply for funding in
the next competition;

(2) It has conflict of interest policies in place that meet HUD requirements;

~ (3) It has adopted Written Standards for all Eligible activities proposed to be
carried out with ESG funds; and

(4) It operates, or causes to be operated, an HMIS system that meets HUD
requirements.

(e) To be eligible to participate in the Continuum of Care Allocation, the Continuum of
Care shall recommend an Administrative Entity that meets the following criteria set forth
in subsections (1) through (3) below. Where there is more than one eligible ESG
Entitlement in a Continuum of Care Service Area willing to perform the functions of an
Administrative Entity the Continuum of Care shall recommend a single Administrative
Entity for approval by the Department.

(1) Is a Unit of general purpose local government that has administered ESG
funds for an Entitlement Area during at least one of the past five years. Where a
city is the only unit of general purpose local government that has administered
ESG funds for the Entitlement Area within the Continuum of Care Service Area,
the Administrative Entity may be a county agency with experience administering
another federal homelessness, housing, community development, or human
services program in at least one of the past five years;

(2) Has no unresolved ESG monitoring findings with HUD or the Department that
the Department determines poses a substantial risk to the Department |f the
Administrative Entity is approved; and

(3) Demonstrates the ability and willingness to perform the functions of an
Administrative Entity pursuant to federal and State ESG requirements.

(f) The Continuum of Care and the Administrative Entity shall enter into a written
agreement that specifies the roles and responsibilities of each entity to ensure
compliance with federal and State ESG requirements. The Continuum of Care and the
Administrative Entity shall collaborate in determining Eligible activities, selecting
providers, and administering the ESG funds.

(9) The Administrative Entity shall select providers qualified to deliver Eligible activities
in the Service Area through a process that is consistent with (1) through (8) below, and
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inform the Department of selected providers and activities. The Administrative Entity

shail:

(1) Conduct fair and open competitions which avoid conflict of interest;
(2) Follow procurement requirements of 24 CFR Part 84;

(3) Evaluate provider capacity and experience, including the ablllty to deliver
services in Nonentitiement areas;

(4) Evaluate eligibility and quality of services, including adherence to Core
Practices pursuant to section 8409;

(5) Utilize data and consider community input to identify unmet needs;

(6) Prioritize activities that address the highest unmet need, considering other
available funding and system-wide performance measures;

(7) Consider project-level performance measures when evaluating proposals;
and

(8) Collaborate with the Continuum of Care pursuant to subdivision (f) above.

(h) The Action Plan will set forth proposed limits on any or all of the following: the
number or type of contracts, subcontracts, or activities per contract between the
Administrative Entity and the Subrecipient of the Administrative Entity.

(i) The Administrative Entity shall ensure that:

(1) Not including the funding administered for a geographically contiguous
Continuum of Care Service Area pursuant to subdivision (a)(1) above, not less
than 40 percent of the funds awarded on an annual basis shall be used for Rapid
Re-Housing activities; and

(2) Through the use of Coordinated Entry and other means, all funded activities
are available to Nonentitlement areas of the Service Area consistent with section
414 [42 U.S.C. section 11373(c)).

(A) The Administrative Entity shall facilitate outreach and access to reach
populations in the Nonentitlement areas and shall evaluate participation from

these areas at least annually. The Department may condition future funding to

ensure access to funded activities by Nonentitlement areas.

(B) Funded activities may also serve households located in ESG Entitlement
Areas.

11
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(j) In accordance with section 8411, the Administrative Entity shall enter into a Standard
Agreement with the Department to do the following:

(1) Receive and administer up to two allocations of annual federat ESG funding
per application cycle, conditioned on availability of federal funds;

(2) Carry out identified Eligible activities through selected providers;
(3) Provide for matching funds as required by 24 CFR 576.201;

(4) Enter into a written agreement with providers of funded activities governing
the implementation of activities, including but not limited to eligible use of funds,
funds disbursement, activity reporting, performance evaluation, monitoring, and
termination;

(5) Monitor the performance of all contractors, including selected providers, and
those they subcontract with to carry out ESG-eligible activities, to ensure
compliance with federal and State ESG requirements;

(6) Provide timely reports to the Department; and

(7) In all other ways administer ESG funding to ensure compliance with federal
and State ESG requirements, and the Standard Agreement.

(k) The Department may deny or revoke the designation of an approved Administrative
Entity under any of the following circumstances:

(1) The Administrative Entity or one or more of the Subrecipients of the
Administrative Entity has engaged in, or is responsible for violations of federal or
State ESG requirements;

(2) The Administrative Entity fails to utilize project-level or system-wide
performance data in its project selection, renewal, or monitoring process; or

(3) The Administrative Entity or the Service Areas for which it has been approved
does not meet the requirements of this section.

() The Department may request information from the Administrative Entity or the
Continuum of Care, which demonstrates compliance with any or all of the above
requirements. The Administrative Entity or Continuum of Care shall provide such
information when requested.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R.
Section 91.320 and 24 C.F.R. 576.400.
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§ 8404. Balance of State Allocation.Error! Bookmark not defined.

(a) The Department will administer the Balance of State Allocation for a Service Area
without an ESG Entitlement consistent with the requirements of this section as follows:

(1) To be eligible to participate in the Balance of State Allocation, a Service Area
shall have a Continuum of Care that meets all of the following requirements:

(A) It has not opted to have funds for the Service Area administered under
the Continuum of Care Allocation pursuant to 8403 (a) (1).

(B) It has received Continuum of Care funding from HUD in at least one of
the past two federal competitions or has registered with HUD to apply for
funding in the next competition;

(C) 1t has conflict of interest policies in place that meet HUD requirements;

(D) It has adopted Written Standards that meet HUD requirements for all
Eligible activities proposed to be carried out with ESG funds;

(E) It operates, or causes to be operated, an HMIS system that meets HUD
requirements

(2) An Eligible Continuum of Care may recommend a provider for Rapid Re-
housing activities.

(A) In making this recommendation, the Continuum of Care shall use a
process which is

1. Fair and open and avoids conflicts of interest in project selection,
implementation, and the administration of funds;

2. Considers selection criteria reasonably consistent with the criteria
used by the Department in section 8407,

3. Complies with the requirements of sections 8408 and 8409;

4. Incorporates reasonable performance standards as set forth in the
Action Plan based on HUD requirements and guidance. If the applicant
has not implemented the proposed activity or similar activity within the
past three years, the Continuum of Care shall work with the funded
applicant to ensure it meets reasonable performance standards
specified in the Action Plan in the contract year;

5. Complies with federal ESG requirements;
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6. Considers any other practices promoted or required by HUD.

(B) If recommending a Private nonprofit organization for these funds, the
nonprofit organization must submit a Certification of Local Government
Approval to undertake ESG-funded activities from each Unit of Local
Government where the activity is carried out pursuant to section 414 [42
U.S.C. section 11373(c)];

(C) Documentation of satisfactory match must be maintained pursuant to the
requirements of 24 CFR 576.201.

(D) The Department may request information from the Continuum of Care or
Subrecipient which demonstrates compliance with the above requirements.
Such information shall be provided upon request.

(E) The Action Plan will propose minimum and maximum percentages of the
Service Area allocation that shall be designated for these activities

(3) Funds remaining after allocating for Rapid Re-housing activities pursuant to
section 8404 (a) (2) will be made available within three regional allocations as
follows.

(A) Northern Region comprised of the Service Areas for the Continuums of
Care covering the counties of Amador, Butte, Calaveras, Colusa, Del Norte,
Glenn, Humboldt, Lake, Lassen, Mendocino, Modoc, Plumas, Shasta, Sierra,
Siskiyou, Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Tuolumne, Yuba,

(B) Bay Area Region comprised of the Service Areas for the Continuums of
Care covering the counties of Marin, Napa, Santa Cruz, and Solano;

(C) Central and Imperial Valley Region comprised of the Service Areas for
the Continuums of Care covering the counties of Alpine, El Dorado Imperial,
Inyo, Kings, Mariposa, Merced, Mono, Nevada Placer, Tulare, Yolo,

(D) The configuration of Service Areas within each region may change
subject to individual Continuum of Care or ESG Entitlement Area
designations made by HUD. The counties belonging to each region will be
announced in the NOFA.

(4) As requested in the NOFA, each Continuum of Care shall recommend to the
Department an Eligible organization or organizations proposing Eligible activities
within the Continuum of Care Service Area for funds available under the
applicable regional allocation. In making recommendations, the Continuum of
Care shall use a process which meets the following requirements:
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(A) Is Fair and open, and avoids conflicts of interest in project selection,
implementation, and the administration of funds

(B) considers State application eligibility and rating criteria in sections 8406
and 8407 :

(C) complies with the requirements of sections 8408 and 8409

(5) All applications for funds available under the regional allocations will be
evaluated by the Department pursuant to the requirements of sections 8406,
8408, and 8409. Depending on whether the regional allocations are
oversubscribed, applications submitted for funds within a regional allocation may
be rated and ranked pursuant to the requirements of 8407. «

(b) The Action Plan will set forth proposed limits on any or all of the following: the
number of applications submitted within a Continuum of Care Service Area, and any
limits on the number or type of activities, contracts, or subcontracts within an
application.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R.
Section 91.320.

§ 8405. Notice of Funding Availability.

(a) The Department will issue a NOFA soliciting applications for Eligible activities within
the regional allocations pursuant to 8404(a) (4) and 8404 (a) (5).

(b) The NOFA will notify all interested persons of the following:

(1) That the Department has been allocated ESG funds or expects to be
allocated such funds;

(2) Identification of Continuum of Care Service Areas and allocation amounts
under the Balance of State and Continuum of Care Allocations;

(3) Regional allocation amounts and identification of Continuum of Care Service
Areas eligible to submit applications under the regional allocations pursuant to
8404 (a) (4) and 8404 (a) (5);

(4) Range of Eligible activities as adopted in the Action Plan, and any prohibitions
on uses of funds;
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(5) As adopted in the Action Plan, the maximum number of applications from a
Continuum of Care Service Area, and the maximum number and type of Eligible
activities, contracts, and subcontracts within an application;

(6) Role of Continuum of Care in the application process;

(7) Application or other documentation requirements pursuant to activities to be
funded under the regional allocations pursuant to 8404 (a) (4) and 8404 (a) (5);

(8) Deadline for filing of applications to be reviewed and approved by the
Department, timeframes for review and funding of all applications; and

(9) General terms and conditions of funding allocations.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R.
Section 91.320.

§ 8406. NOFA Application Process.

(a) Applications submitted pursuant to the NOFA for the regional competition pursuant
to 8404(a) (4) and 8404 (a) (5) shall meet the following requirements.

(1) The applicant is an Eligible organization and is recommended by the
Continuum of Care as described in the NOFA pursuant to section 8404(a)(4);

(2) The Continuum of Care meets the requirements of section 8404 (@) (1)

(3) The application proposes an Eligible activity in the Continuum of Care Service
Area consistent with section 8408;

(4) The application is received by the deadline stated in the NOFA,;

(5) Except as provided in subdivision (b), the application is complete and
includes the following:

(A) Authorizing resolution by the applicant's Governing Board;

(B) For applications requesting funds for Emergency shelter, evidence of
site control;

(C) For Private nonprofit organizations, a Certification of Local
Government Approval to undertake ESG-funded activities from each Unit
of Local Government where the activity is carried out pursuant to section
414 [42 U.S.C. section 11373(c)];
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(D) Response to all of the application selection criteria as set forth in
section 8407;

(E) Written Standards for the proposed program activity from the
Continuum of Care that is recommending this application for funding which
meet the requirements of section 8409, as well as federal requirements;

(F) Documentation of satisfactory match pursuant to the requirements of
section 8410;

(G) Completed application accompanied by all applicable attachments,
certifications, and any additional information requested in the applicable
NOFA,

(H) Certification by the applicant that all information within the application
is true, complete, and accurate; and

() Any other information the Department or HUD requires to determine
compliance with the requirements of these regulations and all other
regulations, statutes, and laws applicable to ESG, and scored based on
the criteria in section 8407.

(b) Applications that meet the requirements in subdivision (a) will be evaluated
according to the criteria in section 8407. Notwithstanding the above, in the event that
information, other than the requirements enumerated in this section, is missing from an
application, the application may be scored as submitted.

(c) Notwithstanding subsection (b), if the Department determines that 1) an initial

-applicant scores sufficiently high pursuant to section 8407 to be awarded funds, 2) the

application is deficient with regard to one or more items in (5)(A) through (5)(1) of this
section 8406, and 3) all of the deficient items are correctible, the Department may aliow
the applicant to correct all of the deficiencies on or before 15 calendar days following
written notification to the applicant that the applicant will be provided such opportunity.
In this written notification, prospective awards will be conditioned upon applicants
correcting all deficiencies to the satisfaction of the Department. If all corrections are not
made within 15 days following this written notification to the applicant, that funding
award is automatically terminated and the attendant funds will be awarded to the next
highest scoring applicant, which has submitted a complete application that complies in
all respects with the requirements set forth in (5)(A) through (5)(1) of this section.

(d) The Department reserves the right to request clarification of unclear or ambiguous
statements made in the application and other supporting documents where doing so will
not impact the competitive scoring of the application.
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(e) The Department may request that an applicant revise application documents as
necessary to establish compliance as long as such revisions do not impact the
competitive scoring of the application.

Note: Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 42 U.S.C.
Section 11373.

§ 8407. Selection Criteria for NOFA Applicants.

(a) All applications made pursuant to section 8404 (a) (5) will be evaluated using the
criteria below and ranked according to subdivision (b) below. Where applications
requesting funds for more than one program are permitted in the NOFA, each program
will receive a separate score for each rating factor, and the point scores will be
averaged to calculate a final point score for each rating factor.

(1) Applicant Experience - 20 points

(A) Length of experience implementing the proposed Eligible activity or
activity similar to the proposed activity.

(B) For applicants who have received funding in the State's ESG program in
the past three years, a maximum of 20 points will be deducted for the
following:

1. Whether the Department has terminated or disencumbered ESG
grant funding;

2. Whether the applicant has any unresolved monitoring findings in
ESG that pose a substantial risk to the Department;

3. Whether the applicant has submitted annual reports in a timely
manner for ESG grants.

(2) Need for Funds - 10 points

Need for funds based on whether the application activity and subpopulation targeting, if
any, meets a high need for the community as identified by the Continuum of Care, in a
manner that is consistent with the requirements of section 8409. The Continuum of Care
shall provide data and analysis to support the need, including but not limited to HMIS
data and data from the most recent point-in-time count published by HUD.
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(3) Program Design - 20 points

Quality of the proposed program in delivering Eligible activities to participants consistent
with the Written Standards of the Continuum of Care, and Core Practices as set forth
under section 8409. In making determinations under this rating factor, the Department
may examine such things as Continuum of Care Written Standards for the activity;
provider guidelines governing activity operations; program rules for clients; and the
reasonableness of program staffing patterns and the activity budget relative to program
design, target population, and local conditions.

(4) Impact and Effectiveness - 30 points

Using HMIS data from the most recent ESG contract year, applications will be evaluated
based on an evaluation of project and system-wide impact and effectiveness utilizing
project level and system-wide performance outcomes for ESG Eligible activities or
similar activities implemented within the past three years, based on data which is
reasonably available. Performance measures for each ESG activity and for each
Continuum of Care Service Area will be identified in the Action Plan and based on the
metrics used by HUD in programs such as ESG and the Continuum of Care. The
Department may require documentation to verify the accuracy of the data provided by
the applicant. Such documentation shall be provided upon the request of the
Department.

(6) Cost Efficiency - 10 points

Using HMIS data from the most recent ESG contract year, applications will be evaluated
based on the average cost per exit to permanent housing based on the total ESG
project budget and the number of exits to permanent housing. The Department may
require documentation to verify the accuracy of the information provided by the
applicant. Such documentation shall be provided upon the request of the Department.

(6) State Objectives - 10 Points
The Department may award each application up to 10 points for addressing one or
more State Objectives as identified in the Action Plan and NOFA. The Department's
selection of State Objectives will be based on one or more of the following:

(A) Federal funding priorities, as publicly announced by HUD;

(B) State funding priorities as publicly announced by the Governor or Department
Director; and

(C) Housing and community development needs or objectives as identified in the
Action Plan.
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(b) Applications evaluated under subdivision (a) will be ranked as follows:

(1) Within each regional allocation, applications will be ranked in descending
order and awarded the amount requested in the application or a revised amount
if necessary to conform to funding limits in the NOFA. In the event of a tie
between applicants within a regional allocation, funds will be awarded to the
applicant who scored the most points in the Impact and Effectiveness rating
factor.

(2) ESG funds remaining in a regional allocation may be made available for the
highest ranked unfunded applications in the other regional set-asides, according
to their total application score. Remaining funds may also be set-aside for
distribution in the next NOFA.

(3) When there are insufficient funds to fully fund the next highest ranked
unfunded application, this application may be partially funded if the funded
activities can be adequately performed with the remaining ESG allocation.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R.
576.202. '

§ 8408. Eligible Activities.

(a) State ESG funds awarded by an Administrative Entity or by the Department shall be
used for Eligible activities as permitted by HUD pursuant to 24 CFR Part 576 in
accordance with this section.

(b) Pursuant to 24 CFR 91.320 (d), to address the State's priority needs and objectives
pursuant to the Action Plan, the Department may limit the types of activities that may be
funded in a particular NOFA.

(c) A maximum of ten percent of an individual formula allocation under section 8402
may be used for HMIS activities.

(d) State ESG funds shall not be used for Renovation, Conversion, or Major
Rehabilitation activities pursuant to 576.102. Minor repairs to an ESG-funded
Emergency shelter that do not qualify as Renovation, Conversion, or Major
Rehabilitation are an eligible use of State ESG funds.

(e) For Rapid Rehousing and Homelessness prevention activities, no subpopulation
targeting will be permitted except if documentation of all of the following is provided to
the Department prior to the award of funds for these activities: (1) that there is an unmet
need for these activities for the subpopulation proposed for targeting, and (2) that there
is existing funding in the Continuum of Care Service Area for programs that address the
needs of the excluded populations for these activities.
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Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R.
92.320 and 24 C.F.R. Part 576.

§ 8409. Core Practices

(a) Unless exempted by federal rules, all ESG-funded activities shall utilize a
Coordinated Entry system established by and consistent with the protocols of the
Continuum of Care for the Service Area in which that program operates. Participation in
Coordinated Entry shall occur in a manner that promotes the following, as reflected in
the Continuum of Care Written Standards:

(1) Comprehensive and coordinated access to assistance regardless of where an
individual or family is located in the Continuum of Care Service Area. Local
systems should be easy to navigate and have protocols in place to ensure
immediate access to assistance for people who are homeless or most at-risk;

(2) Prioritized access to assistance for people with the most urgent and severe
needs, including, but not limited to, survivors of domestic violence. ESG-funded
activities shall seek to prioritize people who:

(A) Are unsheltered and living in places not designed for human habitation,
such as cars, parks, bus stations, and abandoned buildings;

(B) Have experienced the longest amount of time homeless;

(C) Have multiple and severe service needs that inhibit their ability to
quickly identify and secure housing on their own; and

(D) For Homelessness prevention activities, people who are at greatest risk
of becoming literally homeless without an intervention and are at greatest
risk of experiencing a longer time in shelter or on the street should they
become homeless.

(b) All ESG-assisted projects shall operate in a manner consistent with housing first
practices as reflected in the Continuum of Care Written Standards, (consistent with
subsections (1) through (5) below), and progressive engagement and assistance
practices, including the following:

(1) Ensuring low-barrier, easily accessible assistance to all people, including, but
not limited to, people with no income or income history, and people with active
substance abuse or mental health issues;

(2) Helping participants quickly identify and resolve barriers to obtaining and
maintaining housing;
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(3) Seeking to quickly resolve the housing crisis before focusing on other non-
housing related services;

(4) Allowing participants to choose the services and housing that meets their
needs, within practical and funding limitations;

(5) Connecting participants to appropriate support and services available in the
community. that foster long-term housing stability;

(6) Offering financial assistance and supportive services in a manner which offers
a minimum amount of assistance initially, adding more assistance over time if
needed to quickly resolve the housing crisis by either ending homelessness, or
avoiding an immediate return to literal homelessness or the imminent risk of
literal homelessness. The type, duration, and amount of assistance offered shall
be based on an individual assessment of the household, and the availability of
other resources or support systems to resolve their housing crisis and stabilize
them in housing; and

(7) Notwithstanding subdivision (6) above:

(A) Rapid Rehousing activities funded within the same Continuum of Care
Service Area shall follow the same program requirements for type,
duration, and amount of assistance provided, unless sufficient written
justification for any differences is provided by the Continuum of Care and
approved by the Department; and

(B) Homeless prevention activities funded within the same Continuum of
Care Service Area shall follow the same program requirements for type,
duration, and amount of assistance provided, unless sufficient written
justification for any differences is provided by the Continuum of Care and
approved by the Department.

(8) Any other practices promoted or required by HUD.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R.
Sections §76.400 and 576.401.

§ 8410. Match Requirements.

(a) Pursuant to 24 CFR 576.201, the Department will provide HUD with annual
documentation of the sources and amounts of matching funds required of the
Department as a recipient of ESG funds.
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(b) Pursuant to subdivision (a), the Department may satisfy HUD's matching
requirement, by submitting documentation to HUD of available State funding for
programs serving persons experiencing homelessness.

(c) Pursuant to subdivision (a), the Department will set forth in the applicable ESG

Action Plan and NOFA any requirement of ESG Subrecipients and Subrecipients of the

Administrative Entity to provide documentation of matching funds.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 42 U.S.C.
Section 11375; and 24 C.F.R. 576.201.

§ 8411. Standard Agreement.

(a) The Department shall enter into a written contract, known as the “Standard
Agreement” directly with the Subrecipient.

(1) For the Administrative Entity, the Standard Agreement will follow receipt of
funding recommendations from an Administrative Entity and certification by the
Administrative Entity that the proposed activities meet federal and State
requirements pursuant to sections 8403, 8408, and 8409. The Department may
require documentation to verify the accuracy of the information provided.

(2) For funding recommendations made pursuant to sections 8403(a)(2) and
8404(a)(2), the Standard Agreement will follow after receipt of these
‘recommendations from the Continuum of Care, and verification by the
Department that the requirements of these sections have been met.

(3) For applications funded pursuant to the NOFA, the Standard Agreement will
follow the funding award by the Department.

(b) The Standard Agreement will require the Subrecipient to comply with the

requirements and provisions of the Act, 24 CFR Part 576, these regulations, and

generally applicable State contracting rules and requirements.

(c) The Standard Agreement will include the items specified in this section:

(1) A clear and accurate identification of the Subrecipient under contract with the

Department;

(2) The geographic area in which the activity or activities are to be provided.

(3) The amount of the Grant, including budget detail sufficient for the Department

to enter into HUD's financial management system ( “IDIS”), and to ensure

eligibility of expenses; the basis upon which payment is to be made; and the

process by which the Subrecipient must request payment;
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(4) A clear and complete statement of the activities and services the Subrecipient
will perform and provide or, for an Administrative Entity, cause to be performed
and provided. For an Administrative Entity, the information on activity, services,
and budget will be reflected for each of its selected providers;

(5) Timeframes for the performance of approved Eligible activities as required
pursuant to 24 CFR 576.203.

(d) The Department may approve modifications to the Standard Agreement as
described below.

(1) The Administrative Entity may propose to change the funded provider or
Eligible activity consistent with section 8403 if necessary to meet the
requirements of this Chapter or to expend its funding allocation. Any change
must still comply with the requirements in sections 8408 and 8409.

(2) A Subrecipient shall notify the Department of any line item changes to the
budget needed for the Department to update IDIS. For line item changes
representing more than 25 percent of the overall budget, a contract amendment
is required. Changes must still comply with the requirements in sections 8408
and 8409.

(e) The following performance requirements shall appear in each Standard Agreement
and shall include additional provisions specific to each Subrecipient:

(1) Reporting requirements pursuant to section 8413; and

(2) Requirements for fiscal management in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards and federal fiscal requirements.

Note: Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R.
576.203.

§ 8412. Disbursement Procedures.

(a) ESG funds shall be disbursed pursuant to the terms of the Standard Agreement.

(b) The Department may rely on the Subrecipient's certification that expenditures
claimed in a request for disbursement are eligible and necessary, provided that the
Subrecipient also certifies that detailed supporting documentation verifying each
expenditure is available and shall be retained by the Subrecipient for six years after the
execution of the Standard Agreement.
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(c) Subrecipients may request an advance of 30 days working capital or $5,000,
whichever is greater, after the Standard Agreement is fully executed.

(d) The Department shall establish minimum disbursement amounts or other related
procedures necessary for the efficient administration of the ESG program. Requests for
disbursement must be made at least quarterly.

(e) If a Subrecipient uses ESG funds for the costs of ineligible activities, the
Subrecipient shall be required to reimburse these funds to the Department, and shall be
prohibited from applying to the Department for subsequent ESG funds until the
Department is fully repaid.

(f) Notwithstanding section subdivision (c), above only costs incurred after full execution
of the Standard Agreement, and after all environmental review requirements have been
met, will be paid by the Department. Environmental review compliance shall include
compliance with 24 C.F.R. Part 50.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R. Part
50. '

§ 8413. Recordkeeping and Reporting.

(a) In addition to the recordkeeping requirements of 24 C.F.R. Parts 84 and 85, the
Subrecipient shall retain all program records pertaining to the Standard Agreement for a
period of five years from the date of expenditure of all funds under the Standard
Agreement.

(b) The Subrecipient shall submit the following reports.
(1) Annual performance reports during the period of the grant;

(2) A written completion report must be submitted within 60 days after expiration
of the Standard Agreement;

| (3) Additional reports may be requested by the Department to meet other
applicable federal reporting requirements.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R. Parts
84 and 85.
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§ 8414. Monitoring Grant Activities.

(a) Administrative Entities shall monitor the activities selected and awarded by them to
ensure compliance with federal and State ESG requirements. An onsite monitoring visit
of selected providers shall occur whenever determined necessary by the Admlnlstratuve
Entity, but at least once during the grant period.

(b) The Department will monitor the performance of the Subrecipient based on a risk
assessment and according to the terms of the Standard Agreement. The Departmenit
may also monitor the Subrecipient of the Administrative Entity as the Department
deems appropriate based on a risk assessment.

(c) The Department will monitor the performance of Administrative Entity and funded
projects based on the performance measures used by HUD in ESG or the Continuum of
Care program. In the event that project-level or system-wide performance consistently
remains in the lowest quartile compared to all participating Service Areas in the
Continuum of Care allocation, the Department will work collaboratively with the
Administrative Entity to develop performance improvement plans which will be
incorporated into the Standard Agreement and other agreements required under section
8403.

(d) If it is determined that a Subrecipient falsified any certification, application
information, financial, or contract report, the Subrecipient shall be required to reimburse
the full amount of the ESG award to the Department, and may be prohibited from any
further participation in the ESG program. The Department may also impose any other
actions permitted under 24 CFR 576.501 (c).

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.ER
576.50.

§ 8415. Audit Requirements.

(a) Private nonprofit organizations must submit audits to the Department for revigw and
approval. These audits must comply with all applicable federal laws, including without
limitation applicable OMB Circulars. See 24 C.F.R. 576.407 (c).

(b) Units of general local government must submit audits to the Department for review
and approval. These audits must comply with all applicable federal and other laws.

(c) The Department may also periodically request that a Subrecipient be audited at the
expense of the Subrecipient and the Subrecipient shall comply.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R.
576.407.
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§ 8416. Sanctions.

The Department may impose sanctions, as well as any other remedies available to it
under law, on a Subrecipient for failure to abide by any State and federal laws and
regulations applicable to the ESG program. As the Department deems appropriate or
necessary, sanctions include, without limitation, any orall of the following:

(a) Conditioning a future ESG grant on compliance with specific laws or _regulations;
(b) Directing a Subrecipient to stop incurring costs under the current grant;
(c) Requiring that some or all of the grant amount be remitted to the Department;

(d) Reducing the amount of grant funds a Subrecipient would otherwise be entitled to
receive;

(e) Electing not to award future grant funds to a Subrecipient and prohibiting an
Administrative Entity from awarding to a particular Subrecipient of the Administrative
Entity until appropriate actions are taken to ensure compliance with ESG requirements;
and/or;

(f) Taking any other actions permitted pursuant to 24 CFR 576.501.

Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 24 C.F.R.
576.50(c).

§ 8417. Other Federal Requirements.

Subrecipients and Subrecipients of the Administrative Entity shall abide by all applicable
local, state, and federal laws pertaining to the ESG program, including, but not limited
to, all other applicable federal laws cited in 42 U.S.C. sections 11371-11378 and 24
C.F.R. Part 576.

Note: Authority cited: Section 50406(n), Health and Safety Code. Reference: 42 U.S.C.
Sections 11371-11378; and 24 C.F.R. 576.
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WRITTEN STAN DARDS
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Riverside Continuum of Care (CoC)
Written Standards for Providing Continuum of Care Assistance

The Riverside County CoC is responsible coordinating and implementing a system-wide
approach to meet the needs of the population and subpopulation experiencing
homelessness within the geographic area of Riverside County. Both the Emergency Solution
Grant Rules and Regulations (ESG) and the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
Transition to Housing (HEARTH) Continuum of Care Program Interim Rules state that the
CoG, in consultation with recipients of ESG program funds within the geographic area,

(1) Establish and consistently follow written standards for providing CoC assistance.
(2) Establish performance targets appropriate for population and program type.
(3) Monitor recipient and sub-recipient performance.

In accordance with Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations (24 CFR) Part 578, the
Riverside County CoC has developed the following written standards. In conjunction with 24
CFR Part 578, these standards will apply to all projects that receive HUD and ESG funding.

The goal of these standards is to synthesize key elements of the HUD regulations with the
processes and priorities of the Riverside County CoC to ensure that the CoC programs are
administered fairly and methodically. The goals of the written standards are to:

®  Assist with the coordination of service delivery across the geographic area and will be
the foundation of the county-wide coordinated entry system.

®  Assist in assessing individuals and families consistently to determine program
eligibility.

® Assist in administering programs fairly and methodically.

®  Establish common performance measurements for all CoC components.

® Provide the basis for the monitoring of all CoC and ESG funded projects.

These written standards include policies and procedures for evaluating individuals’ and
families’ eligibility for assistance for

Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH)
Rapid Re-Housing (RRH)

Transitional Housing (TH)

Emergency Shelter (in-development)
Street Outreach (in-development)

Vihwon

All programs that receive ESG or CoC funding are required to abide by these written
standards. The CoC strongly encourages programs that do not receive either of these
sources of funds to accept and utilize these standards.



CoC and ESG Coordination

These written standards have been developed in conjunction with ESG recipients (Riverside
County Economic Development Agency (EDA), City of Riverside, and the City of Moreno
Valley), the CoC Collaborative Applicant and with service providers to allow for input on
standards, performance measures and the process for full implementation of the standards
throughout the CoC from the prospective of those organization that are directly providing
homeless and housing services, Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH), Rapid Re-Housing
(RRH), Emergency Shelter (ES), and Transitional H ousing (TH). The CoC Written Standards
have been approved by the CoC, the County and City ESG recipients.

These written standards will be reviewed and revised at least annually. Revisions that would
affect the Coordinated Entry process would be made as soon as possible. The Riverside
County CoC will continue to build upon and refine this document.

Housing First Model

Irrespective of the program type, all HUD and ESG funded programs are required to utilize a
housing first approach to housing assistance. The housing first approach incorporates a
model of housing assistance that prioritizes rapid placement and stabilization in permanent
housing that does not have service participation requirements or preconditions (such as
sobriety or a minimum income threshold). Emergency Shelter, Transitional housing and
supportive service only projects may be considered to be using a housing first model if they
operate with low-barriers, work to quickly move people into permanent housing, do not
require participation in supportive services, and, for transitional housing projects, do not
require any preconditions for moving into the transitional housing (2015 HUD CoC NOFA).

Coordinated Entry System

To minimize barriers to housing access and ensure timely placement, all CoC and ESG
subrecipients are required to participate in and receive referrals through Riverside County’s
Coordinated Entry System (CES). The CES uses a no-wrong door approach in which homeless
individuals who engage with any agency within the Riverside County CoC are entered into
the system. This system ensures that every homeless individual is known by name, provides
assistance based on individual’s unique needs, and ensure that housing matches are the.
right fit. See Appendix B, Riverside County CoC Coordinated Entry System (CES) Policies &
Procedures.



Universal Assessment

All individuals will be assessed using a comprehensive, universal assessment tool called the
Vulnerability Index Service Prioritization Decision Assistance Tool (VI-SPDAT) which'is useful
for initial triage and entry assessment. This tool guarantees that individuals’ levels of need
and eligibility determinations are made in an informed and objective manner.

Homeless Management Information System

All subrecipients are required to participate in the Homeless Management Information
System (HMIS) per the ESG and CoC Interim Rule (24 CFR 576 and 578). HMIS provides an
opportunity to document homelessness and helps to ensure coordination between service
providers while avoiding duplication of services and client data.

Written Standards for Permanent Supportive Housing

The Riverside County CoC-PSH program provides permanent housing and supportive
services to individuals and families with a disability, prioritizing those who are chronically
homeless. The program is designed to reintegrate this highly vulnerable population into the
community by addressing their basic needs for housing and providing ongoing support.
There are two key components of the Riverside County CoC-PSH program: permanent
housing and supportive services.

Using a housing first approach, program participants are provided with rapid access to
permanent housing with minimal preconditions. Good credit or rental history are not
required to receive housing. Tenants can remain in their homes as long as the basic
requirements of tenancy are met—paying the rent (as applicable), not interfering with other
tenants’ use of their homes, not causing property damage, etc. This ensures participants
have a private and secure place to make their home, just like other members of the
community, and provides them with a stable foundation from which they can pursue their
goals.

Chronically Homeless Definition

A chronically homeless individual or head of household as defined in 24 CFR 578.3 for whom
both of the following are true:

i. The chronically homeless individual or head of household of a family has been
homeless and living in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or in
an emergency shelter for at least 12 months either continuously or on at least four
separate occasions in the last 3 years, where the cumulative total length of the



